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AGENDA 
Governing Body 

Thursday, 21 May 2020 
10.00 am – 12.00 pm (Public) 

Video conferencing meeting held under COVID-19 restrictions 

ITEM TIME TITLE LEAD 
2020/01  

 
 
 
 
 
 
10:00 

Welcome and introductions 

Matthew Walmsley 

Verbal 
2020/02 Apologies for absence Verbal 
2020/03 Declarations of Interest 

‘A conflict of interest occurs where an individual’s 
ability to exercise judgement, or act in a role is, could 
be, or is seen to be impaired or otherwise influenced 
by his or her involvement in another role or 
relationship. In some circumstances, it could 
reasonably be considered that a conflict exists even 
when there is no actual conflict. In these cases it is 
important to still manage these perceived conflicts in 
order to maintain public trust.’ 

Verbal 

2020/04 Draft Minutes: Meeting of 26 March 2020 Enclosure 1 
2020/05 Matters Arising Verbal 
 Question Time   
2020/06 10:05 Members of the public may raise questions 

that relate to items on the agenda.  The 
Chair’s discretion is final on matters 
discussed and timescale. 

Matthew Walmsley Verbal 

2020/07 10:05 Chief Executive’s Information  Dr Neil O’Brien Enclosure 2 
 Quality   
2020/08 10:10 Key Assurance and Risk Report from Quality 

and Patient Safety Committee Jeanette Scott Verbal 

 Coronavirus Covid-19   
2020/09 10:25 Covid-19 Pandemic - Update Matt Brown Enclosure 3 

2020/10 10:45 Shaping our new future - learning and 
moving on from Covid-19 Matt Brown Enclosure 4 

 Finance  

2020/11 10:55 Financial management during Covid-19 
Pandemic Kate Hudson Verbal 

 Partnership   

2020/12 11:00 Public Health Report and Health and 
Wellbeing Board - Update  Tom Hall Verbal 

 Governance   

2020/13 11:10 STCCG Annual Report and Financial 
Statements 2019/20 

Kate Hudson/ 
Matt Brown Enclosure 5 

2020/14 11:20 Audit Completion Letter Cameron Waddell Enclosure 6 
2020/15 11:30 Risk Management Report Matt Brown Enclosure 7 

2020/16 11:40 Registers of Interest Review  
Keith Haynes/ 
Helen Ruffell Enclosure 8 

2020/17 11:45 Northern CCG Joint Committee - Terms of 
Reference Dr Neil O’Brien Enclosure 9 
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Jane Leighton 
Executive Assistant 
South Tyneside CCG 
 

 Sub-committee Minutes   

2020/18 

11.50 

Executive Committee (18/12/19; 22/01/20; 
27/02/20; 27/03/20) 

Kate Hudson/  
Matt Brown Enclosure 10 

2020/19 Audit and Risk Committee (03/12/19) John Whitehouse Enclosure 11 

2020/20 Quality & Patient Safety Committee (04/03/20) Pat Harle Enclosure 12 

2020/21 Patient Reference Group (05/12/19)  Paul Cuskin Enclosure 13 

 Minutes For Information   
2020/22 11.50 PCCC (28/11/19) Pat Harle Enclosure 14 

 OTHER BUSINESS   
2020/23 11.50 Cycle of Business 2020/21 Matthew Walmsley Enclosure 15 
2020/24 11.50 Any Other Business All Verbal 
2020/25 11.55 Question Time: Members of the public Matthew Walmsley Verbal 
 
Close 
 

Date and time of next meeting 
26 July, 10.00 am – 12.00 pm 
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Governing Body (PUBLIC) 

26 March 2020 
10:00 am – 12 noon 

This was a tele-conference virtual meeting held under Coronavirus Covid-19 restrictions.  
 
Present: 
Dr Matthew Walmsley  Chair, STCCG       MW 
Matt Brown    Director of Operations, STCCG    MB 
Dr Tarquin Cross   Secondary Care Consultant, STCCG    TC 
Paul Cuskin    Lay Member, STCCG      PC 
Tom Hall   Director of Public Health, STC    TH 
Dr David Hambleton  Chief Executive, STCCG     DH 
Kate Hudson   Chief Finance Officer, STCCG     KHu 
Jeanette Scott   Director of Nursing, Quality & Safety, STCCG   JS 
 
In Attendance: 
Keith Haynes   Governance Lead       KHa 
Mark Outterside  Partner and Engagement Lead, Mazars   MO 
Andy Sutton    Governance Officer, STCCG     AS 
 
Apologies 
Pat Harle    Lay Member, STCCG      PH 
Paul Morgan    Lay Member, STCCG      PM 
Dr Vis-Nathan   GP Governing Body Member, STCCG    VN 
 
2019/124 Welcome and Introductions 

Members were welcomed and introductions made.    
 
2019/125 Apologies for Absence 
 Apologies were received as noted above. 
 
2019/126 Declarations of Interest 

No declarations were made. 
 

2019/127 Governing Body Meetings: COVID-19 (Enclosure 1) 
In light of recent Government advice the CCG had made arrangements for its staff 
to work from home and as a consequently only core meetings were being held, 
including those of the Governing Body and the Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee (PCCC).  The CCG’s constitution stipulates that it was required to hold 
meetings of its governing body in public, except ‘where the group considers that it 
would not be in the public interest in relation to all or part of a meeting’.  Bearing in 
mind further government advice that members of the public should not participate in 
any unnecessary gatherings, it was evident that meetings of the Governing Body 
fell within this category.   
 
In these circumstances, it had been agreed that meetings of the Governing Body 
should be held virtually, with members and regular attendees participating, with 
approval from the Chair, via tele-conference.  While participation via tele-
conference is permitted by the Standing Orders, it further stipulates that should the 

Agenda item 2020/04 
Enclosure 1 
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Chair participate by tele-conference, the Deputy Chair will preside at the meeting.  
As the Standing Orders had not envisaged a situation wherein all participants 
attend via tele-conference, a facilitative amendment to the Standing Orders was 
required. 
 
Resolved 
That approval be given for the Standing Orders to be amended to enable 
meetings of the Governing Body to be held with all participants joining via 
tele-conference. 

 
2019/127a Emergency and Temporary Scheme of Delegation (Enclosure 1a) 

Members considered proposals for the amendment of the CCG’s Scheme of 
Delegation that would afford greater flexibility to the Executive during the COVID-19 
pandemic.  In practical terms this would see a range of temporary changes, in the 
period 26.03.2020 – 31.07.2020, in authorisation requirements and financial 
expenditure limits for specific CCG staff members in relation to the commissioning 
budget.  These amendments would allow staff to make any necessary changes 
without delay.   
 
Resolved 
That approval be given to temporary changes in the scheme of delegation in 
the period 26.03.2020 – 31.07.2020. 

 
At this stage Tom Hall left the meeting. 
 
2019/128 Draft Minutes from the Meeting of 23 January 2020 (Enclosure 2) 

Resolved:   
That the minutes of the meeting of 23 January 2020 be approved, subject to 
the amendment of: 
Minute 2019/110: End of Life, Palliative Care Model Development for South 
Tyneside 
Page 6, sub-paragraph ‘Service Description’ to refer to the model being based on 
‘data’ not ‘date’. 

 
2019/129 Matters Arising 

i) Minute 2019/106: Chief Executive’s Report - World Cafe 
Arrangements were yet to be made for a governing body development session 
that would aim to build on the World Café event on collaborative working. 

ii) Minute 2019/113: Appointment to the Governing Body – GP Member/ 
Primary Care Health Professional 
Dr James Crosbie had gained a permanent position outside of the borough and 
as a consequence would be unable to take up position as a GP Member/ 
Primary Care Health Professional on the governing body. 

 
2019/130 Chief Executive’s Information (Verbal)  

The CCG’s Chief Executive provided a verbal update on issues relating to the 
operation of the CCG.  A number of issues were reported: 
i) Avastin® 

The High Court had ruled in favour of the Northern CCGs in the appeal from 
Bayer and Novatis, the leading market providers of Ranibizumab (Lucentis®) 
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and aflibercept (Eylea®), against the earlier decision to dismiss their appeal 
against the decision of the Northern CCGs to promote Avastin® as a more cost-
effective medicine within the CNE region for the treatment of patients newly 
diagnosed with neovascular (wet) age-related macular degeneration (wAMD).  
This judgement would result in a saving of millions to the NHS and would under 
normal circumstances have been the subject of extensive national publicity. 

ii) Kings Fund 
The Kings Fund had in February 2020 published a report: ‘Thinking differently 
about commissioning: learning from new approaches to local planning', 
highlighting South Tyneside as one of three CCGs at the forefront in the use of 
collaboration as a key tool for improving health services, rethinking the role of 
commissioning and implementing more collaborative ways of planning services.  

iii) Accountable Officer 
This was the final meeting to be attended by the CCG’s Chief Executive, Dr 
David Hambleton.  Arrangements were in place for a smooth handover with Dr 
Neil O’Brien, the new single accountable for South Tyneside, Sunderland and 
North Durham CCG’s, including those for the completion of annual reports and 
financial statements for 2019/20. 

iv) Coronavirus Covid-19 Pandemic 
A collaborative system response was in place to fight the Coronavirus Covid-19 
pandemic.  Related activities national, regionally and at a local level included: 
- The CCG’s establishment and operation of an ‘Incident Control Room, now 

operated on a virtual basis. 
- A regional and national command structure was in place, with local services 

arranged on a hub basis. 
- STSFT was in the process of freeing-up in-bed provision at both STDH and 

SRH in anticipation of a surge of Covid-19 patients. 
- Communications within the CCG and throughout the NHS more generally 

were being facilitated via the Microsoft Teams platform. 
- An alliance-based collaborative approach was in operation with the active 

involvement of all local system partners which it recognised will better serve 
the interests of the residents of South Tyneside. 

Resolved: 
That the Chief Executive’s information report be noted. 

 
QUALITY 

 
2019/131 Key Assurance and Risk Report from Quality and Patient Safety Committee 

(QPSC) (Verbal) 
The Governing Body received a verbal report that highlighted key issues that had 
been the subject of consideration at recent meetings of QPSC, QRG and more 
widely. While the main area of focus had been preparedness and escalation of 
Coronavirus Covid-19 related work, attention was drawn to a number of other 
developments: 
- A new process for the operation of the SIRMS facility was under review. 
- A new Never Event had been recorded in relation to a patient falling from a 

building at Sunderland Royal. 
- A watching brief was being taken of system working during the Covid-19 

epidemic, with a view to the identification of any gaps in service and related 
lessons learned. 
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- The head of safeguarding, who is to formally retired on 31.03.2020 had agreed 
to remain with the CCG on a part-time basis during the pandemic, pending the 
recruitment of a successor. 

Resolved 
That the Key Assurance and Risk Report be noted.  

 
PERFORMANCE 

 
2019/132 Performance Report (Enclosure 3)  

Members received a report that summarises the performance of the CCG against 
NHS Constitution Indicators, CCG Outcome Indicators and the CCG Quality 
Premium.  The report provided threshold, actual and year-to-date performance with 
trend lines based on the last 4 available data points. In addition, risks to year end 
performance were RAG-rated with comments where an indicator is red. In reporting, 
attention was drawn to a number of issues: 

 
i) Number of Patients on an Incomplete Pathway 

South Tyneside has one patient who had waited over 52 weeks for treatment on 
an incomplete pathway. This was however part of specialised commissioning and 
had been escalated to NHSE/I with an action plan in place.  

ii) Referral to Treatment (RTT)  
South Tyneside had marginally failed to meet the 92% target for patients waiting 
for initial treatment on incomplete pathways within 18 weeks.  Within the context 
of the onset of the coronavirus epidemic it was likely that performance against 
this and other indicators would be adversely affected. 

iii) A&E 
The first two weeks of the coronavirus epidemic had seen a 50% reduction in 
presentation at A&E. 

iv) Bed Occupancy    
In preparation for an expected surge of patients with Covid-19, STHD had 
systematically reduced bed occupancy, which currently stood at 54%. 

 
In discussion it was suggested that many patients had, rather than attend A&E, a 
GP surgery or use the 111 service, opted to self-manage their personal health. 
 
Resolved 
That the performance report be noted.  

 
FINANCE 

 
2019/133 Financial Monitor (Enclosure 4) 

Members received a summary report on the CCG’s financial position in the 11-
month period to 29.02.2020, which provided assurance that key annual financial 
performance targets would be met.   

 
The CCG’s notified revenue resource limit for 2019/20 was £300,090k, of which 
£291,557k was recurrent and £8,533k non-recurrent.  NHSE Business Rules 
required the CCG to remain within its running cost allocation and to achieve an in-
year breakeven position or better for 2019/20.   
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In light of the Coronavirus epidemic a national system approach had been adopted 
to the funding of Covid-19 related expenditure, with NHSE advising health 
organisations, including the CCG that all reasonable expenditure will be fully 
reimbursed.  The CCG was logging all such expenditure to establish a verifiable 
audit trail and guard against any potential non-recovery from NHSE. 
 
One direct consequence of the system’s prioritisation of the Covid-19 issue is an 
amended timetable for the submission of annual accounts to NHSE, which has 
been put back by one month.  This notwithstanding, the CCG was to work towards 
the original timetable, including an extraordinary meeting of the Audit and Risk 
Committee in the second week of May 2020, to be followed by the submission of 
the final accounts to the 21 May 2020 meeting of the governing body. 
 
In discussion members discussed the finances of third sector organisation during 
the coronavirus period, it being suggested that the CCG was in a position to provide 
support through advance payments of annual funds to affected bodies.     
Resolved  
That the financial monitoring report be noted. 

 
At this stage, Mark Outterside joined the meeting. 
 
2019/134 Audit Strategy Memorandum (Enclosure 5)  

Mazars introduced the Audit Strategy Memorandum, which set out the external 
auditor’s audit plan for the CCG and which had been previously been considered at 
the 10.03.2020 meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee.   
 
The memorandum set out Mazars audit approach for the CCG’s 2019/20 financial 
statements, value for money and risk assessment and mitigation and for the 
commissioning of primary care services. 
 
Attention was drawn to the audit of the financial statements for which materiality 
had been set at 2% of total operating expenditure (anticipated to be £5,938m at 
31.03.2020). 
 
It was anticipated that no material change would be made to the Engagement 
Letter, bar a cosmetic change in section running order. 
 
Resolved  
That the Audit Strategy Memorandum be noted. 
 

At this stage, Mark Outterside left the meeting. 
 
2019/135 Draft Annual Budget 2020/21 (Enclosure 6)  

Members considered a high level draft of the CCG’s proposed budget for 2020/21, 
which was based on the allocations and rules published by NHSE in January 2020. 
This early draft provided assurance that plans were in place to ensure the CCG was 
in a position to deliver its statutory responsibilities in relation to the management of 
its financial allocation.  In advance, the CCG had submitted a draft balanced 
financial plan to NHSE based on this draft. 
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The draft budget was based on a number of key principles: 
•  Financial allocation and their intended use. 
•  A requirement to remain within running cost allocation and to achieve a 

breakeven or better in 2020/21. 
•  Contract values agreed/in negotiation (with uplifts to CHC and prescribing 

budgets). 
•  An indicative efficiency programme of £3.3m for 2020/21. 
 
Covid-19 
Attention was drawn to the impact of the national management of the pandemic on 
the finances of all NHS organisations, all of who would be required to operate on a 
different basis and potentially incur additional costs.  This was addressed by recent 
NHSE/I guidance which outlined financial arrangements to July 2020 and indicating 
that additional costs will be reimbursed.  Within this period, the CCG would be 
unable to undertake any QIPP-related work, which constituted a financial risk; at 
this point this is unquantified and the CCG is working on an assumption of cost 
neutrality. 
 
In discussion a number of areas of financial risk were highlighted (to be included on 
the CCG Risk Register) that had been considered in the budget-planning process: 
- Acute Activity/Over-performing areas during 2019/20 
- Continuing Healthcare 
- Prescribing Budget 
- Primary Care Delegated Commissioning 
- Better Care Fund  
- Running Costs 
- Inability to undertake QIPP related work during the pandemic 
 
The final budget would be submitted to the 21.05.2020 meeting of the governing 
body.  
 
Resolved  
That approval be given to the draft commissioning and running costs budgets 
for 2020/21. 
 
COMMISSIONING BUSINESS 
 

2019/136 End of Life Strategy - Update (Verbal)  
A by-product of the current focus of the health and care sector on the coronavirus 
crisis is the inability to developmental work on a new end of life and palliative care 
model for South Tyneside, a report on which had been due at this meeting. 
 
In discussion, it was suggested that the local campaign group would be very 
frustrated at the lack of progress.  
Resolved  
That a progress report on the development of a new a new end of life and 
palliative care model be submitted to the next meeting. 
 
PARTNERSHIP 
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2019/137 Public Health Report & Health and Wellbeing Board - Update (Verbal)  
In the absence of the Director of Public Health, the Chair advised that the CCG and 
Public Health were essential participants in the collective local response to the 
coronavirus epidemic. 
 
ACTION  
JS is to circulate a note on support being given to care homes and schools in 
the coronavirus epidemic.  
Resolved: 
That the Public Health Report be noted.  

 
Governance 

 
2019/138 Lay Member Appointment (Enclosure 7) 

Members received a report concerning the recruitment of a Lay Member with lead 
responsibility for governance, audit and conflicts of interests, in succession to Mr 
Paul Morgan, who had not sought re-appointment at the end of his current term, 31 
March 2020.  The Remuneration Committee had, following a robust interview 
process appointed Mr John Whitehouse. 
 
Resolved 
That the appointment of Mr John Whitehouse as Lay Member (lead on governance, 
audit and conflicts of interest) to the Governing Body for a three-year period from 1 
April 2020 be noted. 

 
Other Business 

 
2019/139 Draft Cycle of Business 2020/21 (Enclosure 8)  

Resolved: 
That the draft 2020/21 Governing Body Cycle of Business be approved.  

 
2019/140 Any Other Business 

 Departing Members 
This was the final meeting of the governing body attended by three departing 
members, Dr David Hambleton, Senior Executive; Paul Morgan, Lay Member 
and Dr Vis-Nathan, GP Member.  All had made a substantial contribution to the 
CCG since its inception in 2013. 
 
Dr Hambleton thanked the governing body for the support it had provided during 
his tenure as the CCG’s Chief Executive.  

 
2019/141 Question Time (Verbal) 

Members of the public had been invited to submit questions via the CCG’s web site.   
 
Andy Sutton 
Governance Officer 
South Tyneside CCG 
27.03.2020   
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Governing Body Meeting 
Thursday 21st May 2020 

Accountable Officers Report 
 

REGIONAL AND NATIONAL UPDATE 
 

1 Integrated Care System (ICS) meeting held on Friday 24 April 2020 
 
1.1 Paul Hanson, Chief Executive, North Tyneside Council and Chair of Northern 

Local Resilience Forum (LRF), provided a summary of the function, 
membership and the broad remit of the LRF.  Currently there is no political 
oversight of the LRF which could become an issue if the current situation 
continues as expected for many months. 

 
1.2 An update concerning Covid-19 testing was provided.  Capacity was at 2,500 

tests per day, although only 1,500 tests were being carried out.  Care home 
testing performance was variable, however, starting across the ICS all areas 
have reaffirmed that community services will provide testing into care homes.  
Some views were expressed that communication needed to be strengthened 
between Government announcements and the local areas delivering tests. 

 
1.3 The supply of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) was discussed.  Whilst 

the position remained fragile, on a positive note there was a report of local 
production and stocks of PPE and essential medical equipment.  The ICS was 
engaging with the national team to streamline their process with local ordering 
and production availability. 

 
1.4 An update was provided covering the approach to ‘recovery’ and ‘restoration’ 

of NHS performance and services.  Communication was expected providing 
an outline of the national expectation of health services provision during the 
next phase of the Coronavirus pandemic; it was hoped that it would allow 
local flexibility to focus on principles, priorities and frameworks.  It was 
acknowledged that consideration would need to be given to prepare for any 
future measures required to manage the continued risk. 

 
1.5 Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs) reflected a similar approach to phasing of 

acute services, managing demand in primary care and harnessing innovation.  
The range of video conferencing systems in use across the ICS will be 
reviewed to determine the level of variation and explore if regional 
consistency could be achieved without delaying transformation of service 
delivery. 

 
1.6 It was reported that since the Covid-19 virus had presented there has been a 

70% reduction in 2 week wait referrals per week.  Performance exceptions 
and stepping-up activity alongside access risks and PPE availability were 
considered. 

 
1.7 An update in relation to the financial position was received.  The key message 

out of the detailed report was that the position in the ICS had improved. 
 



  

 

2 Court of Appeal judgement - NHS Avastin choice policy for wet AMD 
patients 

 
2.1 I am pleased to report that on 25 March the Court of Appeal dismissed an 

appeal by pharmaceutical companies Bayer and Novartis to challenge a 
policy adopted by North East and North Cumbria CCGS recommending that 
NHS clinicians should offer patients a choice between 2 licensed medicines 
for the treatment of wet age-related macular degeneration (marketed by Bayer 
and Novartis) and a much cheaper drug.  Whilst there is the option for an 
application to the Supreme Court the legal advice is that it would be unlikely to 
be granted given the current circumstances. 
 
Link to the judgment: https://www.judiciary.uk/judgments/bayer-v-nhs-
darlington-others/ 
 
Summary by our legal team: https://www.landmarkchambers.co.uk/court-of-
appeal-upholds-lawfulness-of-nhs-avastin-choice-policy-for-wet-amd-patients/ 

 
2.2 The judgment sets out how the CCGs’ choice policy can be legally 

implemented (if an individual prior prescription system is in place) via three 
different modes: ‘original vial use’ where a small amount of Avastin is drawn 
out of a larger vial with the rest discarded; in-house compounding within NHS 
hospital pharmacies; and supply of compounded Avastin between NHS 
hospital pharmacies.  In a significant ruling the judgment also stated that “nor 
is it contrary to GMC guidance for clinicians to recommend [Avastin] to 
patients in preference to Lucentis or Eylea even though that the preference 
may be based on cost considerations”. 

 
2.3 The savings potential remains significant – estimated at over £10m per year 

across our Integrated Care System area if a majority of new wet AMD patients 
chose to be treated with Avastin. 

 
3. Simon Stevens led discussion with North East and Yorkshire Leaders 

held on 1 May 2020 
 
3.1 There is an expectation that community health services will encounter a surge 

in demand as it enters the recovery phase.  Demand and capacity planning 
will need to be looked at to manage this surge and will require local 
judgement to determine how services should be brought back on-line. 

 
3.2 Discussion explored some benefits that had been identified through new ways 

of working in areas such as patient flow and also enhancements in areas such 
as care home support, CCG infection control support to care homes and 
enhanced GP support. 

 
3.3 It was reported that a test and trace strategy was under development with a 

quick implementation phase, this would link into local Departments for Public 
Health. 
 

https://www.judiciary.uk/judgments/bayer-v-nhs-darlington-others/
https://www.judiciary.uk/judgments/bayer-v-nhs-darlington-others/
https://www.landmarkchambers.co.uk/court-of-appeal-upholds-lawfulness-of-nhs-avastin-choice-policy-for-wet-amd-patients/
https://www.landmarkchambers.co.uk/court-of-appeal-upholds-lawfulness-of-nhs-avastin-choice-policy-for-wet-amd-patients/


  

 

3.4 There was an emphasis on ensuring that all offers of returning practitioners 
are placed. 

 
3.5 The view was that there had been an excellent response to the first phase in 

managing the impact of the Coronavirus but an expectation that managing the 
second phase will be more complex. 

 
3.6 Amanda Pritchard reported that the ‘Level 4 Incident’ status would remain in 

place for the next 4 to 6 weeks.  The focus will be maintained in the areas of 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) supply, infection control and testing and 
tracing.  It was recognised that staff are working under significant pressure 
and it would be important to continue to undertake staff risk assessments.  
Other areas that were highlighted in the discussion included maintaining 
safety, a learning culture and locking-in any beneficial changes. 

 
3.7 Stephen Powis reported that there was an increased understanding about 

disease progression but it required further analysis.  Other points that were 
covered included: (a) there were fewer patients on the ward at the Nightingale 
Hospital based at the ExCel Centre in London and more patients were on 
Non-invasive ventilation (NIV), (b) the increased understanding about unusual 
presentations and (c) national issues linked to anaesthetic drugs and renal 
replacement therapy.  It was reported that staff testing work was being 
progressed for screening if asymptomatic. 

 
3.8 Julian Kelly led a general finance discussion but without any specific detail. 

 
LOCAL UPDATE 
 
4. Care Homes 
 
4.1 Our care homes have significant numbers of residents who have tested 

positive for or showed symptoms of Covid and have many staff off work due to 
Covid and other reasons. There have also been issues with understanding of 
infection prevention and control (IPC) measures, access to specialised IPC 
support and access to PPE stock. There is a national ‘train the trainer’ 
programme in place to address some of these issues, with visits and face to 
face training provided to the priority homes experiencing the most significant 
outbreaks.  

 
4.2 In addition, there is a requirement of CCG Directors of Nursing to ensure key 

measures are in place to support care homes, which are in line with the 
‘Enhanced Health in Care Homes’ Framework (updated and published March 
2020) and associated PCN DES. This is being planned and delivered by a 
collaboration of CCG, provider community services, Local Authority teams and 
general practices. We are starting from a good place in that we have a Care 
Home LES, a multidisciplinary integrated community team and recently 
implemented a scheme providing digitally enabled care homes with equipment 
to allow basic clinical measurements and communication between the home 
and primary care professionals with video consulting. 

 



  

 

5. Discharge to Assess Model 
 
5.1 In response to the COVID19 – Hospital Discharge Service requirements 

published by NHS England on 19 March 2020 a project group was established 
including representation from South Tyneside Alliance to develop and 
implement the Discharge to Assess model (D2A) whilst recognising the need 
to reduce flow of people into the acute hospital setting. To support the flow of 
patient discharges, the discharge lounge based in South Tyneside Hospital 
was extended to the main Outpatient Department to allow the delivery of an 8-
8 service, including an alignment of mental health support ensuring those 
people accessing the discharge lounge were offered mental health support 
where required. To support timelier discharges, individuals being discharged 
requiring care and support are triaged by the newly implemented Single Point 
of Conversation (SPoC) to the most appropriate pathway as outlined in the 
Hospital Discharge guidance, which operates in conjunction with the 
discharge lounge at 8am-8pm, 7 days per week. The SPoC includes the 
community integrated care team compromising of Nurses, Therapists, Social 
Care and additional support from Continuing Healthcare (CHC) team for 
people at the end of their life. The SPoC aims to ensure all patients are 
discharged on time and provided with an appropriate level of support post 
discharge. On-going discussions are being undertaken to support admission 
avoidance and preventing people from attending hospital, this includes 
consideration of alignment of existing teams resulting in one single referral 
point for community services and GP practices. 

 
6. Supporting people with Long Terms Conditions in South Tyneside 

during the COVID-19 Pandemic 
 

6.1 As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, there is an important task to identify 
practical ways that we can support people living with Long Term Conditions 
(LTCs) in South Tyneside. Supported self-management is of particular 
importance to people living with LTCs, who are at increased risk of severe 
illness from COVID-19. Early in March we started to think about how we could 
modify our LTC Strategy and Operational Plan for 2020/21 to help ease 
pressures in current COVID-19 situation – particularly thinking about what we 
can do to support the system and what we can do to support residents. A 
number of key areas were identified and we are making significant progress in 
moving these forward locally via our LTC Alliance:- 
 
i) Health Coaching & Primary Care Network (PCN) Link Workers - Our 

commissioned A Better U Health Coaching service and PCN Link Worker 
service, delivered by First Contact Clinical (FCC), continue to support 
vulnerable and at risk patients who have non-medical needs, including 
those who are shielding. This means that they can provide emotional and 
psychosocial support, as well as coaching, to encourage self-
management of health and wellbeing. The services are connecting people 
with the emerging offers across the system that can support them to 
manage practical needs in the current COVID-19 situation such as access 
to food and medication. All conversations are delivered remotely, by 
telephone or video. 



  

 

ii) Digital Rehabilitation & Education Programmes - LTC rehabilitation face to 
face services have been suspended, however we quickly identified that if 
we don’t continue to support our community patients this could lead to 
increased demand on the already overstretched services. We have 
worked to identify alternative ways of supporting patients with as minimal 
face to face contact as possible. We have rolled out my mhealth apps for 
those with diabetes, COPD, asthma or heart conditions. The my mhealth 
apps are perfectly placed to support NHS services and patients at this 
time and can help to deliver a range of functions for LTC patients, for 
example remote delivery of rehabilitation and education programmes, self-
management plans and inhaler technique optimisation. Working with my 
mhealth we have been able to deliver virtual training to clinicians to 
support and enable them to use the apps with their patients. Our local 
clinical teams have embraced this opportunity and we have seen some 
amazing results. Our teams have signed up over 300 patients to date. 

 
iii) Care & Support Planning - We have also developed a care and support 

toolkit which is designed to support healthcare professionals to signpost 
patients with long-term conditions, identified in the high risk groups, to 
information to that will help them self-manage at home. Having quick 
access to the right information creates the opportunity for a ‘better 
conversation’ between the person with LTC/s and a care professional. 
This has been shared with South Tyneside practices and is available via 
HealthPathways. 

 
iv) Peer Pal Model - To support the #QuitForCOVID campaign a Peer Pal 

model will be implemented for those who wish to Stop Smoking.  This will 
allow people who have a lived experience of quitting themselves to offer 
support, advice and guidance (where appropriate) to those who have 
been identified as smokers and have a desire to quit.  The Peer Pal model 
will be a remote approach whereby people who have been recognised as 
a potential quitter will be given the option of linking in with Peer Pals, 
either as a group or a one to one via the use of WhatsApp.  The Peer Pals 
will have a good link in with a Volunteer Co-ordinator who will ensure that 
all content discussed is appropriate and that all Peer Pals are aware of 
what services to signpost to if there are any queries or concerns they are 
unable to support with.  This approach will encourage people to develop 
their knowledge, skills and confidence to manage their health condition by 
speaking to others with a lived experience, and enable them to do what 
matters to them. 

 
v) Smokefree South Tyneside - Stop Smoking Services in South Tyneside 

are now operating remotely via telephone-based consultations with new 
systems in place for collection and contactless delivery of NRT where 
required, via pharmacies and the South Tyneside Council COVID-19 
Support Hub for our most vulnerable clients – a script and pathway has 
been developed for call handlers at the support hub to identify smokers 
contacting the hub and providing an offer of stop smoking support and/or 
access to NRT for temporary abstinence. An audit has taken place to 
identify which providers (GP, pharmacy and community) continue to 



  

 

provide services with database updated weekly and any key changes 
communicated to partners and the general public via web and social 
media. The ‘new’ stop smoking service offer is now promoted via 
www.southtyneside.gov.uk including the option of ‘NRT for temporary 
abstinence’ for those self-isolating or shielding who require quick and 
easy access to NRT to cope with cravings – this has been communicated 
to all pharmacies delivering services with no issues identified thus far. 
Work is ongoing to identify further ‘virtual’ options for support such as 
online, via social media and through smart phone apps – existing national 
sources of support are highlighted via www.southtyneside.gov.uk/smoking  
linked to the national #QuitforCOVID campaign and 
www.todayistheday.co.uk and at a regional/ICS level, officers are 
pursuing a jointly-commissioned smokefree smart phone app via PHE and 
Fresh North East. 

 
7. SATS Squad 

 
7.1 A group of 17 volunteers are delivering vital oxygen testing tests to Covid-19 

patients at home in the borough. If a test is needed GPs send a text with the 
address of the patient and a member of the team heads out with a pulse 
oximeter to safely drop off oxygen saturation tests to a patient’s home. 
Members of the team are on standby 24/7.  To date:- 

i) SATS squad have now completed over 140 deliveries; 
ii) 75% practices in the Borough are using SATS Squad (16/21) now 

compared to 45% (10/21) in week 1; 
iii) East PCN biggest users of service with 57% of calls being completed 

across this area (24/42) (week commencing 27th April); 
iv) Extra drivers deployed for busiest times (10am – 1pm on Monday’s and 

Friday’s) 
v) End of April/beginning of May, 100% jobs completed within an hour of 

the request being received. 
 

8. HealthPathways 
 
8.1 HealthPathways was introduced into South Tyneside in 2016. Since that point 

it has become a central corner stone of the South Tyneside way of working- 
as the only truly system wide IT system. Through its developmental process, 
which requires system wide dialogue, it has acted as a catalyst for system 
relationships and transformation. In addition it’s outputs now total over 400 
localised condition specific pathways of care which are accessed by over 500 
individuals within South Tyneside every month, providing standardised 
approach to primary care management which is localised to the service 
provision and agreements within South Tyneside. 

 
8.2 During the COVID outbreak the HealthPathways platform has been used as 

the central repository for communication across the system. Streamliners 
(providers of HealthPathways) began planning how the platform could support 
the community before the UK had started to actively prepare. The package 
has provided a template to all of the HP teams around the world to manage 
the communications aspects of the pandemic, and to give clinicians the 

http://www.southtyneside.gov.uk/smoking
http://www.todayistheday.co.uk/


  

 

national and local information they need. A suite of pages have been localised 
to keep primary care up to date on the service changes enforced through 
COVID.  

 
8.3 This suite of pages have now been viewed 7,778 since they were introduced 

in late March 2020. 
 

8.4 Feedback received: 
 
“I go to HealthPathways. And I think HealthPathways should be commended 
for having very, very clear messaging, very clear links.… I mean the college 
put out information, it is almost too much information and too many websites, 
actually, but I actually think HealthPathways is the clearest place to get 
everything you want.” 
 

9. Social Prescribing Update 
 

9.1 First Contact Clinical's (FCC) Social Prescribing teams have now received 
shielded lists from 13 practices, a total of 3344 patient names. 13% of which 
are known to the shielded hub. Of the remaining 2898, 28% have been 
contacted to date. 79% of which did not need any additional support, 14% 
were not contactable, 5% were connected with the hub / local voluntary, 
community or social enterprises (VCSEs) / other providers and 2% will be 
support with emotional and mental wellbeing needs by the FCC Link Workers. 
 

9.2 Week commencing 4th May the induction of 10 volunteers took place to add 
capacity to the team to make the initial shielded calls. They were recruited via 
Inspire South Tyneside, which meant it was a simple and quick process. They 
were provided with a remote induction that included training around emotional 
health and wellbeing, as well as guidance on information governance, 
safeguarding and boundaries. They offer fantastic skills to the team, for 
example they include psychology students, retired social worker and teachers. 
Most looking to offer a few hours each day. They will join a daily huddle in 
which they will be provided with further supervision and an opportunity to learn 
from each other.  
 

9.3 In addition to the shielded list FCC's PCN Link Workers and our ABU Coaches 
have received 235 referrals over the last 2 months. 
 

9.4 The training team have also made available the following remote training: 
Making Every Contact Count (MECC), Emotional Health and Wellbeing, 
Smoking VBA and Alcohol IBA. 
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COVID-19 PANDEMIC – UPDATE 

 
South Tyneside CCG – May 2020 

 
1. Context 
 
Due to the global Covid-19 pandemic, there have been dramatic changes to the health, 
care and wellbeing arrangements for South Tyneside residents. 
 
This paper is intended to give a broad overview of some of the changes that have taken 
place in South Tyneside over the preceding two months and an indication of the current 
local position. 
 
It is important to note the fast pace of changes that are being implemented in the Covid 
and post-Covid phases.  Hence, this report represents a point in time and some of the 
information within will become quickly superseded, possibly even between the point of 
writing and the Governing Body meeting date itself. 
 
2. Current Local Context 
 
As it appears as though we are moving through the first Covid-19 peak, there are 
questions about the scale of the impact that has been felt locally.  Therefore, some of 
the most recent data on Covid-19 cases and age-standardised mortality are set out for 
information.  It is important to note that it is too early to be able to draw definitive 
conclusions from these data, so the purpose of including these in this paper is to help 
understand some of the indications but also the limitations and context of the 
information. 
 
This first chart shows the total number of confirmed Covid-19 cases (up to the 10th May) 
as a crude rate of the population per 100,000. 
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Note, these rates will continue to increase as testing becomes more widespread and 
hence positive cases increase. 
 
On this day, South Tyneside had the third highest local authority rate in England, 
Sunderland the second highest.  However, this position relative to others changes daily.  
Also, there are many factors to consider when comparing areas, which makes this is an 
unreliable measure of both the prevalence of Covid and the scale of the prevalence 
relative to other areas.  
 
Issues to consider when comparing the prevalence of cases per area: 

• Batch reporting – numbers do not reflect the daily testing there is often a few 
days lag between specimen taken and results reported, which is often done in 
batches which is why there are marked fluctuations over time. 

• Numbers of test – the more people you test the more likely you are to find 
positive cases.  

• Where you test – the more accessible the location the more people can access a 
test. 

• Who you test – testing hospitals, health and care staff, public.  The more people 
who are routinely and actively encouraged to be tested will generate more 
chance of positive tests being found. 

• Test sensitivity – this varies by laboratory, the more sensitive the test, the more 
true positive results are identified.  It is of interest that the three areas reporting 
the highest prevalence all use the same laboratory for testing. 

• As hospital inpatients are more likely to be tested and these patients are more 
likely to be older, a crude rate is an not ideal indicator as it does not take into 
account the age structure of the population. That is, older populations are more 
likely to have complications associated with Covid or be in a care home or 
hospital and therefore more likely to be tested. 

• Only pillar 1 testing (those testing areas arranged locally) is included in local 
figures, pillar 2 testing (nationally run testing programmes) results are not 
attributed to local areas.  Therefore, this will affect the figures for areas such as 
South Tyneside which established early, effective local testing. 

 
This second chart shows the percentage change in Covid cases confirmed over the 
latest seven days, when compared with the previous seven days.  There is a clear 
decrease, similar to the national position.  However, this could increase as testing roll-
out continues and when contact tracing commences again. 
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The third chart gives age-standardised mortality rates per 100,000 population by local 
authority area, published by the Office of National Statistics. 
 

 
 
The chart shows both the mortality rates from Covid-19 (where there was any mention 
on the death certificate) and all-cause mortality.  It is important to consider both, as 
potentially there are some deaths that were Covid-related, but not recorded on the 
death certificate eg if the person was not tested. In addition, there may be an excess 
number of deaths which have occurred as a indirect consequence of the response to 
Covid-19. 
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Overall, South Tyneside had an age-standardised Covid-related mortality of 27.3 per 
100,000 population.  This was not statistically different from the total England rate of 
36.6 per 100,000 or the North East rate which was 37.5 per 100,000 population.  For all-
cause mortality, this was 159.3 per 100,000 for South Tyneside, which was not 
statistically different to the England rate of 161.0 per 100,000 or the North East rate 
which was 174.2 per 100,000 population. 
 
The fourth and final chart gives those age-standardised mortality rates by deprivation 
decile.  On this chart, 1 = most deprived decile of the population, 10 = least deprived.  
Note – this is at National level as insufficient data is available to produce a South 
Tyneside picture as yet.   
 

 
 
It is important to note that the impact of Covid-19 is not felt equally. 
 
The wider determinants of health which existed prior to Covid-19 continue and it is clear 
that the pandemic is having a greater impact on the most disadvantaged population 
groups.  Therefore, it is of critical importance that organisations work in partnership 
locally, with an unrelenting focus on the most vulnerable and disadvantaged residents of 
South Tyneside. 
 
3. South Tyneside Alliance – Covid Response Governance 
 
In managing the Covid-19 response, South Tyneside CCG has worked closely with 
partners and established a governance arrangement in line with best practice for Joint 
Emergency Services Interoperability Principles (JESIP) and Emergency Planning, 
Resilience and Response guidance. 
 
An Incident Control Room was established with a three-tier rota, which moved to virtual 
operations during March 2020.  Daily Executive meetings have taken place remotely, 
with Silver meetings to support this at least weekly. 
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Pre-existing partnership arrangements have been used to ensure coordination and 
cohesion through the Alliance Business Group monthly, Alliance Leadership Team 
fortnightly and regular meetings of the individual Alliances.  Surge calls take place daily 
with key operational colleagues across the system to mange day-to-day issues.  In 
addition, there are daily and weekly calls with care homes, daily bulletins to primary 
care and a weekly GP webinar. 
 
South Tyneside CCG directors have had at least weekly meetings with Sunderland 
CCG equivalents and are represented on the calls at ICP and ICS level.  South 
Tyneside Alliance is represented on the Local Resilience Forum by the Director of 
Public Health. 
 
All of these have taken place remotely, by either telephone or video conference. 
 
CCG Standing Orders Standing Orders allow for emergency powers and urgent 
decisions to be taken, with the Governing Body approving a revised temporary Scheme 
of Delegation on 26th March 2020 (for review in July 2020).  A revised committee 
structure has been implemented to streamline decision making. 
 
4. South Tyneside Alliance – Partnership Working 
 
A support hub was introduced for the most vulnerable residents in South Tyneside, in 
particular those within the extremely vulnerable health group who have been asked to 
stay at home for at least 12 weeks.  The Covid-19 Support Hub has access to food, 
medication and wellbeing support for residents primarily with critical conditions and 
therefore ‘shielding’ from Covid-19.   
  
South Tyneside Council has also been supporting residents who have struggled 
financially, such as through a hardship fund and Council Tax support, as well as 
business support including businesses access grants, business rate support and 
finance solutions.   
 
Under the #LoveSouthTyneside banner, a #Proud to Support campaign has been 
launched by South Tyneside partners including the CCG, to celebrate staff, clinicians, 
professionals, partners and volunteers who have gone above and beyond the call of 
duty to support the Covid-19 response. 
 
5. Primary Care 
 
General Practice in particular has changed dramatically over the last two months, from 
a model of almost entirely face-to-face consultations to almost all consultations taking 
place by video call or telephone.  This has been supported and enabled by rapid, 
dynamic work from and across all Practices, working really closely with partners, led by 
the Clinical Directors of the three Primary Care Networks (PCNs) and the CCG in 
tandem. 
 
A Primary Care Escalation Plan has been developed, allowing Practices to quickly 
establish buddying and at-scale arrangements dependent on the level of pressure 
experienced at any given time.  These arrangements have included separating the 
streams of ‘green’ and ‘red’ patients depending on Covid status, to ensure high 
standards of infection control and patient care. 
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A ‘red’ hub was established in Stanhope Parade, South Shields to operate seven days 
per week and broadly for all Covid or symptomatic patients in primary care.  Following 
remote assessment by their own General Practice, if the patient was determined to be 
‘red’ and needed face-to-face assessment, they could be seen in the hub or via a home 
visit if housebound.  As the first Covid-19 peak has progressed, this hub has now been 
stood down (with the ability to be stood back up rapidly if needed), with care for these 
patients now provided by their own GP.  Covid testing for health and care staff has also 
been established at the red hub, which continues. 
 
GPs have been supported by the ‘SATS Squad’, which has been featured on local 
media in recent weeks.  This enables a GP to quickly dispatch monitoring equipment to 
patients’ homes, in order to assess the level of oxygen in the blood.  This is a key 
measure that allows GPs to make quick, informed decisions about the care needed for 
each individual patient.  This has been enabled by excellent partnership working across 
the third sector, Council, FT and GP colleagues. 
 
Although Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) supplies remain a constant concern, 
local arrangements have worked well in ensuring any issues have been addressed 
quickly. 
 
During the Covid outbreak the HealthPathways platform has been used as the central 
repository for communication across the system.  Streamliners (providers of 
HealthPathways) began planning how the platform could support the community before 
the UK had started to actively prepare.  The package has provided a template to all of 
the HP teams around the world to manage the communications aspects of the 
pandemic, and to give clinicians the national and local information they need.  A suite of 
pages have been localised to keep primary care up to date on the service changes 
enforced through Covid. 
 
Community pharmacy colleagues continue to play a vital role in the health and care 
system, with particularly active participation in the surge calls.  The introduction of the 
24/7 on call pharmacist to support other clinicians and the increase in availability of 
palliative care medicines have solved key challenges for South Tyneside patients. 
 
6. Hospital Care 
 
On 17th March 2020, Simon Stevens, NHS Chief Executive, and Amanda Pritchard, 
NHS Chief Operating Officer, wrote out to all NHS organisations (copied to Local 
Authorities) setting out a series of actions that were to be implemented with immediate 
effect to deal with the intense pressure that was anticipated over the weeks to follow: 
 

 Free-up the maximum possible inpatient and critical care capacity; 
 Prepare for, and respond to, the anticipated large numbers of Covid-19 patients 

who would need respiratory support; 
 Support staff and maximise their availability; 
 Play our part in the wider population measures newly announced by the 

Government; 
 Stress-test operational readiness; and  
 Remove routine burdens, so as to facilitate the above. 
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The letter is available here: 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-
content/uploads/sites/52/2020/03/20200317-NHS-COVID-letter-FINAL.pdf 
 
To enact these changes, a substantial number of interventions were implemented 
nationally, regionally and locally, including postponement of non-urgent elective care 
and a substantial increase in the emphasis on discharge arrangements, for medically fit 
patients.  To support this, a number of changes were agreed around pathways, such as: 

 All referrals subject to clinical triage; 
 Routine referrals and planned routine follow-ups managed through face to face 

consultations, virtual consultations, advice and guidance, deferment or 
discharge; 

 Urgent and 2 week wait referrals continued, but subject to consultant scrutiny to 
ensure 2 week wait criteria applied robustly; 

 Advice and Guidance (a national programme that provides a platform for advice 
to GPs by email) as the preferred default for any queries relating to existing 
cases or the urgency of new referrals. 

 
Some specific changes within South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS FT to draw 
Governing Body members’ attention to: 

 Inpatient areas have been reconfigured iteratively to ensure separation between 
Covid positive and negative cohorts; 

 Critical Care capacity across STSFT was increased markedly; 
 Respiratory Assessment Units were deployed rapidly on both the South Tyneside 

site (opening hours 0800 – 1800) and on the Sunderland site (open 24 hours) 
with operating hours matched against demand; 

 All outpatients have been triaged which has resulted in a face to face 
appointment, a virtual appointment (video, telephone, letter) or were discharged 
with advice. Provision of support via “Advice and Guidance” was enhanced; 

 Elective cancer and clinically urgent surgery have continued, but elective 
capacity has been moved to support non-elective services; 

 A number of services are primarily driven by acute work (eg vascular) or cancer 
(eg urology) and therefore have seen less change than other services; 

 In radiology, there has been increased triage and a reduction in routine work; 
 Reductions in screening programmes have been in line with national guidance; 
 Where these changes have reduced demand, staff have been redeployed. 

 
To reduce the waiting times in ED departments, people accessing the Emergency 
Department at South Tyneside Hospital are now jointly triaged by the Mental Health 
Service provided by Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear Foundation Trust 
(CNTW) and physical health services provided by South Tyneside and Sunderland 
Foundation Trust (STSFT).  The impact has been a reduction in waiting times and also 
ensuring that the person receives the right care. 
 
Since the 20th March 2020, a discharge to assessment model has been developed in 
respect to facilitate a timely safe discharge.  This model has involved a team of 
community health, therapists, social workers, admin and CHC Nurses who are the main 
point of referral from the hospital, coordinating care in alternative settings for patients on 
four pathways.  As part of this process people who are discharged through the hospital 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/03/20200317-NHS-COVID-letter-FINAL.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/03/20200317-NHS-COVID-letter-FINAL.pdf
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discharge lounge are also able to be seen by the Psychiatric Liaison Team, and 
followed up within the community, when appropriate, within 24 hours. 
 
The table below gives an indication of the impact of these changes, and of the changes 
in patient behaviour during the Covid period, at South Tyneside District Hospital. 
 

South Tyneside District Hospital 11th November 
2019 

11th May 2020 

Type 1 A&E Attendances (A&E) 156 104 

Type 3 A&E Attendances (UTC) 50 29 

G&A Bed Occupancy 93% (278/292) 86% (164/191) 

Long Stay Patients (7days+) 149 56 

Long Stay Patients (14days+) 84 20 

Long Stay Patients (21days+) 52 9 

Critical Care Beds Available 6 16 

Critical Care Beds Occupied 5 9 

 
Like all parts of the NHS, STSFT has had to rapidly change care pathways and adapt 
the hospital environment on a scale never before experienced in order to keep patients 
safe.  Although the nation appears to be passing the first peak of the pandemic as the 
number of COVID-19 cases in hospital is stabilising, these services must remain in a 
state of readiness to respond flexibly to COVID-19 pressures for the foreseeable future.   
As attention turns to the recovery of services in the weeks and months ahead, this must 
be with full attention to the stringent infection prevention and control measures that must 
remain in place. 
 
7. Mental Health 
 
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Mental Health strategy is of even greater 
importance and there have been immediate actions to support people living with 
emotional and mental health need in South Tyneside.  
 
To support children, young people and adults a series of self directed management 
tools have been developed.  The Lifecycle and Mental Health Support Teams continue 
to support vulnerable and at risk patients who have been referred to the service. 
However, referral across the lifespan service has reduced since the pandemic. 
Therefore, the team has developed self-directed management tools to support children, 
young people, carers and adults.  These aim to provide emotional and psychosocial 
support, as well as coaching, to encourage self-management of health and wellbeing.  
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As well as being accessible across the borough, the alliance has also provided targeted 
support for the following cohorts: 

 Children and Young People accessing school due to their parents being essential 
key workers 

 Children and Young People who have an Education, Health and Care Plan 
(EHCP) 

 Young Carers 
 People with Long Term Conditions 
 Parents 
 People discharged from South Tyneside Hospital  
 Children / Young People and Adults in temporary accommodation 

 
As part of this support, individuals are encouraged to consider whether a self-referral is 
appropriate.  The services are working to ensure the right support gets provided to the 
right people whilst also using the capacity that exists across the borough to support 
people. 
 
Whilst the Lifecycle service is still offering some face to face support, alternative digital 
consultations are now being offered across the age range, with video conference and 
telephone conferencing being the preferred option.  Virtual consultations using AccuRx 
have been rolled out as a pilot due to tight timescales, however initial feedback has 
been positive. 
 
Further work is presently being progressed to develop group interventions online, due to 
come on line by the end of May 2020.  It is hypothesised that this will increase access to 
support whilst also having a positive impact on waiting times and non-attenders. 
 
South Tyneside Alliance were successful in securing NHS England funding to deliver a 
non-clinical based crisis intervention service (TIAC), which went live from early April 
2020.  The service is supporting adults aged 18 or over, with a range of offers including 
assistance to help develop coping strategies for individuals to become more self-reliant, 
supporting people to make contact with other organisations, and developing support 
networks to become more independent.  The impact of Covid19 has meant the offer is 
not predominantly face-to-face at present, however initial feedback has still been 
positive. 
 
The need to support all providers offering mental health support within the borough 
across the lifespan was acknowledged early within the planning stage.  Therefore, all 
commissioned services have a linked commissioner who contacts them at least twice 
per week, to offer practical support and guidance across a range of issues, including: 

 PPE 
 Staffing Issues 
 Development of continuity plans 
 Signposting support from other partners 
 Sickness monitoring 
 Access to support for staff 
 Support to access testing 
 Financial Aid 
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Feedback from providers has been positive, with no provider at this time expressing 
concern around their sustainability.  The commissioner link role has also supported in 
providing information around supporting the mental health and wellbeing of staff teams. 
 
In line with the SEND Covid-19 guidance the local authority SEND team, in 
collaboration with individuals and their families, are flagging young people who are at 
risk of deterioration of mental health presentation, and providing enhanced observation 
to minimise the current impact in relation to the individual’s coping strategies.  As part of 
this process and in line with the published guidelines, individuals requiring support are 
flagged within the dynamic risk register process. 
 
The Lifecycle service offers counselling and bereavement support.  However, in addition, 
initial mapping has commenced to establish future demand and capacity, to ensure that 
we are able to support people, and help then heal from the impact of the pandemic.  
This includes assisting them to be able to adjust to the “new normal”. 
 
District Nurses are regularly supporting individuals with Long Term Conditions, or who 
present with frailty.  Therefore, initial discussions have commenced between the IAPT 
service and District Nursing to ensure that people who would benefit from the IAPT 
service are accessing it.   
 
8. Care Homes 
 
The CCG team and colleagues from thge Joint Commissioning Team are working 
extremely closely with others from Public Health, Primary Care, STSFT and South 
Tyneside Council to ensure that we are supporting our homes to manage the difficult 
circumstances that they are working within currently to support some of our most frail 
and vulnerable residents.  
 
This support consists of daily calls to our homes to ensure they have sufficient PPE 
supplies, review their staffing levels and is also an opportunity to discuss any difficulties 
they may be experiencing and to offer any support that is needed.  There is also a 
weekly conference call with care home managers and bi-weekly conference calls with 
their regional managers.  These calls have support from the key colleagues in the 
health and care system, where issues such as PPE, infection control, implementation of 
the latest PHE guidance are all discussed with them.  
  
The homes have also been supported from a Primary Care perspective and have had 
substantially increased access to support from our local GPs, such as via the new 
advice line. 
 
Staff testing for care homes in South Tyneside was implemented significantly earlier 
that the national testing systems being in place.  For care homes, testing for staff was 
introduced via the hub at Stanhope Parade on 3rd April 2020.  From that date, 
arrangements were made for care homes staff to have access to a test at home, 
coordinated via the hub at Stanhope Parade, if they did not have access to transport.  
Since then, the national arrangements via the Gov.uk portal were extended to social 
care, but the local arrangement is enabling a responsive, effective service.  
 
In addition to the broader testing already in place (eg for patients discharged from 
hospital), arrangements for the STSFT community team to test care home residents 
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were introduced from 24th April 2020, initially targeting the care homes that were highest 
priority.  Through local working arrangements, a Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) 
was formally agreed on 4th May 2020, to offer testing to all symptomatic residents.  This 
is currently being updated to reflect the asymptomatic testing available to staff and 
residents via the government portal. 
 
The local testing has enabled the care homes to access testing quickly, and to link with 
GPs to get results, strengthening the links with primary care and the community nursing 
team, providing nursing and clinical support.  The discussion with the core care home 
team (CCG, GP, social care, JCU, public health, community services etc) have also 
helped the homes to look out for changes in residents earlier than the onset of 
traditional symptoms of a temperature and cough, such as reduced fluid intake, fatigue, 
or diarrhoea and vomiting.   
 
Care home data are monitored a daily basis in terms of the number of residents who are 
confirmed COVID positive and those who are displaying symptoms.  This is then used 
to inform the activity of the local system in supporting homes, linked through the daily 
and weekly phone calls.  The data collection also provides information in relation to the 
number of staff who are accessing testing, those who are positive and those who are 
absent from work.  
 
The CCG has secured additional infection control support for care homes and 
discussions continue at a national level as to what additional support will be provided to 
support our homes.  
  
All older people care homes in-borough now have a linked Community Mental Health 
Nurse, who makes contact a minimum of once per week, to offer advice and support, 
and where necessary provide hands on intervention. The Community Mental Health 
Nurse is part of a bigger multi-disciplinary team and often joint visits are offered in 
collaboration with psychiatrists.  This is being further developed to look at providing 
support to include specialist provision, such as those supporting people with Learning 
Disabilities. 
 
In relation to the guidance, all homes have been made aware of the relevant PHE 
guidance that they need to be adhering to and partners have worked through the 
expectations with them, to help them navigate it.  All care homes have been proactively 
supported with access to PPE.  Homes have access to their own distribution chains but 
where they have difficulties the Council, CCG and Local Resilience Forum have been 
coordinating and providing additional supplies to them. 
 
9. Summary and Recommendations 
 
With the changes that are outlined in this paper and excellent adherence to the non-
medical interventions taken nationally, the local system has been able to deal with this 
peak in Covid activity.  However, it should be noted that there are notable potential 
consequences in terms of delayed care, changes to healthcare-seeking behaviour, 
isolation, let alone the economic impacts on health and wellbeing.  As a strong 
partnership in South Tyneside, we will work through these challenges together.  We 
must also be vigilant for an potential future peaks in Covid-19. 
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The Governing Body is asked to note the contents of this report as an update on Covid-
19 developments in South Tyneside. 
 
The Governing Body is asked to acknowledge the outstanding efforts of the staff, 
volunteers, residents and patients of the CCG and partner organisations who have gone 
above and beyond the call of duty during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
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SHAPING OUR NEW FUTURE 

LEARNING AND MOVING ON FROM COVID-19 
 

South Tyneside CCG 
 
1. Introduction 
 
As we continue to navigate the ongoing COVID-19 crisis, we are now proactively 
starting to think about the key stages that need to be taken as we move from a reactive 
phase towards recovery. How do we move from reaction to maintenance, from 
maintenance to transition, from transition to recovery? 
 
The main challenge for us now is to turn our minds to ‘how do we come out of this well- 
how do we utilise the learning we have gained through this period’. We have seen 
significant impact on members of the public, patients, communities, stakeholders and 
staff.  We have also seen huge numbers of people volunteering formally or informally, 
helping out in their local communities, as well as rapid transformation of health and care 
services like we’ve never seen before. This is an opportunity to challenge ourselves to 
think how we can do things better and how we, as a South Tyneside Alliance, reflect, 
think about and build upon the positives and negatives experienced. 
 
2. What do we mean by recovery? 
 
We use the term ‘recovery’ to be consistent with agencies locally, regionally and 
nationally but it is perhaps not the right phrase.  The whole of society has changed, not 
just the health and social care sector, from which there is no turning back.  
 
Recovery is a complex and long running process.  We will all have to accept that 
recovery may not mean returning to business as usual as we have previously known 
and recovery will mean different things to different components of our system. 
 
Recovery is defined as the coordinated process of supporting those affected rebuilding, 
restoring and rehabilitating the community following an emergency, but it is more than 
simply the replacement of what has been destroyed and the rehabilitation of those 
affected.  It includes and goes beyond progression to normal working conditions and 
support for the emotional, social, and physical wellbeing of those affected.  
 
As we emerge from the COVID dominated period, we need to re-establish a new 
‘normal’. Rather than looking to recreate the pre-COVID business as usual approach, 
we must ensure that the lessons from this period are taken and used to inform the 
development of our future business as usual model.   
 
We also have a unique opportunity to reflect on those things which were previous 
considered business as usual, but which have been stopped for the duration of COVID. 
Is it important to re-start each of these activities or are there opportunities to completely 
rethink some of the previous BAU tasks which haven’t been missed, added value or 
created risk?  For example, do we want to go back to an old model of our residents 
routinely turning up to endless face-to-face outpatient clinics with multiple different 
clinicians, or do we build on the changes in patient behaviour, technology and joint 
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working, to develop new, remote, multi-morbidity clinics where one patient is supported 
simultaneously by multiple clinicians. 
 
We really need to consider what we ‘stop doing’, what we ‘start doing’ and what we 
‘continue to do’ or ‘accelerate’. 
 
Recovery should commence as soon as safely possible but also make allowances for a 
period of disruption whilst the response is on-going.  However, expectations will rise as 
time progresses, and there will be pressure to restore services to demonstrate that the 
system is coping.  We have an opportunity to regenerate, transform and revitalise. 
 
The recovery phase should begin at the earliest opportunity following the onset of an 
emergency, running in tandem with the response to the emergency.  It continues until 
the disruption has been rectified, demands on services have returned to normal levels, 
and the needs of those affected (directly and indirectly) have been met.  While the 
response phase to an emergency can be relatively short, the recovery phase may 
endure for months, years or even decades. 
 
3. South Tyneside Governance  
 
Each organisation has its own accountability but we must approach recovery planning 
as a system if we are to ensure the maximum benefit for our residents, patients, staff 
and stakeholders. 
 
Hence, there are a number of mechanisms to coordinate across localities, including at 
an Integrated Care System (North East and North Cumbria) and Integrated Care 
Partnership (ICP) level, which South Tyneside CCG is part of. 
 
At a ‘place’ level, this will be enacted through the South Tyneside Recovery Co-
ordination Group (STRCG), consisting of a small number of representatives from across 
the South Tyneside system, with responsibility for the coordination of the recovery plan.  
 
The STRCG will be accountable to the Alliance Business Group, under the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, during and post response period.  The Alliance Business Group will 
have oversight of the South Tyneside Recovery plan with individual organisations 
maintaining overall responsibility for these plans where applicable.  The direct reporting 
into South Tyneside CCG will be through the Executive Committee and hence into 
Governing Body. 
 
STRCG will be chaired by the CCG Executive Director of Operations, with leadership 
from the Alliance Programme Director, and include representation from STSFT, CNTW, 
Primary Care, STC, JCU, NECS and Inspire South Tyneside. 
 
4. Recovery Plan Development 
 
To ensure strategic focus of the changes that will best benefit patients, the recovery 
plan will need to be developed in a rapid, agile way.  Therefore, ABG will have oversight 
of a clear recovery plan, but it should be recognised that the plan will evolve 
dynamically. 
 



Page 5 of 9 

The plan will be multi-layered with numerous interdependencies and will ensure a 
number of possible future scenarios have been considered.  The STRCG will ensure 
engagement across the system is undertaken to inform the plan.  
 
The following matrix helps us to consider our response to the Covid-19 crisis whilst also 
considering how we use our learning to inform our new approaches. 
 
 

 
 
Our plan will be developed at a ‘Place’ based level however this will be done in 
conjunction with the work on a Central ICP recovery plan, which in turn will ultimately 
inform the NE&NC ICS recovery strategy.  This will ensure that best use is made of 
resource, that there is strategic cohesion and that maximum benefit is achieved from 
those things that are best done collectively. 
 
The plan will be developed and will enable us to consider potential future scenarios 
using modelling and population health management techniques and will draw together 
many different strands of recovery work already underway within South Tyneside for 
example Primary Care recovery, Community Care recovery etc.  The plan will ensure 
the ‘jigsaw’ pieces join together with no detrimental impact on any part of the system.  
 
The recovery plan will consider a number of layers, including the operational aspects of 
the CCG as an organisation, the system health and care aspects, in addition to the 
broader aspects of health and wellbeing.  Recovery needs to be considered from the 
perspectives of the population, resident or patient and of the relevant service. 
 
Timescales are challenging to be precise with, given the many unknown aspects of the 
virus (not least around any potential immunity.  It seems prudent to plan for the following 
periods: 

 Short term: 3-6 months (the immediate actions) 
 Medium term: 6 months – 3 years 
 Long term: 3 – 5 years (may need to adjust over time as medium-term situation 

unfolds) 
 
It is important that we do not just consider the direct impacts of Covid-19 when planning 
recovery, but that we also consider the broader and more indirect impacts.  Although 
this is not exhaustive, the following chart is useful for articulating some aspects worthy 
of consideration. 
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# 
Attribution to Victor Tseng @VectorSting  
 
On 29th April 2020, Simon Stevens (NHS Chief Executive) and Amanda Pritchard (NHS 
Chief Operating Officer) wrote to all NHS organisations (with copies to partner 
agencies), to set out the expectations around the second phase of the NHS response to 
Covid-19, many of which relate to the early stages of recovery planning. 
 
In the work we are doing with our partners on system recovery, this letter sets out some 
important expectations (as detailed in Appendix 1) and is available here: 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/second-
phase-of-nhs-response-to-covid-19-letter-to-chief-execs-29-april-2020.pdf 
 
It is important to note that this letter sets out some aspects of recovery planning (all of 
which are within the South Tyneside plan), but that it has a relatively narrow focus 
predominantly on the healthcare needs of specific patient groups.  The recovery 
planning for South Tyneside must have a broader focus than this, whilst addressing the 
elements within it.  For example, there has been a great deal of national focus on 
shielding for people who are vulnerable to Covid-19, but there is a much greater 
challenge around supporting those people who are vulnerable to isolation. 
 
There are a number of considerations that have been raised in the early stages of 
recovery planning, some examples of which are below: 
 
For example, some of the specific elements of the plan will include: 

 Ongoing impact of Covid-19 – risk of further Covid-19 peaks, rehabilitation of 
patients, testing & tracing, PPE availability, effect on capacity due to estate and 
working practice changes 

 Retaining positive changes – video consultation, agile working, environmental 
impact 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/second-phase-of-nhs-response-to-covid-19-letter-to-chief-execs-29-april-2020.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/second-phase-of-nhs-response-to-covid-19-letter-to-chief-execs-29-april-2020.pdf
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 Workforce considerations – technological advances, mental health, burnout, the 
impact of social distancing, home working and redeployment 

 Working with and supporting communities – the incredible volunteer response, 
civic pride and commitment 

 The most vulnerable – increases to existing inequalities, the unequal impact of 
Covid, delays in presentation to services, safeguarding 

 Public health and prevention – mental health and wellbeing, screening and 
immunisation uptake, social prescribing support for high risk, vulnerable and 
isolated people 

 Wider determinants of health – economic impact, unemployment, school 
closures, poverty, housing 

 Impact on patient care – impact of delayed presentation, diagnostic availability, 
long term condition management, changes to coping behaviours 

 Impact on healthcare services – elective waiting lists, non-elective delay and 
capacity  

 Communications – internal and external 
 
5. The 4Ls Approach 

 
To inform the development of the South Tyneside system recovery plan, feedback is 
being sought from across the system in relation to their experiences from this period.  
To support this we will be using the 4Ls (liked, loathed, learned, longed for) 
methodology which is outlined below.  This methodology is being used by all partners 
across the system, so that the learning can be connected and considered collectively. 
Information is being gathered from clinicians, professionals, support teams, volunteers, 
patients and communities through two main mechanisms: 
 

 Face to face (remotely) in focus groups and facilitated workshops, through Zoom 
 Platforms to record comments and feedback electronically, predominantly via 

Padlet, but also through email for some groups and communities 
 

This methodology will ensure we systematically capture information from individuals 
across the system, thematically and specifically consider reflections, identify clear goals, 
specific changes, opportunities and improvements to adapt as the new normal.  This will 
inform the recovery action plan. 
 
Considering this information from multiple perspectives alongside ‘hard’ data allows for 
more rounded conclusions to be drawn, resulting in a more agile, responsive, effective 
recovery plan. 
 
6. Next Steps and Recommendations 
 
It is anticipated that an early outline recovery plan will be presented to Health and 
Wellbeing Board on 27th May 2020 and to Executive Committee on 28th May 2020. 
 
The Governing Body is asked to note and endorse this approach to recovery planning.  
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Appendix 1. Summary of expectations, Simon Stevens’ letter of 29th April 2020 
 
 

ACTIONS RECOMMENDED FOR URGENT CLINICAL SERVICES
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1.      Urgent and routine surgery and care 
Strengthen 111 capacity and sustain appropriate ambulance services ‘hear and treat’ and ‘see and treat’ models. Increase 
the availability of booked appointments and open up new secondary care dispositions (SDEC, hot specialty clinic, frailty 
services) that allow patients to bypass the emergency department altogether where clinically appropriate

x x x x

Provide local support to the new national NHS communications campaign encouraging people who should be seeking 
emergency or urgent care to contact their GP, go online to NHS 111 or call 999 if necessary. x x x x x
Provide urgent outpatient and diagnostic appointments (including direct access diagnostics available to GPs) at pre-
Covid19 levels. x x
Ensure that urgent and time-critical surgery and non-surgical procedures can be provided at pre-Covid19 levels of 
capacity. The Royal College of Surgeons has produced helpful advice on surgical prioritisation available at: 
(https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wpcontent/uploads/sites/52/2020/03/C0221-specialty-guide-surgicalprioritisation-
v1.pdf) 

x

In the absence of face-to-face visits, primary and secondary care clinicians should stratify and proactively contact their high 
risk patients to educate on specific symptoms/circumstances needing urgent hospital care, and ensure appropriate 
ongoing care plans are delivered. 

x x x x

Solid organ transplant services should continue to operate in conjunction with the clinical guidance developed and 
published by NHS Blood and Transplant. 
Where additional capacity is available, restart routine electives, prioritising long waiters first. Make full use of all contracted 
independent sector hospital and diagnostic capacity x x
All NHS acute and community hospitals should ensure all admitted patients are assessed daily for discharge, against each 
of the Reasons to Reside; and that every patient who does not need to be in a hospital bed is included in a complete and 
timely Hospital Discharge List, to enable the community Discharge Service to achieve safe and appropriate same day 
discharge. 

x x x

Providers have previously been asked to maintain access to essential cancer surgery and other treatment throughout the 
Covid19 pandemic, in line with guidance from the Academy of Medical Royal Colleges and the NHS 
(https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wpcontent/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/C0239-Specialty-guide-Essential-
Cancersurgery-and-coronavirus-v1-70420.pdf and 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wpcontent/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/C0239-Specialty-guide-Essential-
Cancersurgery-and-coronavirus-v1-70420.pdf ). An exception has been where clinicians consider that for an individual 
patient the risk of the procedure at the current time outweighs the benefit to the patient.  

x x x

Local systems and Cancer Alliances must continue to identify ring-fenced diagnostic and surgical capacity for cancer, and 
providers must protect and deliver cancer surgery and cancer treatment by ensuring that cancer surgery hubs are fully 
operational. Full use should be made of the available contracted independent sector hospital and diagnostic capacity locally 
and regionally. Regional cancer SROs must now provide assurance that these arrangements are in place everywhere. 

x x

Referrals, diagnostics (including direct access diagnostics available to GPs) and treatment must be brought back to pre-
pandemic levels at the earliest opportunity to minimise potential harm, and to reduce the scale of the postpandemic surge 
in demand. Urgent action should be taken by hospitals to receive new two-week wait referrals and provide two-week wait 
outpatient and diagnostic appointments at pre-Covid19 levels in Covid19 protected hubs/environments. 

x x

High priority BMT and CAR-T procedures should be able to continue, where critical care capacity is available. x x

Hospitals to prioritise capacity for acute cardiac surgery, cardiology services for PCI and PPCI and interventional 
neuroradiology for mechanical thrombectomy. x x
Secondary care to prioritise capacity for urgent arrhythmia services plus management of patients with severe heart failure 
and severe valve disease. x
Primary care clinicians to continue to identify and refer patients acutely to cardiac and stroke services which continue to 
operate throughout the Covid19 response x x
Hospitals to prioritise capacity for stroke services for admission to hyperacute and acute stroke units, for stroke 
thrombolysis and for mechanical thrombectomy x

Providers to make direct and regular contact with all women receiving antenatal and postnatal care, explaining how to 
access maternity services for scheduled and unscheduled care, emphasising the importance of sharing any concerns so 
that the maternity team can advise and reassure women of the best and safest place to receive care

x

Ensure obstetric units have appropriate staffing levels including anaesthetic cover. x

Ensure patients have clear information on how to access primary care services and are confident about making 
appointments (virtual or if appropriate, face-to-face) for current concerns. x x
Complete work on implementing digital and video consultations, so that all patients and practices can benefit. x x
Given the reduction of face-to-face visits, stratify and proactively contact their high-risk patients with ongoing care needs, to 
ensure appropriate ongoing care and support plans are delivered through multidisciplinary teams. In particular, proactively 
contact all those in the ‘shielding’ cohort of patients who are clinically extremely vulnerable to Covid19, ensure they know 
how to access care, are receiving their medications, and provide safe home visiting wherever clinically necessary.  

x x

To further support care homes, the NHS will bring forward a package of support to care homes drawing on key 
components of the Enhanced Care in Care Homes service and delivered as a collaboration between community and 
general practice teams. This should include a weekly virtual ‘care home round’ of residents needing clinical support. 

x x

Make two-week wait cancer, urgent and routine referrals to secondary care as normal, using ‘advice and guidance’ options 
where appropriate x x
Deliver as much routine and preventative work as can be provided safely including vaccinations immunisations, and 
screening. x x

2.      Cancer

3.      Cardiovascular Disease, Heart Attacks and Stroke 

4.     Maternity   

5.      Primary Care 
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Sustain the Hospital Discharge Service, working across secondary care and community providers in partnership with 
social care. Includes daily reviews of all patients in a hospital bed on the Hospital Discharge List; prompt and safe 
discharges when clinically and in line with infection control requirements with the planning of ongoing care needs arranged 
in people’s own homes; and making full use of available hospice care

x x x x

Prepare to support the increase in patients who have recovered from Covid and who having been discharged from hospital 
need ongoing community health support.   x x x
Essential community health services must continue to be provided, with other services phased back in wherever local 
capacity is available. Prioritise home visits where there is a child safeguarding concern. x x x

Establish all-age open access crisis services and helplines and promote them locally working with partners such as local 
authorities, voluntary and community sector and 111 services.  x x x
For existing patients known to mental health services, continue to ensure they are contacted proactively and supported. 
This will continue to be particularly important for those who have been recently discharged from inpatient services and 
those who are shielding. 

x x

Ensure that children and young people continue to have access to mental health services, liaising with your local partners 
to ensure referral routes are understood, particularly where children and young people are not at school. x x
Prepare for a possible longer-term increase in demand as a consequence of the pandemic, including by actively recruiting 
in line with the NHS Long Term Plan. x x
Annual health checks for people with a learning disability should continue to be completed x x
Ensure enhanced psychological support is available for all NHS staff who need it. x x
Ensure that you continue to take account of inequalities in access to mental health services, and in particular the needs of 
BAME communities. x x
Care (Education) and Treatment Reviews should continue, using online/digital approaches. x x

Ensure as a first priority that screening services continue to be available for the recognised highest risk groups, as 
identified in individual screening programmes. x x x
Increase the delivery of diagnostic pathways (including endoscopy) to catch up with the backlog of those already in an 
active screening pathway, followed by the rescheduling of any deferred appointments. x x x
Antenatal and Newborn Screening Services must be maintained because this is a time critical service x x
Providers and commissioners must maintain good vaccine uptake and coverage of immunisations. It is also likely that the 
Autumn/Winter flu immunisation programme will be substantially expanded this year, subject to DHSC decision shortly. x x x x x

In response to Covid19, general practice has moved from carrying out c.90% of consultations with patients as face-to-face 
appointments to managing more than 85% of consultations remotely. 95% of practices now having video consultation 
capability live and the remaining few percent in the process of implementation or procurement of a solution. GP Practices 
should continue to triage patient contacts and to use online consultation so that patients can be directed to the most 
appropriate member of the practice team straight away, demand can be prioritised based on clinical need and greater 
convenience for patients can be maintained. 

x x

Referral streaming of new outpatient referrals is important to ensure they are being managed in the most appropriate 
setting, and this should be coupled with Advice and Guidance provision, so that patients can avoid an outpatient referral if 
their primary care service can access specialist advice (usually via phone, video too). 

x x x x

All NHS secondary care providers now have access to video consultation technology to deliver some clinical care without 
the need for in-person contact. As far as practicable, video or telephone appointments should be offered by default for all 
outpatient activity without a procedure, and unless there are clinical or patient choice reasons to change to replace with in-
person contact. Trusts should use remote appointments - including video consultations - as a default to triage their elective 
backlog. They should implement a ‘patient initiated follow up’ approach for suitable appointments - providing patients the 
means of self-accessing services if required. 

x x

7. Mental Health and Learning Disability/ Autism services 

8. Screening and Immunisations 

9. Reduce the risk of cross-infection and support the safe switch-on of services by scaling up the use of technology-
enabled care 

6.  Community Services 
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PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 

Performance overview 
In our performance overview, we have shown some examples of projects we have 

delivered. This section includes a statement from the Clinical Chair and the Chief 

Officer, information about our CCG including our vision, and the areas we have 

focused on in 2019/20. 

Statement from the Chair and Accountable Officer 
 

Welcome to NHS South Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG) 2019/20 

annual report. As a clinically-led membership organisation made up of 21 general 

practices working alongside a range of other healthcare professionals, we 

commission a wide range of NHS services for a local population of around 150,000 

people.  

 

Throughout the year, we have been tackling some of the borough’s key health 

challenges, such as cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease and cancer, as well 

as continuing to implement new and innovative ways of working across the South 

Tyneside health and care system and more widely. 

 

The South Tyneside system has continued to build on successes and work even 

more closely together to ensure that we develop ways of commissioning and 

delivering services which are more joined up between the NHS and social care – 

including GPs, South Tyneside Council and our local hospital trust - to deliver better 

services to our people.  We make decisions together as a health and care system; 

we’re a team not just a group of organisations. This way of working in a local alliance 

is based on international best practice, and we have continued to work closely with 

our integration pioneer partners from the New Zealand Canterbury Health System, 

which is internationally renowned in the field of integration of health and care. 

 

The Path to Excellence programme, a five-year transformation of healthcare 

provision across South Tyneside and Sunderland, has continued throughout 
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2019/20.  Recognising the urgent need to change the way we deliver clinical 

services, the Path to Excellence programme sets out our approach to securing the 

future of local NHS services, identifying new and innovative ways of delivering high 

quality, joined up, sustainable care that will benefit our population both now and in 

the future. The second phase of the programme is looking at: 

• Emergency care and acute medicine  

• Emergency surgery  

• Planned care (including surgery and outpatients)  

 

The CCG was the first place outside of Australasia to implement Health Pathways, 

which is an innovative online toolkit used by GPs and other professionals. It enables 

the development and documentation of locally-agreed pathways, ensuring 

standardised ways of working between local GPs, other professionals and the 

hospital, streamlining patient pathways, ensuring signposting into other local 

services such as the third sector, and ensuring best practice care.  South Tyneside 

CCG has been instrumental in showcasing this work to other CCGs in the England, 

helping them to understand the system and its benefits. 

 

Our stakeholders and patients continue to play a vital role in helping us to develop 

services suitable for South Tyneside. Patient fora such as the CCG patient reference 

group and the Local Engagement Board (renamed to Let’s talk about … in February 

2020) continue to provide a valuable insight into the borough’s services. 

 

We would like to take this opportunity to express our thanks to all of our partners, 

stakeholders and members of the public and we look forward to working with you all 

again in 2020/21. 

 
[Insert signature] 
Dr Neil O’Brien 
Accountable Officer  

XX May 2020 

 

Dr David Hambleton Accountable Officer to 31 March 2020 
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About NHS South Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group 
South Tyneside CCG represents 21 GP practices, serving a population of around 

150,000 people. Led by doctors, nurses and other health professionals working 

alongside experienced healthcare managers, we are responsible for planning and 

commissioning (buying) of local healthcare services. This includes commissioning:  

• Planned hospital care  

• Urgent and emergency care  

• Rehabilitation care  

• Community health services 

• Mental health and learning disability services 

 

Overview of South Tyneside 
South Tyneside has a population of around 150,000. Census projections predict that 

the mix of population by age is likely to change considerably over the coming years, 

with projections predicting that the population of working age adults will fall by 1%. It 

is predicted that the number of people over 65 will rise by 20%, from 27,000 to over 

32,000, by 2021. Over the same period it is predicted the number of people over 85 

will increase by 40%, from 3,600 to 5,000. Older people use health and social care 

services more intensively than other population groups, so the projected increase in 

the number of older people in South Tyneside has important implications for the 

planning of health and social care services.  

The ability to meet and respond to the needs of a population that is living longer, with 

increasingly complex needs, is a significant test for the health and social care 

economy. This challenge is compounded by the financial limitations faced by 

commissioners. These challenges mean the CCG needs to review and adapt the 

way in which health and social care services are commissioned and delivered, in 

order to ensure that we can continue meeting the needs of people in South 

Tyneside. 

 
Clinical leadership 
The CCG’s Clinical Chair is Dr Matthew Walmsley, who chairs the Council of 

Practices and the Governing Body. The CCG Council of Practices comprises a GP 
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Nominated Lead from each of the 21 member practices, giving the CCG a strong 

mandate from clinical leaders. 

 

Our vision 
Our vision is to work collaboratively across South Tyneside to improve health and 

commission excellent health care and is supported by three high level strategic 

objectives which describe the changes we aim to make: 

• People are able to take greater responsibility for their own health 

• People are able to stay well in their own homes and communities 

• People receive timely and appropriate complex care 

 

Our partners 
The CCG works with a vast range of partners.  Some of these partners include: 

• South Tyneside Health and Wellbeing Board 

• South Tyneside Council – working with adult social care, housing and public 

health and other committees in the council, including Overview and Scrutiny 

and People Select Committees, as well as special commissions 

• NHS providers of healthcare – NHS South Tyneside Foundation Trust and 

Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear Mental Health NHS Foundation 

Trust 

• North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

• Other providers of NHS healthcare – independent sector, community and 

voluntary sector 

• South Tyneside Healthwatch 

• Local people 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
The CCG is a key member of the local Health and Wellbeing Board, which has 

statutory duties and powers to encourage integrated work of both commissioners 

and providers to improve the health and wellbeing of the local population, reduce 

inequalities, and improve the quality and experience of services for the local 

population. 
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The purpose of South Tyneside Health and Wellbeing Board is to improve the health 

and wellbeing of the people of South Tyneside and reduce current inequalities in 

health outcomes. The Board provides ‘whole system leadership’ for the local health 

economy in order to achieve our stated ambitions. 

 

South Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group (STCCG) is represented on the board 

by Dr Matthew Walmsley (Clinical CCG Chair and also Vice Chair of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board), Dr David Hambleton (CCG Chief Executive) and Matt Brown 

(Director of Operations). The Board structures business around the five outcomes in 

the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, which means we regularly discuss issues such 

as economic wellbeing and community resilience, with STCCG engaging and 

contributing to these discussions.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has worked with South Tyneside CCG along with 

the third sector, communities and members of the public to develop the Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy for South Tyneside (2017-21). The Board reviews progress 

against the strategy at every Board meeting, which includes contributions from the 

whole system. 

 

Matt Brown chairs the Alliance Business Group (ABG), the key subgroup of the 

Board. The ABG’s purpose is to drive forward the detail of our integration journey in 

South Tyneside. 

 
Systems working on health and wellbeing and health and care services, goes 

beyond the statutory elements of the Board. This comes from our early success as a 

Health and Care Pioneer area and our associated partnership with the Canterbury 

District Health Board – the first of its kind in the country. 

This has led us to develop our own place-based systems leadership approach called 

alliancing. Alliancing shapes the behaviours of our systems leaders, from chief 

executives to frontline practitioners.  This way of working has led to further 

improvements in trust and practical service improvements, such as a significant 

reduction in delayed transfers of care and smoking in pregnancy, and an 

improvement in mental health service standards. 
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We are confident that by working in partnership to address these issues we will 

make South Tyneside a healthier and more equitable place to live, invest and bring 

up families. The Board has recognised the valued contribution of South Tyneside 

CCG and this has been articulated directly to NHS England.  

 

The South Tyneside Way 
Over the last few years South Tyneside CCG has been working with its 

organisational partners to introduce a new way of working which is different from the 

traditional commissioner provider relationships. 

 

The core to this way of working is a move to a system-based approach whereby 

decisions are made collectively by the system on a ‘best for patient, best for system 

basis’.  

 

The adoption of this approach is in line with our partnership with the Canterbury 

District Health Board in New Zealand who is held up as a world leader in integrated 

care. This has led to a group of organisations who used to merely work in the same 

locality to become a collective group who combine to form the South Tyneside 

system. They have a renewed way of working which is based on collaboration and 

the empowerment of front-line clinicians to make changes which they see fit to 

enable South Tyneside residents to stay well in their own homes and communities.  
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Statement of activities 

Below we outline our main areas of work and some of our priorities and 

achievements during the past year. 

 

Long Term Conditions 

South Tyneside CCG have worked to improve the local NHS support services 

around rehabilitation and education which make a big difference in people’s lives, 

improving both their lifestyle and their health. 

This overall programme is broken down into the several workstreams outlined below: 

 

A Better U 
• The A Better U Health Coaching Service launched in May 2019. The 

Service offers support to people with a cardiovascular disease, working with 
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them to increase their knowledge, skills and confidence to manage their long 

term health condition. 

• We have been working with Inspire South Tyneside to test out a new 
approach to supporting grassroots Voluntary, Community, Social 
Enterprise (VCSE) organisations. This involved allocating ‘microgrants’ to 

enable grassroots VCSEs to build on current delivery and practice, to deliver 

innovative, flexible approaches to working holistically with people in order to 

improve outcomes and reduce health inequalities.  

• We have worked with system partners to develop our system vision for 
Social Prescribing, and established our Social Prescribing Network. 

 

Screening & Early Intervention 
• Tested out a new model for Diagnostic Spirometry. Learning from this will be 

applied in the development our future model in 2020.  

• Worked with GP Practices to increase referrals and uptake of the NHS 
Diabetes Prevention Programme. 

• Work has continued within Primary Care to increase use of the AliveCor 
device in order to support work around increasing the number of people 

identified with Atrial Fibrillation. 

 

Integrated Rehabilitation and Structured Education 
• Always Event launched in August 2019, with a view of engaging more South 

Tyneside residents earlier, with or at high risk of developing long term 

conditions, in programmes of self-care and rehabilitation that lead to greater 

physical activity and social engagement. 

 

Person Centred Planned Care Pathway 
• Year of Care implementation commenced in 2019, and we now have 12 

practices trained in this new approach. Year of Care aims to provide 

personalised care planning for people with long term conditions by working in 

partnership with patients and care professionals. 
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Whole Person Care 
• Health Coaching staff have been working with the IAPT team to explore how 

they can work together within a secondary care setting to support those 

attending outpatient appointments. A prototype model has been developed 

and is now being tested.  

Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 
 
Learning Disabilities 

• Developed and implemented the Assertive Outreach Team and Safehaven 

Service from April 2019 

• Employed person within learning disabilities into the commissioning team from 

Jan 2020 

• Developed and implemented two out of three of the learning disabilities hubs 

within the borough in August 2019 

• Developed the new hub and spoke model for physical health checks for 

people with Learning Disabilities  

• Implemented the new role of discharge co-ordinator from January 2020 
 

Autism 
• Reviewed the autism model , designed and implemented the autism hub open 

Jan 2020 
 

Children / Young People 
• Successful in phase 2 of the Mental Health in School implementation – 

covering all schools in the borough  

• Delivered Positive Behaviour Support programme  for School  in 2019 
• Delivery of Rainbow award for schools commence 2020 
• Implement support offer for LGBTQ+ in February 2020 
• Commenced therapy review January 2020 

• Increases access rate to over 1700 CYPS 
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Mental Health 
• Rolled out IAPT long term condition offer with the borough , now covering 

over 5 LTC 

• Developed and Prototype HIU within Psych Liaison in ED from July 2019 
• Commissioned crisis support to support crisis teams from 2020 
• Commissioned Perinatal service from April 2019 
• Provided additional resource to IAPT service to meet target 

• Developed SMI physical hub model 

 

Planned Care 
 
Frailty 

• Secured funding to enable the commissioning of a digital transformation pilot 

project in to Care Homes, using tablets to flag up early warning signs of 

resident ill health thereby avoiding unplanned admissions. 

• Facilitated the South Tyneside Frailty Alliance bringing partners from across 

mental health, primary, secondary and social care to have new conversations 

about how we proactively enable health aging in South Tyneside.  

 

Cancer 
• Commissioned faecal immunochemical testing (FIT) for low risk, symptomatic 

patients across primary care in South Tyneside. 

• Recommissioned Low Dose Computerised Tomography (CT) Scans for 

people with Cardiac Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD). 

• Commissioned testing for Lynch Syndrome for patients diagnosed with 

colorectal cancer. 

• Continued South Tyneside’s Community based early stage awareness work 

raising the profile of identifying symptoms of early stage cancer. 

• Worked with the South Tyneside and Sunderland Foundation Trust supporting 

the implementation of stratified pathways for cancer treatment. 
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End of Life 
• Undertook a co-production exercise with South Tyneside stakeholders to 

identify the preferred future of palliative care services in South Tyneside. 

• Facilitated the South Tyneside End of Life Care Alliance working with partners 

from across secondary, primary, social care and the third sector to deliver 

improved data and services for people receiving palliative care and those in 

their last days of life. 

 

Musculoskeletal services 
 

Service Optimisation  
• Introduced pilot of Single Point of Access, same day access to PhysioLine 

and First Contact Practitioners across south primary care network. 

 

ESCAPE Pain 
• ESCAPE Pain now available across South Tyneside (previously only available 

to a small number of pilot practices) and operational in community leisure 

centres.  

 

Pain Management Pathways 
• Development of Chronic Pain Group Consultations in some Primary Care 

practices. 

 

Implementation of the north east regional back pain pathway 
• Discussions with local CCG colleagues to develop a combined physical and 

psychological regional programme for back pain.  
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Path to Excellence – the transformation of hospital 
services across South Tyneside and Sunderland  
 

We have continued our partnership with NHS Sunderland CCG, NHS South 

Tyneside CCG, South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust on the Path 

to Excellence programme, a five-year transformation of hospital healthcare provision 

across South Tyneside and Sunderland.  

 

Changes made following a consultation as part of phase one of the Path to 

Excellence have now been implemented.  The decisions were: 

• All acute strokes are directed to Sunderland Royal Hospital (SRH), with the 

consolidation of all inpatient stroke care at Sunderland (running temporarily 

since December 2016 due to service vulnerability) 

• Development of a free-standing midwifery-led unit (FMLU), known as a 

birthing centre, at South Tyneside District Hospital  

• Medically-led obstetric unit at Sunderland Royal Hospital 

• Gynaecology care requiring an overnight hospital stay carried out at 

Sunderland Royal Hospital 

• Care for minor gynaecology conditions, including day case surgery and out-

patients’ clinics, will continue at South Tyneside District Hospital 

• The development of a nurse-led paediatric minor injury and illness facility at 

South Tyneside District Hospital – open 8am to 10pm – and 24/7 paediatric 

emergency department at Sunderland Royal Hospital as the most sustainable 

long-term model (option 2). 

 

As of August 5, 2019, all of these changes are now permanent across both hospital 

sites. A public awareness campaign ran during summer 2019 and included posts on 

social media, radio advertisements and digital screens in busy commuter areas and 

GP surgeries.  

 

A judicial review hearing took place in December 2018 which challenged the 

decision of NHS South Tyneside and Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Groups in 

relation to phase one Path to Excellence service changes. 
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The challenge was brought on behalf of the Save South Tyneside Hospital 

Campaign Group. The judgement showed, very clearly, that the judge supported the 

CCGs decisions for phase one of the Path to Excellence programme and found the 

public consultation in 2017 to be a fair and lawful process. 

 

A subsequent appeal was held in December 2019 and the judgement was handed 

down by the Court of Appeal on 28th January 2020, which supported the original 

judgement, acknowledging that “at each stage there was genuine engagement with 

the public”. 

 

Phase two 
Phase two of the Path to Excellence programme is the final part of the NHS 

transformation of local hospital services that began in 2016 and will involve the 

following key areas of hospital-based care: 

• Emergency care and acute medicine  

• Emergency surgery  

• Planned care (including surgery and outpatients) 

 

Path to Excellence NHS partners continue to work together to plan for the future and 

identify new and innovative ways of delivering high quality, joined-up, sustainable 

hospital services that will further improve the quality of care and patient outcomes for 

local people. 

 

Roadshow activity took place throughout spring 2019 and further events were held in 

autumn 2019 across South Tyneside, Sunderland, East and North Durham areas. 

From 56 events across both campaigns, the roadshows engaged with over 2,150 

people in total. The roadshow engagement provided a valuable opportunity for 

individuals to provide feedback as to what makes them proud of the NHS, what 

improvements they would like to see and what concerns them most about the future 

of the service.  A total of 955 responses were gathered at events in October and 

November 2019 which were raising awareness of the Path to Excellence, vital 

information which has been fed back to clinical staff working on the programme, 

meaning that there have now been over 16,800 responses since 2018 in total. 
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Travel and transport 
The Travel and Transport Sub-Group meets quarterly and has a membership 

representing South Tyneside & Sunderland Local Authorities, Local Councillors, 

South Tyneside & Sunderland FT, STCCG, Public Transport Users Group, 

Healthwatch, NEXUS, Stagecoach and Go North East, who all contribute to 

identifying opportunities for partnership working and sharing expertise. All partners 

have the opportunity to share lessons from projects and co-operate where possible. 

 

Members of the public who engaged with the roadshow continued to express their 

concerns about having travel further for services as a result of changes as part of the 

programme.  For example, concern around the ability of the ambulance service to 

deal with additional patients who would need emergency transport, the impact on 

visitors using public transport and the capacity for car parking.  

 

The work is focusing on improvement to travel planning and joining up services and 

information across the NHS, transport providers and local authorities for the benefit 

of patients, families, visitors and staff and a Travel and Transport Impact 

Assessment is due to be carried out in the near future on this issue.  
 

Financial performance 
 

The Clinical Commissioning Group delivered its statutory financial duties during the 

financial year 2019/20. 

 

The financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2020 are set out from page 

104 onwards of this report. 

 

The statements have been produced under International Financial Reporting 

Standards and in accordance with the Department of Health Group Accounting 

Manual.  

 

The Clinical Commissioning Group met all of its statutory duties. 
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The CCG planned to breakeven in year in line with NHS England business rules, 

against an allocation limit of £303,042k.  The CCG was able to draw down a 

proportion of our cumulative surplus, which is held centrally, for non-recurrent use in 

2019/20. 

 

The CCG continues to focus on transformational ways of working in order to manage 

the financial position and has achieved the agreed year end position through 

effective risk and financial management.  

 

The Executive Committee and Governing Body received financial reports on current 

performance and forecast positions at each meeting, within which key risks were 

identified.   

 

The chart below shows the main areas of expenditure for the Clinical Commissioning 

Group. 
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Sustainable development 
 

As an NHS organisation, and as a spender of public funds, we have an obligation to 

work in a way that has a positive effect on the communities we serve. Sustainability 

means spending public money well, the smart and efficient use of natural resources 

and building healthy, resilient communities. By making the most of social, 

environmental and economic assets we can improve health both in the immediate 

and long term even in the context of rising cost of natural resources. Demonstrating 

that we consider the social and environmental impacts ensures that the legal 

requirements in the Public Services (Social Value) Act (2012) are met.  We 

acknowledge this responsibility to our patients, local communities and the 

environment by working hard to minimise our footprint. 

 

As a part of the NHS, public health and social care system, it is our duty to contribute 

towards the level of ambition set in 2014 of reducing the carbon footprint of the NHS, 

public health and social care system by 34% (from a 1990 baseline) equivalent to a 

28% reduction from a 2013 baseline by 2020. It is our aim to meet this target by 

reducing our carbon emissions 28% by 2020-21 using 2007-08 as the baseline year. 

 

Policies 
In order to embed sustainability within our business it is important to explain where in 

our process and procedures sustainability features.  One of the ways in which an 

organisation can embed sustainability is through the use of a Green Plan (formerly 

known as Sustainable Development Management Plan or SDMP). We will be putting 

together a Green Plan in the near future for consideration by the Governing Body. 

 

Climate change brings new challenges to our business both in direct effects to the 

healthcare estates, but also to patient health. Examples of recent years include the 

effects of heat waves, extreme temperatures and prolonged periods of cold, floods, 

droughts etc.  The organisation has identified the need for the development of a 

Governing Body approved plan for future climate change risks affecting our area. 
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Partnerships 
The NHS policy framework already sets the scene for commissioners and providers 

to operate in a sustainable manner. Crucially for us as a commissioner, evidence of 

this commitment will need to be provided in part through contracting mechanisms. 

 

Performance 
Since the 2007 baseline year, the NHS has undergone a significant restructuring 

process and one which is still on-going. Therefore in order to provide some 

organisational context, the following table may help explain how both the 

organisation and its performance on sustainability has changed over time. 

    2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Total 
gross 
internal 
floor 
space 

  0 0 523 523 

Total no. 
of staff 
employed 

  0 0 34 36 

  

The 2014-2020 Sustainable Development Strategy outlined an ambition to reduce 

the carbon footprint of the NHS by 28% (from a 2013 baseline) by 2020. We have 

supported this ambition as follows: 

 

Energy 
Energy used 

Energy consumption in kWh 

    2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Electricity 
Consumed 

  0 0 33,755 33,211 

Gas 
Consumed 

  0 0 114,602 113, 998 
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Oil 
Consumed 

  0 0 0 0 

Coal 
Consumed 

  0 0 0 0 

Steam 
Consumed 

  0 0 0 0 

Hot Water 
Consumed 

  0 0 406 400 

Green 
electricity 

  0 0 0 0 

Total   0 0 148,763 147,609 

  
Paper 
The movement to a Paperless NHS can be supported by staff reducing the use of 

paper at all levels, this reduces the environmental impact of paper, reducing cost of 

paper to the NHS and can help improve information security. 

 

Travel 
We recognise that a Healthy Transport Plan is a foundational part of our Travel 

Policy and we will be putting that in place as soon as possible.  We can improve 

local air quality and improve the health of our community by promoting active travel 

to our staff and to the patients and public that use our services. 

 

Every action counts and we are a lean organisation trying to realise efficiencies 

across the board for cost and carbon (CO2e) reductions. We support a culture for 

active travel to improve staff wellbeing and reduce sickness. Air pollution, accidents 

and noise all cause health problems for our local population, patients, staff and 

visitors and are caused by cars, as well as other forms of transport. 

 
Plastic use 
The NHS produces many tonnes of plastic waste every year across catering clinical 

practice and its supply chain. In recognition of this, we have a plan to reduce our use 

of single-use plastics. 
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Water 
Finite resource use - Water 

 

    2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Water 
volume 
(m³) 

  0 0 406 400 

Waste 
water 
volume 
(m³) 

  0 0 0 0 

Water 
and 
sewage 
cost (£) 

  0 0 0 0 

 

Adaptation 
Events such as heatwaves, cold snaps and flooding are expected to increase as a 

result of climate change. To ensure that our services continue to meet the needs of 

our local population during such events we have developed and implemented a 

number of policies and protocols in partnership with other local agencies. 

 

Improve quality 
Quality, patient safety, clinical effectiveness and the experience of patients continues 

to underpin the delivery of our health and social care services across South 

Tyneside.  

 

Responsibility for quality improvement and oversight is delegated to the CCG Quality 

and Patient Safety Committee (QPSC), which is a sub-committee of the Governing 

Body.  
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The QPSC is responsible for ensuring appropriate governance systems and 

processes are in place to monitor and ensure delivery of high quality, safe patient 

care in commissioned services and general medical practice. Throughout 2019/20 

the QPSC has continued to support improvements in the CCGs quality processes as 

set out in our quality strategy, with a focus on learning, preventing failures and 

driving improvement.    

 

The Quality Strategy communicates our vision, key drivers and ambitions for quality, 

and explains how we will deliver on that vision. It describes the steps we have taken 

to create and embed a culture of continuous quality improvement, based on 

openness, transparency and candour within the organisation and across the health 

and social care system, working with stakeholders across the South Tyneside 

Alliance. The quality strategy puts quality at the centre of all our discussions with 

providers of our commissioned services.  

 

2019 saw the publication of the NHS Patient Safety Strategy, the foundations of 

which have been incorporated into our quality framework to ensure we maintain a 

continued focus on improving patient safety and strengthen the foundations of a 

safer culture in the NHS.  

 

The strategy has enabled us to clearly articulate clear, collective and consistent 

priorities for quality across the health care economy and ensure decisions are 

evidence based and that we commission clinical excellence for our population.  

This is reflected in the transformational work that underpins the Path to Excellence 

project, a five year ambition to build outstanding future hospital services, offering the 

very highest quality of patient care and clinical excellence for each and every 

resident of South Tyneside and Sunderland. This ongoing work has already secured 

the delivery of high quality care and improvements across stroke services, 

paediatrics and maternity. 

 

To further support continuous improvement the CCG has implemented a number of 

levers to support our quality vision in the form of various incentive schemes. This 

includes schemes such as the better outcomes scheme for GP practices, and 

CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation) for NHS contracted services.  
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Our interface with providers continues through our Quality Review Group Meetings 

(QRGs) which are established through the NHS Standard Contract. QRGs are formal 

meetings held with our major providers to monitor and discuss all aspects of their 

quality of care delivery; this includes patient experience data, complaints, concerns 

and the review of themes as trends from incidents. The QRGs allow a transparent 

and open discussion of issues to take place and improvements to be monitored. 

Membership extends to representatives of the Care Quality Commission (CQC), 

NHS England and NHS Improvement, so that we can support a single approach to 

assurance.   

 

For general medical practice the robust monitoring of quality in primary care is 

overseen by the Primary Care Quality Review and Business meeting (PCQRB). The 

committee meets monthly and monitors national and local quality standards as well 

as holding providers to account for any contractual requirements relating to the 

quality and safety of services. We work closely with other organisations, mainly NHS 

England and Improvement to assure the quality of primary care in South Tyneside.   

The CCG consistently reviews its performance against the NHS Outcomes 

Framework and all operational standards expected from the NHS Constitution. This 

analysis is triangulated with other vital quality information such as complaints, 

serious incidents data, health care acquired infection rates and the outcomes of 

reports such as Care Quality Commission inspections that concern our main provider 

organisations.  

 

On a wider health economy level the CCG remains an active member of the Cumbria 

and North East Quality Surveillance Group (QSG). This group is an important 

mechanism for the sharing and analysis of significant information and intelligence 

about commissioned services, enabling early detection of deteriorating quality and 

an ‘early warning’ of potential risks to patient safety.  

 

Safeguarding  
The CCG has a statutory responsibility as commissioner to promote the safety and 

welfare of Adults and Children in all commissioned services and therefore we have in 
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place robust structures, systems, standards and an assurance framework which 

enable compliance with legal duties and local governance arrangements. 

 

All staff working within the CCG’s health economy that commission or provide adult 

and children’s services must make safeguarding and promoting the welfare of people 

an integral part of the care they offer The CCG is committed to working with partner 

agencies to ensure the safety, health and well-being of the local people in South 

Tyneside. Safeguarding those at risk and most vulnerable is a key part of the CCG’s 

approach to commissioning and, together with a focus on quality and patient 

experience, is integral to our working arrangements. 

 

The CCG complies with the new statutory responsibility under the Modern Slavery 

Act 2015. 

 

Engaging people and communities 
 
Patient and public engagement 
Our communications and engagement strategy, which sets the scene for the culture 

of the organisation around communications and engagement, is available online 

at https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2020/01/Communications-and-Engagement-strategy-19-21-Dec-

19.pdf.  

 
Governance and assurance 
A lay member with responsibility for patient and public involvement (PPI) sits on the 

CCG Governing Body and oversees PPI at the CCG.  The Governing Body received 

a full review of all PPI activities and strategy in July 2019. 

Participation takes place at different levels; we value input from all patients and 

members of the public.  We have a variety of mechanisms for two-way engagement: 

• Quarterly Local Engagement Board (re-branded as Let’s Talk events in 2020) 

• Bi-monthly updates to HealthNet 

• Bi-monthly Patient Reference Group (PRG) 

https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Communications-and-Engagement-strategy-19-21-Dec-19.pdf
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Communications-and-Engagement-strategy-19-21-Dec-19.pdf
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Communications-and-Engagement-strategy-19-21-Dec-19.pdf
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• On-street surveys 

• Focus groups 

• On-line mechanisms such as Twitter, on-line surveys, My NHS 

 

Impact of participation 
Path to Excellence 
The engagement for phase two of the Path to Excellence started in February 2018 

and continued through 2019 and into 2020.  The focus is around local people’s views 

for medicine and emergency care, emergency surgery and planned care and 

outpatients services in South Tyneside and Sunderland. 

 

A number of stakeholder evaluation sessions were held in spring 2019, which 

included engagement with NHS staff which allowed them to give their views on the 

‘working ideas’ as part of phase two. 

 

A public listening panel event was held in June 2019 where interested stakeholders 

had the opportunity to present any evidence or ideas directly to NHS leaders.  The 

panel was chaired by the director of The Consultation Institute, an independent, not-

for-profit best practice institute, promoting high-quality public and stakeholder 

consultation in the public, private and voluntary sectors.  The event was broadcast 

live on social media channels and NHS websites. 

 

Focus groups with voluntary and community sector groups in South Tyneside have 

also taken place; all feedback is compiled in a report and given to clinical teams as 

part of the design process for phase two consultation.  More than 30 focus group 

sessions involving over 200 patients with experience of long term conditions or 

participants involved with groups supporting people with protected characteristics 

under the Equality Act 2010 have also been held.  

 

Some of the activity for Path to Excellence phase two over the past year includes:  

• Over 160 staff took part in three dedicated staff ‘evaluation’ sessions between 

March and May 2019 to find out more about current thinking and work together to 

review working ideas.  
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• Roadshow teams, including Healthwatch volunteers, have held over 55 roadshow 

drop-in events engaging with people in shopping centres, supermarkets, primary 

care centres and hospital outpatients across South Tyneside, Sunderland, East 

and North Durham. 

• Approximately 800 responses were given to questions on local NHS services by 

members of the public, while a total of 45 NHS staff survey cards were 

completed. As well as this, 678 people completed a short face to face or online 

survey.  

• More than 18,000 flyers were distributed during roadshow activity in March 2019 

while 460 booklets, leaflets and information cards were distributed in October and 

November 2019, during which time 3,600 copies of the Path to Excellence 

Autumn 2019 update were handed out to GP surgeries in South Tyneside, 

Sunderland, East and North Durham. 

• Posts on Facebook and Twitter have generated a reach of 223,000 on social 

media sponsored ads. 

• The Path to Excellence website has had over 13,700 page views during the past 

year. 

 

This feedback will help us in how we assess ideas and solutions that are being 

developed that could go forward into the future public consultation which is expected 

to take place during 2020. 

 

Autism Hub 
The new Autism Hub, commissioned by the Joint Commissioning Unit (JCU), was 

launched on 10 January 2020.  The centre provides drop-in sessions for all ages, 

with no diagnosis or referral necessary. 

 

The centre was launched as a direct response to feedback from those with autism, 

and their families, who felt there was a lack of support in the borough, which 

evidence shows can lead to crisis.  A co-production event took place on 18 

December 2019 with families, experts by experience, with the outputs from the event 

being used to shape what the Autism Hub offers.  Further information about the 

event can be found at https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-

https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/
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me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/.  

Integrated Rehabilitation and Structured Education for Patients with one or 
more Long Term Condition – Always Events 
The ambition was to increase the uptake and reduce inequality of education and 

rehab support that enables people to live well with one or more Long Term 

Condition.  The engagement work was carried out through Always Events.  During 

the events patients, carers and professionals were asked to think about how access, 

knowledge and information could be improved.  Attendees were also asked to map 

out the patient journey and asked to take part in an online survey.  Further 

information and a full report of the engagement work can be found 

at https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-

you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/. 

 
Patient Feedback 
The CCG’s Patient Reference Group, a group of patients from South Tyneside 

practices, has considered a range of CCG work over the year: 

• End of life and palliative care 

• Long term conditions 

• Path to Excellence 

• Cancer 

• CCG finance 

 

All agenda, minutes and presentations from the group can be found 

at https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/patient-

participation-groups/. 

 

The Friends & Family Test is used by the CCG as a quality measure to monitor 

patient experience and support service improvements.  The results are included in 

the CCG quality monitoring and assurance reports and discussed at quality review 

group meetings. 

 

An in-house session took place for practice staff in November to share and discuss 

the GP survey results and to share best practice. 

https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/patient-participation-groups/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/patient-participation-groups/


29 
 

 
Diverse, potentially excluded and disadvantaged groups 
The CCG presents updates on a bi-monthly basis to HealthNet, a local umbrella 

organisation with representatives from diverse South Tyneside voluntary and 

community organisations.  This is an opportunity for people from the local community 

to discuss, question and give suggestions to the CCG.  Presentations can be found 

at https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/ccg-updates-

healthnet/. 

 

Demographic monitoring in the Path to Excellence engagement and consultation 

showed that we were not reaching our more diverse groups, so we set out to tackle 

this, including engaging with existing VCSE organisations who knew their 

communities (eg Bangladeshi community, sex workers) to run focus groups.  This 

helped seldom heard groups talk with people they trusted, rather than 'outsiders', 

ensuring the views of protected characteristic groups properly inform our decisions.  

More information can be found at https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/community-and-

voluntary-sector-groups-needed-for-focus-group-activity-as-part-of-path-to-

excellence-programme/.  

 

Venues for public meetings, focus groups and events are chosen for their ease of 

access, with good public transport links, accessible and disabled parking, easy 

access via automatic doors, using the ground floor or a venue with lift access for 

other floors and hearing loops.  Information is available in large print and audio if 

requested, and interpreters are also available if requested. 

 
Work with partner organisations 
The CCG works extremely hard with partners, including patient groups and VCSE 

organisations, to develop and implement plans strategically but also tactically.  

Examples include: 

• Multi-morbidity patient stories - engaging with patients with multiple long term 

conditions to discuss areas such as appointments, care and living with their 

conditions 

• Co-design and co-production of the End of Life Care service for South 

Tyneside 

https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/ccg-updates-healthnet/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/ccg-updates-healthnet/
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/community-and-voluntary-sector-groups-needed-for-focus-group-activity-as-part-of-path-to-excellence-programme/
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/community-and-voluntary-sector-groups-needed-for-focus-group-activity-as-part-of-path-to-excellence-programme/
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/community-and-voluntary-sector-groups-needed-for-focus-group-activity-as-part-of-path-to-excellence-programme/
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• Commissioning of integrated rehab and structured education for patients with 

one or more long term conditions 

 

The three examples are all around key priority areas, where the priority has been 

established in discussion with VCSE and other partners, the proposals too have 

been developed collaboratively and genuinely used to drive change around a 

completely different way of providing integrated rather than disease-specific 

rehabilitation, multi-morbidity rather than single-disease care (ie based on the person 

not their condition!) and a new end of life model including new hospice.  Further 

information can be found at https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2019/12/Multi-morbidities-engagement-Nov-19.pdf, and  

https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-

finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/. 

 

The CCG has worked with local secondary schools through the year, helping 

students to think about their future career https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-

involved/involve-me/work-local-schools/other-schools/.  

 
Involving patients and the public 
A quarterly e-bulletin is sent to patients, public and other stakeholders to keep them 

informed of CCG work and progress.  Bulletins have include updates on Path to 

Excellence, invitations to and articles on the Local Engagement Board, articles on 

primary care networks and changes to services.  Stakeholders are also kept up to 

date with Path to Excellence through dedicated e-updates.  Information and updates 

are also shared with stakeholders through the CCG website and twitter. 

 

Involvement opportunities are promoted to patients, public and stakeholders through 

regular emails and through our website.  Further information can be found 

at https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/ 

 

Learning and best practice 
South Tyneside CCG has engaged co-production for a number of workstreams this 

year.  In order to learn about co-production we worked with a team from NHS 

England and NHS Improvement on Always 

https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Multi-morbidities-engagement-Nov-19.pdf
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Multi-morbidities-engagement-Nov-19.pdf
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/work-local-schools/other-schools/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/work-local-schools/other-schools/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/
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Events https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/North-

East-Always-Events-cohort-launch-7.8.19.pdf.  This best practice has now been 

rolled out with co-production taking place for End of Life Care and integrated rehab 

and structured education for those with long term conditions.  Further information 

can be found at https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-

matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/. 

 
Future plans 

• Co-production will continue to be a widely used mechanism for engaging with 

patients, public and stakeholders in 2020-2021. 

• The Patient Reference Group continues to meet bi-monthly with agenda items 

set by the group. 

• Let’s Talk events (formerly Local Engagement Board) are arranged for 2020 

with events on 20 May, 2 September and 9 December. 

• Bi-monthly CCG updates to HealthNet will continue in 2020-2021. 

• The CCG will continue to work with local schools as part of the Business in 

the Community programme. 

 

Reducing health inequality 
 

We have demonstrated our commitment to taking Equality, Diversity and Human 

Rights (EDHR) in everything we do, whether that is commissioning services, 

employing people, developing policies, communicating, consulting or involving 

people in our work as evidenced below. 

 

Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 
We understand that we are required under the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) to 

have due regard to: 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct 

prohibited by the (Equality) Act 

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not 

https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/North-East-Always-Events-cohort-launch-7.8.19.pdf
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/North-East-Always-Events-cohort-launch-7.8.19.pdf
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/involve-me/what-matters-to-you-finding-out-what-the-people-of-south-tyneside-think/
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• Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 

and those who do not. 

 

We are also required to publish: 

• Equality objectives, at least every four years  

• Information to demonstrate our compliance with the public sector equality 

duty. 

 

Governance 
Equality, Diversity and Health Inequalities is governed and reports into the Audit and 

Risk Committee and Executive Committee. The Executive Committee ensures we 

are compliant with legislative, mandatory and regulatory requirements regarding 

equality and diversity, develops and delivers national and regional diversity-related 

initiatives within the CCG, provides a forum for sharing issues and opportunities, 

functions as a two-way conduit for information dissemination and escalation, 

monitors progress against the equality strategy and supports us in the achievement 

of key equality and diversity objectives. 

 

A quarterly Governance Assurance Report is submitted to the Executive Committee 

outlining relevant updates in relation to Equality, Diversity and Health Inequalities. 

Equality Strategy  

Our Equality Strategy was refreshed in 2017 and will be reviewed in 2020. The 

strategy aims to ensure that the CCG promotes equality of opportunity to all our 

patients, their families and carers, and our staff, and to proactively address 

discrimination of any kind.  We are fully committed to meeting the diverse needs of 

our local population and workforce, ensuring that none are placed at a disadvantage. 

 

The Equality Delivery System 2 - Our Equality Objectives 
We have implemented the Equality Delivery System (EDS2) framework and have 

been using the tool to support the mainstreaming of equalities into all our core 

business functions. Working through the EDS2 framework has provided an 

opportunity to raise equality in service commissioning and gain insight into the local 

population’s diverse health needs.  The Executive Committee approved plans 
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detailing actions we will take to ensure that individuals, communities and staff are 

treated equitably. 

 

We have used the NHS Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2) to develop and prepare 

our equality objectives.  Our action plan and objectives, which were recently updated 

for 2019, are outlined below: 

 

Objective 1 – Continuously improve engagement, ensure that services are 

commissioned and designed to meet the needs of patients from at least nine 

protected groups. 

Objective 2 – Improve and simplify the complaints process ensuring that complaints 

are handled efficiently and effectively for at least six protected groups. 

Objective 3 – Continuously monitor and review staff satisfaction to ensure they are 

engaged, supported and have the tools to carry out their roles effectively. 

Objective 4 – Ensure that the CCG Governing Body actively leads and promotes 

Equality and Diversity throughout the organisation. 

 

These objectives have been reviewed by the CCG’s Patient Reference Group (PRG) 

and approved by the Executive Committee. 

 

Our Staff - Encouraging Diversity  
We encourage a diverse range of people to apply to and work for us as we recognise 

the benefits such diversity brings to the quality of our work and the nature of our 

organisation. 

 

We continue to offer guaranteed interviews to applicants with a disability who are 

identified as meeting the essential criteria for any advertised roles; and reasonable 

adjustments under the Equality Act 2010 are considered and implemented during the 

recruitment process and during employment.   By working closely with DWP, we 

have maintained our ‘Level 2 Disability Employer’ status for 2020 -2021 by 

demonstrating our commitment to employing the right people for 

our business and continually developing our people. 
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Workforce Race Equality Standard 
In accordance with the Public Sector Equality Duty and the NHS Equality and 

Diversity Council’s agreed measures, the CCG has shown due regard to the 

Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES).  We have due regard to the standard by 

seeking assurance of compliance from trusts and aim to improve workplace 

experiences and representation at all levels for black and minority ethnic staff. 

 

The CCG assesses itself against the NHS Workforce Race Equality Standard 

(WRES) annually to ensure that: 

• data is collected and review against the nine WRES indicators 

• an action plan is produced to close any gaps in workplace experience 

between white and Black and Ethnic Minority (BME) staff, and 

• Governing Body membership includes BME representation 

 

We are required to publish a WRES annual report and action plan to address any 

areas for improvement. The CCG is committed to the WRES and you can see our 

most recent report and action plan on our website. 

 

Equality Impact Assessments 
Our Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Toolkit has been implemented into core 

business processes to provide a comprehensive insight into our local population, 

patients and staff’s diverse health needs.  

 

The tool covers all equality groups offered protection under the Equality Act 2010 in 

addition to Human Rights and Carers,  as well as including prompts for engagement 

with protected groups the tool also aids compliance with the Accessible Information 

Standard. 

  

Our EIA process ensures that we can consider the impact or effect of our policies, 

procedures and functions on the population we serve. For any negative impacts 

identified we will take immediate steps to deal with such issues as part of the action 

plan set out in the tool. This will ensure equity of service delivery is available for all 

as well as the opportunity to continuously monitor progress against challenges 
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identified to monitor and reduce inequality for our local population.  The EIA is 

embedded into our governance process and sign off from the Executive is required 

for monitoring and completion. 

 

Accessible Information Standard 
The Accessible Information Standard aims to make sure that disabled people have 

access to information that they can understand, and access to any communication 

support they might need. 

 

The standard tells organisations how to make information accessible to patients, 

service users and their carers and parents. This includes making sure that people 

get information in different formats if they need it, such as large print, braille, easy 

read, and via email.  The CCG has due regard to the standard by obtaining feedback 

from Patient Reference Groups in relation to how we can improve our 

communication methods and make them more accessible for all. 

 

Further information can be found 

at: https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/accessibleinfo/ 

 

Health Inequalities 
Health Inequalities 
We have the responsibility to reduce inequalities in accessing health services for our 

local population. We understand our local population and local health needs through 

the use of joint strategic needs and assets assessments (JSNAAs), health equity 

audits and service information which provide insight on the people, places and 

existing provision within the area that are working to reduce inequalities 

currently.  We also collate additional supporting data including local health profiles as 

well as qualitative data through our local engagement initiatives, which aim to 

engage hard to reach groups. Additional tools such as the Global Burden of Disease 

provide the information to understand the factors that will impact on healthy life 

expectancy and the burden of disease within the ageing population. The layering of 

this information enables us to identify areas of particular focus where inequalities 

exist.  
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South Tyneside has overall levels of deprivation significantly higher than the national 

average, and 27% of children live in low income families. The life expectancy of men 

is 77 years of age and 81.5 years for women. Life expectancy is 7.1 years lower for 

men and 7.2 years lower for women in the most deprived areas of South Tyneside.  

 

Priorities that we need to focus on in the coming years include:  

• Health and wellbeing throughout an individual’s life supporting self-care and A 

Better U   

• Preventing early deaths, especially those due to cancer. Incidents of 

colorectal and lung cancer in particular are much higher than the national 

average  

• According to the Global Burden of Disease tobacco is still the leading cause 

of ill health. Smoking prevalence is currently 18.8%, within routine and manual 

workers (often individuals from the most deprived wards) has a prevalence 

rate of 30.0%.  It is therefore important to continue to promote a Smoke free 

NHS.   

 

We work in partnership across the health and care system with local NHS Trusts, 

local voluntary sector organisations and community groups to identify the needs of 

the diverse local community we serve to improve health and healthcare for the local 

population. We seek the views of patients, carers and the public through individual 

feedback/input, consultations, working with other organisations and community 

groups, attendance at community events and engagement activity including patient 

surveys, focus groups and Healthwatch.  

 

As the local commissioners of health services, we seek to ensure that the services 

that are purchased on behalf of our local population reflect their needs, tackle 

inequalities and are of high quality, and do not disadvantage those residents with the 

poorest health. We appreciate that to deliver this requires meaningful consultation, 

involvement and co-production of all our stakeholders.  We aim to ensure that 

comments and feedback from our local communities are captured and, where 

possible, giving local people the opportunity to influence and redesign local health 
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services and enable people to have their say using a variety of communication 

methods enabling them to influence the way NHS health services are commissioned.  

 

Through our Joint Commissioning Unit we have worked across the health and care 

system to provide integrated services, a range of transformational work streams and 

innovative life course service delivery. Further work with the North East 

Commissioning Support Unit has enabled us to continue to work closely with other 

local NHS organisations to support the regional working that has been a legacy of 

the Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Regional Leads Meetings.  

 

We continue to monitor the health profiles and data available which detail the health 

challenges of our population including the Joint Strategic Needs and assets 

assessment (JSNAA) and Public Health Profiles. Further information can be found 

at: 

• Health Profiles: www.healthprofiles.info  

• Public Health England – Local Health: www.localhealth.org.uk  

• South Tyneside 

JSNAA: www.southtyneside.gov.uk/article/49425?utm_source=friendly_UR 

• Global Burden of Disease - http://www.healthdata.org/ 

 

 

 

 

  

http://www.healthprofiles.info/
http://www.localhealth.org.uk/
http://www.southtyneside.gov.uk/article/49425?utm_source=friendly_UR
http://www.healthdata.org/
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT  

Corporate Governance Report 

 

Members’ Report 
 
Member Practices and Council of Practices 
As a membership organisation the CCG comprises 21 practices that make up the 

membership, represented through the Council of Practices. The Member Practices 

that comprise the CCG are as follows: 

Practice 

Code 
 
 
 

Practice Name Address 

 

A88001 

 

Victoria Medical Centre 

12-28 Glen Street, Hebburn. Tyne and 

Wear. NE31 1NU 

 

A88002 

 

Farnham Medical Centre 

435 Stanhope Road, South Shields. Tyne 

and Wear. NE33 4QY 

 

A88003 

 

Marsden Road Health Centre Marsden Road, South Shields, NE346RE 

 

A88004 

 

Mayfield Medical Centre 

Park Road, Jarrow. Tyne and Wear. NE32 

5SE 

 

A88005 

 

Drs Haque and Haque 

171, Wenlock Road, South Shields. Tyne 

and Wear. NE34 9BP 

 

A88006 

 

Talbot Medical Centre 

Stanley Street, South Shields. Tyne and 

Wear. NE34 0BX 

 

A88007 

 

Wawn Street Surgery 

Wawn Street, South Shields. Tyne and 

Wear. NE33 4DX 

 

A88008 

 

Trinity Medical Centre 

New George Street, South Shields. Tyne 

and Wear. NE33 5DU 
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A88009 

 

Dr Thorniley-Walker and Partners 

The Medical Centre, Gibson Court, Boldon 

Colliery. Tyne and Wear. NE35 9AN 

 

A88010 

 

Albert Road Surgery 

118 Albert Road, Jarrow. Tyne and 

Wear. NE32 5AG 

 

A88012 

 

Ellison View Surgery 

Campbell Park Road, Hebburn. Tyne 

and Wear. NE31 2SP 

 

A88013 

 

Central Surgery 

Cleadon Park Primary Care Centre, 

Prince Edward Road, South Shields. Tyne 

and Wear. NE34 7QD 
 

A88014 

 

West View Surgery 

Stanhope Parade Health Centre, Gordon 

Street, South Shields. Tyne and Wear. 

NE33 4JP 

 

A88015 

 

St George and Riverside Practice  

New George Street, South Shields. Tyne 

and Wear. NE33 5DU 

 

A88016 

 

Colliery Court Medical Group 

The Medical Centre, Gibson Court, Boldon 

Colliery. Tyne and Wear. NE35 

9AN 

 

A88022 

 

The Glen Medical Group 

The Glen Primary Care Centre, 

Hebburn. Tyne and Wear. NE31 1NU 

A88023 Whitburn Surgery 3 Byers Street, Whitburn, Sunderland. 

Tyne and Wear. SR6 7EE 

 

 
 

A88025 

 

Drs Dowsett and Overs 

Palmer Community Hospital, Wear 

Street, Jarrow. Tyne and Wear. NE32 

3UX 
 

A88601 

 

Imeary Street  

78 Imeary Street, South Shields. Tyne and 

Wear. NE33 4EG 

 

A88608 

 

Ravensworth Surgery 

Horsley Hill Road, South Shields. Tyne 

and Wear. NE33 3ET 

 

A88613 

 

East Wing Surgery  

East Wing, Palmer 

Community Hospital, Wear Street, Jarrow. 

NE32 3UX 
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In keeping with the CCG as a membership organisation, there is an established 

Council of Practices which has reserved a limited number of matters to itself (as 

specified in the CCG’s Scheme of Reservation and Delegation) having delegated the 

majority of functions and duties of the CCG, through the means of the Constitution, 

to the Governing Body.  In 2019/20 the Council of Practices met in accordance with 

its Terms of Reference – a meeting once a year with further meetings being held in 

year as required. 

 

Governing Body 
The main functions of the Governing Body are described in section 14L of the 2006 

Health Service Act (inserted by section 25 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012). 

The Governing Body’s principal aim is to ensure that the group has made 

appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it complies with its obligations to exercise 

its functions effectively, efficiently, economically and in line with relevant generally 

accepted principles of good governance. The CCG’s Constitution specifies the 

arrangements made by the CCG for the discharge of functions by the Governing 

Body. 

 

 Membership of the Governing Body must include: 

• at least six members (including its chair and deputy chair) 

• accountable officer 

• at least one each of the following: 

o an employee of the CCG who has a professional qualification in 

accountancy and the expertise or experience to lead the financial 

management of the CCG 

o a registered nurse 

o an individual who is a secondary care specialist 

o a lay person who is qualified for membership  

o another lay person who is qualified for membership  

 

The CCG’s Constitution specifies that “each member of the governing body should 

share responsibility as part of a team to ensure that the group exercises its functions 

effectively, efficiently, and economically, with good governance and in accordance 
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with the terms of its constitution. Each brings their unique perspective, informed by 

their expertise and experience. Notwithstanding this, all members of the governing 

body have joint responsibility for every decision of the governing body regardless of 

their individual skills and experience”.  

 

The Governing Body is also supported by a number of committees which it has 

established and which provide regular reports to it. Details for these committees are 

set out in the Annual Governance Statement below. The executive team is 

responsible for the day-to-day running of the organisation and implementing 

decisions taken at a strategic level by the Board. 

 

The table below shows the members of the Governing Body during the year: 

Name Position 
Dr Matthew Walmsley GP Member, Chair 

Dr David Hambleton Chief Officer 

Ms Kate Hudson Chief Finance Officer 

 Pat Harle Lay Member 

Dr Tarquin Cross Secondary Care Consultant 

 Mr Paul Cuskin Lay Member, Public & Patient Involvement, Deputy 

Chair 

Mr Paul Morgan Lay Member, Governance, Chair of Audit & Risk 

Committee 

Dr Vis Nathan GP Member 

Mrs Jeanette Scott  Director of Nursing, Quality & Patient Safety 

Mr Matt Brown  Director of Operations  

Mr Tom Hall  Director of Public Health, South Tyneside Council  

Mr John Pearce  Corporate Director of Children, Adults & Health, 

South Tyneside Council 

 

Division of responsibilities  
The Governing Body is satisfied that there is a clear division of responsibilities 

between the Chair and Chief Executive. 
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Audit & Risk Committee 
The Audit & Risk Committee is a key part of the CCG’s governance and assurance 

framework and supports the organisation to achieve its goals, objectives and 

responsibilities to its stakeholders. 

 

The Audit & Risk Committee was established to provide the Governing Body with an 

independent and objective review of its financial systems, financial information and 

compliance with laws, guidance and regulations governing the NHS. 

 

The committee is appointed by the Governing Body from its “non-executive” 

members and consists of not less than three members. The Chief Finance Officer 

and representatives from internal and external audit, counter fraud and CCG 

management are also in attendance.   

 

Details of other CCG and Governing Body committees are set out in the Annual 

Governance Statement below. 

 

Register of Interests 
The Governing Body is satisfied that no direct conflicts of interest exist for any 

member of the Board, an accurate register of interests is regularly maintained and 

that each Lay Member/Non-Executive Director is considered to be independent.  

  

The register of Directors’ Interests is available on the CCG’s 

website  https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/STCCG-

Register-of-Interests-GB-and-Committees-and-decision-makers-2019-20-updated-

17.10.19.pdf and is updated annually in accordance with requirements.  

 

 

Personal data related incidents 
No information governance incidents related to personal data were reported by the 

CCG in 2019/20.  
 

  

https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/STCCG-Register-of-Interests-GB-and-Committees-and-decision-makers-2019-20-updated-17.10.19.pdf
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/STCCG-Register-of-Interests-GB-and-Committees-and-decision-makers-2019-20-updated-17.10.19.pdf
https://www.southtynesideccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/STCCG-Register-of-Interests-GB-and-Committees-and-decision-makers-2019-20-updated-17.10.19.pdf
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Statement of Disclosure to Auditors 
Each individual, who is a member of the CCG at the time the Members’ Report is 

approved, confirms: 

• so far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 

CCG’s auditor is unaware that would be relevant for the purposes of their audit 

report 

• the member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to 

make him or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 

the CCG’s auditor is aware of it. 

 

Modern Slavery Act 
NHS South Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group fully supports the Government’s 

objectives to eradicate modern slavery and human trafficking but does not meet the 

requirements for producing an annual Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement as 

set out in the Modern Slavery Act 2015. 
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Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities 
 

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical 

Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be 

appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England).  NHS England has 

appointed the Chief Officer to be the Accountable Officer of NHS South Tyneside 

Clinical Commissioning Group. 

 

The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health 

Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in the Clinical 

Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. They include 

responsibilities for: 

 

• The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable 

Officer is answerable, 

• For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable 

accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning 

Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the 

requirements of the Accounts Direction), 

• For safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for 

taking reasonable steps for the prevention  and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities), 

• The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public 

Money, 

• Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and 

economically (in accordance with Section 14Q of the NHS Act 2006 (as 

amended) and with a view to securing continuous improvement in the quality 

of services (in accordance with Section 14R of the NHS Act 2006, 

• Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H 

to 223J of the NHS Act 2006. 

 

Under the National Health Service Act 2006, NHS England has directed each 

Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year financial statements 
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in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction.  The financial 

statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net expenditure, 

changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply 

with the requirements of the  Group Accounting Manual  issued by the Department of 

Health and in particular to: 

 

• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the 

relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable 

accounting policies on a consistent basis; 

• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; 

• State whether applicable accounting standards are set out in the Group 

Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health have been followed 

and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements; 

and  

• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 

 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, and subject to the disclosures set out below 

(eg directions issued, s30 letter issued by external auditors), I have properly 

discharged the responsibilities set out under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended), 

Managing Public Money and in my Clinical Commissioning Group accountable 

Officer Appointment Letter.  

 

I also confirm that: 

 

• as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the CCG’s 

auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have taken steps that I 

ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and 

to establish that the CCG’s auditors are aware of that information; 

• that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 

understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the annual report and 
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accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is fair, balanced and 

understandable. 

 

 

Dr. Neil O’Brien 

Accountable Officer  

[x] May 2020 

 
Dr David Hambleton Accountable Officer to 31 March 2020 
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Governance Statement 2019/20 
 

1. Introduction & Context 
1.1 NHS South Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is a body corporate 

established by NHS England on 1 April 2013 under the National Health Service Act 

2006 (as amended).  

 

1.2 The CCG’s statutory functions are set out under the National Health Service Act 

2006 (as amended). The CCG’s general function is arranging the provision of 

services for the purposes of the health service in England. The CCG is, in particular, 

required to arrange for the provision of certain health services to such extent as it 

considers necessary to meet the reasonable requirements of its local population. 

 

1.3 As at 1 April 2020, the Clinical Commissioning Group is not subject to any 

directions from NHS England issued under Section 14Z21 of the National Health 

Service Act 2006 (as amended).  

 

1.4 The geographical area covered by NHS South Tyneside Clinical Commissioning 

Group is coterminous with the boundary of South Tyneside Metropolitan Borough 

Council and commissions health care on behalf of a population of 148,000. As a 

membership organisation the CCG comprises 21 practices that make up the 

membership, represented through the Council of Practices. The Governing Body is 

responsible for the day to day governance of the organisation in accordance with the 

delegated functions set out in the CCG’s Constitution. 

 

2. Scope of responsibility 
2.1 As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of 

internal control that supports the achievement of the CCG’s policies, aims and 

objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally 

responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing 

Public Money.  I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in my Clinical 

Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 
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2.2 I am responsible for ensuring that the CCG is administered prudently and 

economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding 

financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for reviewing the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control within the CCG as set out in this 

governance statement. 

 

3. Governance arrangements and effectiveness 
3.1. The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework 
 

3.1.1 The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L (2) (b) 

states: 

“The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made 

appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such generally accepted 

principles of good governance as are relevant to it.” 

 

3.1.2 The CCG has a Constitution based on the Department of Health’s Model 

Template that has been amended and approved to take into account subsequent 

guidance. Review of the CCG’s Constitution confirms that it complies with the 

elements of the self-certification checklist, including: 

• specifying the arrangements made by the CCG for the discharge of its 

functions; 

• specifying the arrangements made by the CCG for the discharge of the 

functions of the governing body; 

• the procedures to be followed by the CCG in making decisions; 

• the arrangements it has made to secure that individuals to whom health 

services are being or may be provided pursuant to its commissioning 

arrangements are involved; 

• arrangements made by the CCG for discharging its duties in respect of 

registers of interests and management of conflicts of interests; 

• arrangements made by the CCG for ensuring that there is transparency about 

the decisions of the group and the manner in which they are made; 

• Detailed Financial Policies and Scheme of Delegation. 
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In keeping with the Clinical Commissioning Group as a membership organisation, 

there is an established Council of Practices which has reserved a limited number of 

matters to itself (as  specified in the CCG’s Scheme of Reservation and Delegation) 

having delegated the majority of functions and duties of the CCG through means of 

the Constitution to the Governing Body. 

 

In light of the Covid-19 global pandemic, the Governing Body approved a revised 

temporary Scheme of Delegation on 26th March 2020 (for review in July 

2020).   CCG Standing Orders allow for emergency powers and urgent decisions to 

be taken. 

 

3.1.3 During 2019/20, the Governing Body met on six occasions in public for which 

there was an annual cycle of business, as well as holding a number of development 

sessions.   Agendas were structured to enable the Governing Body to deal with the 

range of its responsibilities including strategic, performance, quality assurance, risk 

and governance matters. The arrangements reflect the public service values of 

accountability, probity and openness and specify as Chief Officer my responsibility 

for ensuring that these values are met within the Clinical Commissioning Group. 

 

3.1.4 A schedule of Governing Body and Governing Body Committee membership 

together with attendance record for 2019/20 is set out below: 

 

Figure 1: Governing Body and Committee Meetings Attendance Record 
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South Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group 
Members’ Attendance Record 2019/20 

Name Title 
Audit & 
Risk 
Committee 

Quality & 
Patient 
Safety 
Committee 

Governing 
Body  

Remuneration 
Committee 

Primary Care 
Commissioning 
Committee 

Dr 

Matthew 

Walmsley 

Chair 

 5 of 7 5 of 6 2 of 3 

 

4 of 5 

 

Dr David 

Hambleton 

Chief 

Officer 
 5 of 7 6 of 6  

5 of 5 

       

Dr Tarquin 

Cross 

Secondary 

Care 

Consultant 

 5 of 7 6 of 6  

 

5 of 5 

Mr Matt 

Brown  

Director of 

Operations  
  6 of 6  

 

5 of 5 

Mrs 

Jeanette 

Scott 

Director of 

Nursing, 

Quality 

and Safety 

 6 of 7 6 of 6  

 

5 of 5 

Mr Paul 

Cuskin 

Lay 

Member 
3 of 5 3 of 7 6 0f 6 2 or 3 

 

4 of 5 

Ms Kate 

Hudson 

Chief 

Finance 

Officer 

  6 of 6  

 

5 of 5 

Mr Paul 

Morgan 

Lay 

Member 
5 of 5  5 of 6 3 of 3 

 

Mrs Pat 

Harle 

Lay 

Member 
5 of 5 7 of 7 6 of 6 3 of 3 

5 of 5 

Dr Vis 

Nathan 

Elected 

GP 

Member 

 5 of 7 2 of 6 2 of 3 

1 of 5 

 

Mr Tom Director of   4 of 6   
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3.1.5 The Clinical Commissioning Group has operated throughout the year with a 

committee structure which meets statutory guidance and reflects best practice, 

including Remuneration Committee, Audit & Risk Committee, Quality & Patient 

Safety Committee and Executive Committee. In addition, the CCG has established a 

Primary Care Commissioning Committee. In accordance with its statutory powers 

under section 13Z of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS 

England delegated responsibility for the commissioning of primary care services to 

the CCG in April 2017.The Primary Care Commissioning Committee’s terms of 

reference and a supporting schedule provide details of the extent of the delegated 

responsibility from NHS England for the commissioning of primary care services.   

 

The organisational structure including key committees is set out below:  

Hall  Public 

Health  

 

Mr John 

Pearce (to 

31 August 

2019) 

 Corporate 

Director of 

Children, 

Adults and 

Health 

  0 of 2  

 

 

0 of 2 

 

Dr Bill Hall GP 

Advisor, 

PCCC 

    

  

5 of 5 
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Figure 2: CCG and Governing Body Committee Structure 

 
3.1.6 Description of the established Governing Body Committees 

3.1.6.1 The roles of each of the Governing Body Committees are set out broadly 

below.  The Governing Body Committees have authority under the Scheme of 

Reservation and Delegation to establish sub committees or sub groups to enable 

them to fulfill their role.  Each of the Governing Body Committees has detailed Terms 

of Reference. Each Committee is authorised by the Governing Body to pursue any 

activity within their Terms of Reference and within the Scheme of Reservation and 

Delegation.   

 

3.1.6.2 Remuneration Committee 

The Committee is established to advise on and recommend to the Governing Body 

the appropriate remuneration and terms of service for the Chief Officer and other 

staff paid through the Very Senior Manager Pay Framework. The Committee also 

advises on and makes recommendations to the Governing Body on the 

Council of Practices 

Remuneration 
Committee 

Quality, Patient 
Safety 

Committee 

Prescribing 
Committee 

Cancer Locality 
Committee 

Audit & Risk 
Committee 

Executive 
Committee 

Primary Care 
Commissioning 

Committee 

Primary Care 
Quality 

Business 
Review Group 

Governing Body 

Financial 
Sustainability 

Exec Group 
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remuneration for the role of Chair, remuneration and terms of service of any 

independent lay members and clinical directors and reviews any business cases for 

early retirement and redundancy.  

 

3.1.6.3 Audit & Risk Committee 

In line with the requirements of the NHS Audit Committee Handbook and NHS 

Codes of Conduct and Accountability, the Committee provides the organisation with 

an independent and objective review of their financial systems, financial information 

and compliance with laws, guidance, and regulations governing the NHS. The 

Committee reviews the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of 

integrated governance, risk management and internal control, across the whole of 

the organisation’s activities. An annual Counter Fraud Plan is agreed by the 

Committee which focuses on the deterrence, prevention, detection and investigation 

of fraud. The Committee is a non-executive committee of the Governing Body and 

has no executive powers, other than those specifically delegated in its terms of 

reference. Annually the Committee also carries out a self-assessment of its 

effectiveness.  

 

The Committee’s cycle of business enables the Audit & Risk Committee to carry out 

its key objectives necessary to support its assurances regarding the effectiveness of 

the organisation’s internal controls.  

 

In accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Audit and Risk 

Committee has also taken on the responsibility for the appointment of external 

auditors as an Auditor Panel. 

 

3.1.6.4 Quality & Patient Safety Committee 

The principal purpose of the Quality & Patient Safety Committee is to ensure that the 

appropriate governance systems and processes are in place to commission, monitor 

and ensure the delivery of high quality safe patient care in commissioned services 

and to facilitate, monitor and ensure quality improvement in general medical practice 

working with the NHS England.  
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Significantly, during the year through its cycle of business, the Committee and its 

associated sub-committees have considered a number of quality and patient safety 

matters including monitoring provider quality and patient safety performance using a 

range of metrics. In addition, the Committee has reviewed assurance reports 

regarding quality of care in nursing homes, safeguarding, CQUIN schemes 

(Commissioning for Quality and Innovation), etc.  

 

3.1.6.5 Executive Committee 

The Executive Committee is responsible for delivery of the CCG’s overall 

management, to support the CCG to work efficiently, effectively and economically, 

ensuring clinical engagement and promoting the involvement of all member practices 

in the work of the CCG in securing improvements in commissioning of care and 

services. The committee ensures best practice in its decision making, and in 

particular ensures that decisions are based on clear and transparent criteria. The 

Committee has delegated authority to commit expenditure according to the CCG’s 

Scheme of Reservation and Delegation. 

 

3.1.6.6 Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

In accordance with its statutory powers under section 13Z of the National Health 

Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England delegated responsibility for the 

commissioning of primary care services to the CCG. Accordingly, in April 2017 the 

CCG established a Primary Care Commissioning Committee with delegated 

functions for the commissioning of primary care services. The Committee’s terms of 

reference and a supporting schedule provide details of the extent of the delegation 

 

In accordance with guidance and in order to avoid any conflicts of interests it is 

chaired by a Lay Member of the CCG and its GP membership is advisory and non-

voting. The Committee meets in public. 

 

3.1.6.7 Joint Committees 

In year, the CCG has continued to participate in a Joint Committee known as the 

Northern CCG Joint Committee. The Joint Committee covers all 12 CCGs in the 

North East and Cumbria with the aim of having decision-making authority in relation 

to certain commissioning matters as specified in its terms of reference and any future 
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agreed work plan. Specifically, these matters are namely the commissioning of 

Specialist Acute Services and 111 services. Under these arrangements each of the 

CCGs retains their statutory responsibilities, retaining statutory place-based clinical 

leadership and accountability to local populations, and maintaining their focus on 

local relationships and local delivery. 

 

Although provided in its Constitution, the CCG has not entered into any other formal 

joint committees but has engaged with other CCGs and partners in South Tyneside, 

including the Health and Wellbeing Board and a number of its sub-committees. In 

addition, the CCG has entered into joint arrangements with the CCGs in the North of 

England to determine commissioning for health gain policies and to review and 

approve individual funding requests, including conducting an appeals process. There 

is also a partnership based Local A&E Delivery Board in place within the area; its 

purpose to ensure system flow and resilience across the year. 

 

3.2 Review and assessment of Governing Body Effectiveness, including the UK 

Corporate Governance Code (July 2018) 

We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, 

we have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best 

practice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code 

we consider to be relevant to the CCG together with other best practice.  In year, the 

Governing Body also took the opportunity as part of its development to review and 

feedback on the effectiveness of each of its meetings using a standard template and 

criteria including evidence of constructive challenge, evidence of contributions 

beyond member disciplines, behaviour, pace and enthusiasm.  In particular, having 

reviewed the effectiveness of the CCG’s governance framework and arrangements 

in relation to The UK Corporate Code of Governance (July 2018), I consider that the 

organisation complies with the principles and standards of best practice contained 

within the Code. 

 

3.3 Discharge of Statutory Functions 

3.3.1 During establishment, the arrangements put in place by the Clinical 

Commissioning Group and explained within the Corporate Governance Framework 

were developed with extensive expert external legal input, to ensure compliance with 
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the all relevant legislation. That legal advice also informed the matters reserved for 

Membership Body and Governing Body decision and the scheme of delegation. 

 

3.3.2 In light of the 2013 Harris Review, the CCG has reviewed all of the statutory 

duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 

amended) and other associated legislative and regulations. As a result, I can confirm 

that the CCG is clear about the legislative requirements associated with each of the 

statutory functions for which it is responsible, including any restrictions on delegation 

of those functions. 

 

3.3.3 Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead 

Director. Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide the necessary 

capability and capacity to undertake all of the CCG’s statutory duties. 

 

4. Risk management arrangements and effectiveness 
4.1   The Clinical Commissioning Group Risk Management Framework  

4.1.1 A Risk Management Framework is in place which takes into account current 

guidance on risk management best practice and incorporates guidance provided by 

ISO 31000:2009 (formerly AZ/NZ Standard 4360:2004) and the former National 

Patient Safety Agency in its approach to assessing risk. 

 

4.1.2 The Risk Management Framework sets out the CCG’s approach to the 

assessment and management of clinical and non-clinical risk in fulfilment of its 

overall objective to commission high quality and safe services. It provides guidance 

for the systematic and effective management of risk. Key elements of the Risk 

Management Framework include: 

• a clear statement of Governing Body and individual accountability for delivery 

of the framework; 

• clear principles, aims and objectives of the risk management process; 

• a clearly defined process for delivering the framework including an 

implementation plan to ensure that the framework and risk management 

awareness is communicated to all staff; 

• details of the approach to be undertaken to assess and report risk; 
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• an agreed process for reporting, managing, analysing and learning from 

adverse events supported by a “fair blame” culture and approach; 

• confirmation of the arrangements for reporting risk through the risk register. 

 

4.1.3 Risk is identified and embedded in the organisation via a number of 

mechanisms including the incident reporting system which identifies the risks that 

have already (or nearly) occurred from incidents or near misses; through our 

strategic planning system which ensures that all organisational objectives are rated 

for risks to achievement of delivery; and in our performance management system 

which rates all objectives for risk to delivery. There is a detailed Risk Register which 

is populated by all Executive Directors and regularly reviewed and updated. The 

Audit & Risk Committee reviews the Risk Register at each of its meetings. In 

addition, Governing Body reports are assessed for equality impact. Previously in a 

development session the Governing Body also explored its risk appetite relative to 

the type of decisions that it needed to make. 

 

4.1.4 A Governing Body Assurance Framework has been developed and approved 

by the Governing Body. It is mapped to current strategic objectives, and has been 

subsequently reviewed and updated following consideration at meetings of the Audit 

& Risk Committee and Governing Body. The Assurance Framework has been 

developed and updated in year by Executive leads and managers in dedicated 

workshop sessions. It is mapped to the detailed Risk Register. The Assurance 

Framework enables the Governing Body to be aware of the risks to delivery of the 

organisation’s principal objectives and to ensure that effective controls and 

assurance are in place.  

 

4.1.5 Through the CCG’s Communications and Engagement Strategy the CCG has 

delivered a broad range of engagement and involvement activities including 

engagement events and public meetings. The CCG continues to attend and present 

regular updates at local groups in the borough, for example bi-monthly updates to 

HealthNet (an umbrella organisation for third sector organisations with an interest in 

health).  Feedback from the group is fed into work carried out within the CCG, for 

example Path to Excellence, CCG Progress and Priorities and Extended Access.   
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The CCG Local Engagement Board (LEB) continued through 2019-20.  On 10 June 

2019 Dr Jon Tose, Clinical Director at South Tyneside CCG, led the LEB at Whitburn 

Academy with Health and Social Care Year 12 students.  The topic of the LEB was 

Diagnosing Illness.  Jon worked with the students to enable them to understand how 

doctors and other health professionals diagnose some common medical 

conditions.  The LEB included five case studies which helped students to understand 

symptoms, signs, measurements and investigations which will be useful for the 

students’ coursework.  On Wednesday 28 August from 1-3pm we welcomed 

residents to our quarterly Local Engagement Board which took the form of an 

information event hosted by the Lord Nelson public house in Monkton Village.  The 

event took place in a marquee with around 35 stall holders including organisations 

such as the Stroke Association, Healthwatch, the Alzheimer’s Society and Change 4 

Life (a full list of stall holders is below).  Visitors aged 40-70 were invited to have an 

NHS health check, and diabetes health checks were also available.  It was also a 

chance to catch up on and discuss plans for the Path to Excellence programme, 

urgent care, long term conditions and end of life care services.  A healthy salad 

lunch was served by the pub along with tea and coffee.   

 

In February 2020 the LEB was re-branded to Let’s Talk about …  The Let’s Talk 

about Dying event took place on Wednesday 5 February in the Learning Lounge at 

Hebburn Central in the form of a Death Café.  We understand that talking about 

dying and death is difficult and wanted to make this as comfortable as possible for 

people.  There was coffee/tea/cake, no formal agenda and no presentations – the 

main aim of the café was to talk. 

 

The CCG Patient Reference Group, with members from local practices, continues to 

meet bi-monthly.  The agenda is set by the group and has included Path to 

Excellence engagement work; involvement in the end of life and palliative care 

workstream; updates on Long Term Conditions work and CCG finance; and updates 

from the Cancer Locality Group, North East Ambulance Service, and practice 

pharmacy. The CCG has continued to work with local schools in South Tyneside, 

with staff helping students through careers speed dating, mock interviews and career 

workshops. 
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4.1.6 Our anti-fraud activity plays a key part in deterring risks to the organisation’s 

financial viability and probity. An annual Anti-Fraud Plan is agreed by the Audit & 

Risk Committee which focuses on the deterrence, prevention, detection and 

investigation of fraud. The CCG is also an active participant in the national counter 

fraud initiative. 
 
4.2. Risk Assessment in Relation to Governance, Risk Management & Internal 

Control 

4.2.1 The risk management system has been implemented in accordance with 

agreed policy by the Director of Operations supported by the Operations and 

Engagement Manager, with expert input from the Commissioning Support 

Unit.   Additionally, the Chief Officer’s Scheme of Delegation clearly sets out the 

individual level responsibilities held at Director level in relation to risk management.  

 

4.2.2 The CCG’s integrated approach to risk management ensures that all risks are 

captured and monitored relating to quality and safeguarding, provider management, 

finance & QIPP and performance across the organisation. 

 

4.2.3 Current and potential risks are captured in the CCG’s risk register and include 

actions and timescales identified to minimise such risks. In accordance with local 

policy, the risk register is a log of risks that threaten the organisation’s success in 

achieving its aims and objectives and is populated through a risk assessment and 

evaluation process.  

 

4.3  In-year risks  

Significant corporate risks which the CCG has identified and which it has continued 

to mitigate through its management actions are set out below: 

• Continuing Healthcare – although there is risk of financial volatility the 

transformation plan put in place last year has demonstrated substantial 

improvement in quality, finance and efficiency; 

• Constitutional performance – although we identified this as a risk in terms of 

the quality and timeliness of services for the people of South Tyneside, the 

system wide working which has been taking place has led to extremely strong 

performance. 
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4.4 Future risks  

• COVID-19 – one of the key risks moving forward will be the impact of COVID-

19 on the health, wealth and wellbeing of the people of South Tyneside. 

• EU Exit – there is still a degree of uncertainty over how things will progress 

over 2020/21. 

 

4.5 Risks to compliance with the CCG’s Licence 

No risks have been identified to compliance with the CCG’s licence.  The CCG was 

licensed without any conditions attached to its authorisation.  During 2019/2020 

performance of the CCG and compliance with its licence has been assessed by the 

Area Team in line with NHS England’s CCG Assurance Framework. The CCG 

awaits the final year end assessment from NHS England.  

 

4.6 Capacity to Handle Risk 

4.6.1 As Accountable Officer I have overall responsibility for: 

• ensuring the implementation of an effective Risk Management Framework, 

including effective risk management systems and internal controls 

• the development of the corporate governance and assurance framework 

• meeting all the statutory requirements and ensuring positive performance 

towards our strategic objectives. 

 

4.6.2 Each of the Directors of the CCG is responsible for; 

• co-ordinating operational risk in their specific areas in accordance with the 

Risk Management Framework 

• ensuring that all areas of risk are assessed appropriately and action taken to 

implement improvements 

• ensuring that staff under their management are aware of their risk 

management responsibilities in relation to the Risk Management Framework 

• incorporating risk management as a management technique within the 

performance management arrangements for the organisation. 

 

4.6.3 All Managers within the CCG are responsible for implementing the risk 

management framework within their span of control and for ensuring that staff 



61 
 

understand and apply the relevant framework in relation to risk management. All staff 

within the CCG are responsible for assisting in the implementation of the Risk 

Management Framework and for highlighting any areas of risk through the incident 

reporting procedures, a principal means through which the CCG manages risk and 

learns lessons.  

 
5. Other sources of assurance 
5.1. The Clinical Commissioning Group Internal Control Framework  

A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the 

CCG to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It is designed to identify 

and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the 

impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 

economically. The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a 

reasonable level rather than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide 

reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 

control has been in place in the CCG for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to 

the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. 

 

5.2 Annual audit of conflicts of interest management 

The statutory guidance on Managing Conflicts of Interests for CCGs (June 2016) 

required CCGs to undertake an annual internal audit of conflicts of interest 

management. Accordingly, an annual audit of conflicts of interest management has 

been carried out based on the published audit framework template and which 

concluded an audit opinion of substantial. Further, in June 2017, NHS England 

published revised statutory guidance for CCGs on the management of conflicts to 

ensure that the guidance was fully aligned with the published NHS-wide conflicts of 

interests guidance. Consequently, the CCG’s policy was updated to reflect the latest 

guidance and approved at the meeting of the Governing Body in September 2017.  

 

5.3    Information Governance 

5.3.1 The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and 

procedures by which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in 

particular personal identifiable information. The NHS Information Governance 
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Framework is supported by a Data Security and Protection Toolkit and the annual 

submission process provides assurances to the CCG, other organisations and to 

individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and 

effectively. 

 

5.3.2 The CCG has an Information Governance Framework in place comprising an 

approved strategy, a suite of approved policies and procedures, a programme of 

mandatory training, information risk management, incident management and has 

also adopted and implemented the  Health and Social Care Information Centre’s 

(HSCIC), ‘Checklist for Reporting, Managing and Investigating Information 

Governance and Cyber Security Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation’.  

5.3.3 The organisation has in place a standard operating procedure for the reporting 

of level 2 Information Governance incidents to the Information Commissioner. This 

procedure outlines the scope of responsibilities and details the reporting procedures 

to be used in the event of a data security breach.  Eight information governance 

incidents were reported by the CCG in 2019/20.  

 

5.3.4 Information Governance forms part of the agenda of the Quality & Patient 

Safety Committee which reports to the Governing Body. The CCG has also 

appointed a Caldicott Guardian (Dr Matthew Walmsley) and Senior Information Risk 

Owner (Matt Brown). 

 

5.3.5 The CCG has submitted compliance level to the Health and Social Care 

Information Centre using the NHS Data Security and Protection Toolkit. The toolkit is 

an online system which allows NHS organisations and partners to assess 

themselves against DHSC information governance policies and standards. It also 

allows members of the public to view our progress on improving our information 

governance standards.  The CCG will be provided with the level of toolkit 

assessment following the year end period, once analysis is complete. 

 

5.3.6 The CCG complies with its statutory duty to respond to requests for 

information. During the year the CCG received 243 requests under the Freedom of 

Information Act 2000.  99% of all the requests were responded to within the statutory 

timescales of 20 days. 
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5.4 Data Quality 

5.4.1 The NECS Data Management service have processes and systems in place to 

assess the quality and completeness of data managed on behalf of the CCG. Data is 

checked at all stages of processing through CSU (Commissioning Support Unit) 

systems and finally on publication of reports/analysis. Data is compared against 

historic and planned levels to provide assurance on completeness as well as with 

peer organisations in the form of benchmarking analysis. 

 

5.4.2 Processes are in place to raise any data quality issues with providers on a 

monthly basis – feedback from these challenges is utilised to alter any processing 

routines as required. The CCG utilises contract levers where necessary to ensure 

high quality data is captured at source and to minimise any updating of data once 

received by commissioners. Reconciliation accounts for each contract highlight any 

discrepancies between provider and commissioner data that are then investigated 

and resolved.  

 

5.4.3 Significant validation steps are in place in all routine data processing tasks to 

ensure poor quality data is not made available for analysis and then subsequently 

used as the basis for commissioning decisions. 

 

5.4.4 On the basis that reports presented to the Governing Body have been through 

this process, the Governing Body finds the quality of data presented acceptable. 
 

5.5 Business Critical models 

5.5.1 The CCG is aware of the quality assurance requirements in respect of 

business critical models contained within the recommendations in the Macpherson 

report.  The Commissioning Support Unit holds all the business critical models that 

are used by the CCG. The CCG has received assurance that an appropriate 

framework and environment is in place to provide quality assurance of business 

critical models, in line with the recommendations in the Macpherson report.  This 

assurance covers the period 1 April 2019 to March 2020.  

 

5.5.2 Further assurance has been given that all business critical models have been 

identified and that information relating to the quality assurance processes for those 
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models is available to the Analytical Oversight Committee chaired by the Chief 

Analyst in the Department of Health, as appropriate. 

 

5.6 Third Party Assurances Not received as yet, still to be updated 

• Payroll: The CCG payroll service is provided by Northumbria Healthcare NHS 

Foundation Trust. No issues of concern have been raised during the year. The 

assurance letter for 2019-20 was received on X 2019 covering the following 

areas; pensions, payroll, maternity pay, expenses and governance.  All areas 

reviewed received an assurance level of substantial with no issues of note.  

 

• North of England Commissioning Support Service (NECS): During 2019/20 

the CCG identified the receipt of adequate assurances from the Commissioning 

Support Unit (NECS) as a key risk.   

 

For 2019/20, it was agreed that Deloitte LLP would provide one ISAE 3402 report 

covering the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.  

 

The report was received by the CCG on 4 May 2020.  The report identified four 

minor control weaknesses for which NECS had additional compensating controls 

in place to protect the CCG.  The CCG was therefore assured regarding the 

control environment with NECS. 

 

The provision of the SAR gave additional assurance to the CCG’s External 

Auditors and reduced the amount of substantive testing undertaken by them as 

part of the annual accounts audit. 

 

• NHS Business Services Authority (BSA): The CCG relies on the BSA for 

prescribing spend reporting. There were no significant issues reported in year in 

relation to any internal control issues at the BSA affecting the provision of the 

service to the CCG. 
 

• Capita: Due to the global Covid-19 pandemic, the assurance report has not yet 

been received by the CCG.  However, the External Auditors have confirmed that 
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they do not rely on this SAR, undertake comprehensive testing themselves and 

that they are assured that the CCG has in place compensating controls. 

 

5.7 Data Security 

5.7.1 The CCG has published the HSCIC Data Security and Protection Toolkit and 

has self-assessed as being fully compliant, which confirms the organisation’s rating 

as overall ‘good’ in this regard.  

 

5.7.2 There were no data security breaches of a serious rating identified in 2019/20.  

 

5.7.3 NECS as the provider of IT services to the CCG has a range of controls in 

place.  Control objectives include: physical access, logical access, segregation of 

duties, data transmissions, data centre environmental controls, IT processing, data 

integrity and backups, change management procedures, network security measures, 

data migration, problem and incident resolution, system recovery and disaster 

recovery plans. 

 

6. Control Issues 
The CCG did not identify any control issues within the Month 09 Governance 

Statement return, but the emergence of the global Covid-19 pandemic has required 

the CCG to make temporary changes to its governance arrangements, as described 

above. 

 

7. Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Use of 
Resources 
7.1 The CCG developed a balanced financial plan for the year 2019/20 which 

included holding 0.5% contingency and maintenance of 1.0% cumulative surplus.  

Within the plan the CCG also set a savings programme. Each meeting of the 

Executive Committee and of the Governing Body received a finance report detailing 

performance against plan.  In addition, the Audit & Risk Committee met informally to 

discuss finance issues on a monthly basis.   
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7.2 Throughout the commissioning round for 2019/20 all major contracts were 

reviewed and where possible contractual efficiencies were pursued. The CCG has 

been working closely with local health economy partners to deliver a medium to long 

term financial plan that will address the issue of financial sustainability for all four 

organisations involved in the work. 

 

7.3 The CCG also engaged with North of England Commissioning Support (NECS) 

Unit in ensuring that where benchmarking information was available it was used to 

compare CCG performance to other areas both locally and nationally and this was 

fed into contractual discussions and forward planning.   

 

7.4 A review of financial planning and savings programme is included within the 

CCG Internal Audit work programme.   

 

7.5 As part of their annual audit, the CCG’s external auditors are required to satisfy 

themselves that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources.  They do this by examining 

documentary evidence and through discussions with senior managers. Their audit 

work is made available to and reviewed by the Audit & Risk Committee. 

 

7.6 During 2019/20 performance of the CCG and compliance with its licence has 

been assessed by the Area Team in line with NHS England’s CCG Assurance 

Framework. The CCG awaits the final year-end assessment from NHS England.   

 

7.7 Delegation of functions 

The CCG has delegated decision-making on an aspect of its expenditure through a 

pooled funding arrangement with South Tyneside Metropolitan Borough Council - the 

Better Care Fund.  Additionally, separate arrangements exist in relation to NHS 

Continuing Healthcare, Funded Nursing Care and Personal Health Budgets, as well 

as an integrated budget and risk share arrangement for Learning Disabilities.  

Governance processes have been clearly outlined in a formal agreement and control 

of resources remains within the CCG. The CCG interfaces with the Council on these 

arrangements in a range of ways, e.g. at officer level, at director level, and at 

Committee level.  
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7.8 Counter fraud arrangements 

The CCG ensures that it adheres to the NHS Protect Standards for Commissioners: 

Fraud, Bribery and Corruption. In addition: 

• An Accredited Counter Fraud Specialist is contracted to undertake counter 

fraud work proportionate to identified risks.    

• The CCG Audit and Risk Committee agree the annual counter fraud work plan 

and receive counter fraud reporting against the plan.  The Counter Fraud 

specialist is invited to attend Audit & Risk Committee. 

• The CCG submits a Counter Fraud Self Review Tool annually to the NHS 

Counter Fraud Authority.  This is signed off by the Chief Finance Officer and 

the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee as being a true representation of 

the CCG’s counter fraud arrangements.  

• The Chief Finance Officer is the executive lead for proactively and 

demonstrably tackling fraud, bribery and corruption. 

• Appropriate action is taken regarding any NHS Protect quality assurance 

recommendations. 

 

8.  Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
8.1 Introduction 
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit 

is required to provide an annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 

the organisation’s system of internal control.  

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Audit & Risk Committee with the draft 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion for the year ending 31 March 2020, which should be 

used to inform the Annual Governance Statement.  

 

The timeline for submission of the Head of Internal Audit Opinion is as follows: 

By 13 March 

(noon) 

A full copy of the draft Head of Internal Audit Opinion (to allow regional 

assurance activity to commence). To aid thematic analysis, this should 

include a summary table of all audit reviews undertaken, and the level 

of assurance assigned to each review. 

By 16 April (noon) A full copy of the draft Head of Internal Audit Opinion (to allow regional 

http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/4883.aspx
http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/4883.aspx
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Revised: 27 April 
(noon) 

assurance activity to commence). To aid thematic analysis, this should 

include a summary table of all audit reviews undertaken, and the level 

of assurance assigned to each review. 

By 26 May (noon) 

Revised: 25 June 

(5pm) 

A full copy of the final Head of Internal Audit Opinion statement as 

issued by the CCG’s internal auditors. Note this should be submitted a 

separate document. A summary version should be included in the 

CCG Annual Report. 

 

This version has been prepared for the 27 April submission date. A previous version 

was prepared for submission to NHS England by the first draft submission date of 13 

March 2020. 

 

Some amendments have been made to the submission deadlines set by NHS 

England, and these are reflected in the table above. However, our intention is to 

issue the final Head of Internal Audit Opinion in line with the original submission 

deadline where this is possible. 

 
8.2. Head of Internal Audit Opinion on the Effectiveness of the System of Internal 

Control at NHS South Tyneside CCG for the year ending 31 March 2020 

8.2.1     Roles and responsibilities 

The Accountable Officer is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal 

control and is responsible for putting in place arrangements for gaining assurance 

about the effectiveness of that overall system. 

 

The Annual Governance Statement is an annual statement by the Accountable 

Officer, on behalf of the Governing Body, setting out: 

 

• how the individual responsibilities of the Accountable Officer are discharged with 

regard to maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the 

achievement of policies, aims and objectives; 

• the purpose of the system of internal control as evidenced by a description of the 

risk management and review processes, including the Assurance Framework 

process; 
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• the conduct and results of the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 

control, including any disclosures of significant control failures together with 

assurances that actions are or will be taken where appropriate to address issues 

arising. 

 

The organisation’s Assurance Framework should bring together all of the evidence 

required to support the Annual Governance Statement requirements. 

 

In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit 

is required to provide an annual opinion, based upon, and limited to, the work 

performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk 

management, control and governance processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of 

internal control). This is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, approved by the 

Audit Committee, which should provide a reasonable level of assurance, subject to 

the inherent limitations described below.  

 

The opinion does not imply that Internal Audit have reviewed all risks and 

assurances relating to the organisation. The opinion is substantially derived from the 

conduct of risk-based plans, generated from a robust and organisation-led 

Assurance Framework. As such, it is one component that the Accountable Officer 

takes into account in making the Annual Governance Statement. The Accountable 

Officer will need to integrate these results with other sources of assurance when 

making a rounded assessment of control for the purposes of the Annual Governance 

Statement. 

 

8.2.2     The Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

The purpose of my annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion is to contribute to the 

assurances available to the Accountable Officer and the Governing Body which 

underpins the organisation’s own assessment of the effectiveness of the system of 

internal control. This Opinion will in turn assist in the completion of the Annual 

Governance Statement. 

 

My opinion is set out as follows: 
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• Overall opinion; 

• Basis for the opinion; 

• Commentary. 

 

In providing this opinion, it is important that to recognise the additional limitations on 

our work caused by the Covid-19 pandemic. These limitations include access to 

CCG personal and the timely supply of information that would available to us in 

normal operating circumstances. However, as your Head of Internal Audit I am 

satisfied that we have sufficient evidence, largely based upon the completion of Core 

Internal Audit plan and carefully considered professional judgements, to provide the 

CCG with a robust Head of Internal Audit Opinion. 

 

Overall Opinion 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Basis of the Opinion  

The basis for forming my 

opinion is as follows: 

 

1. An assessment of the 

design and operation of 

the underpinning 

Assurance Framework 

and supporting 

processes for 

governance and the 

management of risk; 

2. An assessment of the 

range of individual 

Brought forward 
Internal Audit 

assurances 

Response to 
Internal Audit 

Recommendations 

Significant other 
factors 

Outturn of 
Internal Audit Plan 

Assurance  
Framework and 

supporting 
processes 

From my review of your systems of internal control, I am providing a draft opinion of 
substantial assurance that the system of internal control has been effectively designed to 
meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are being consistently applied. 
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opinions arising from audit assignments, contained within risk-based plans 

that have been reported throughout the year. This assessment has taken 

account of the relative materiality of these areas and management’s progress 

in respect of addressing control weaknesses; 

3. Brought forward Internal Audit assurances; 

4. An assessment of the organisation’s response to Internal Audit 

recommendations, and 

5. Consideration of significant factors outside the work of Internal Audit. 

 

Commentary 

The below commentary provides the context for my opinion and together with the 

opinion should be read in its entirety. 

 
Opinion Area 

 
Commentary 

Design and 

operation of the 

Assurance 

Framework and 

supporting 

processes 

The Governing Body Assurance Framework has been updated for 

2019/20 and presented to the Governing Body and Audit and Risk 

Committee. The Governing Body Assurance Framework was last 

presented to the Governing Body on 28 November 2019 and to the 

Audit and Risk Committee on 10 March 2020.  

 

The Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20 is based on the 

CCG’s strategic objectives and an analysis of the principal risks to 

achieving those objectives. The key controls that have been put in 

place to manage the risks have been documented, and the sources 

of assurance for individual controls have been identified. The 

Governing Body Assurance Framework therefore provides the CCG 

with a comprehensive mechanism for the management of the 

principal risks to meeting its strategic objectives and supports the 

compilation of the Annual Governance Statement.  

 

The CCG has developed risk management processes that are 

operating within the organisation. The Quality and Patient Safety 

Committee, together with the Audit and Risk Committee, oversee the 

risk management agenda and report to the Governing Body. They 
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

provide assurance to the Governing Body on the systems and 

processes by which the organisation leads, directs and controls its 

functions in order to achieve its strategic objectives. 

 

We have reviewed the effectiveness of the assurance framework, and 

the underpinning risk management processes, in bringing together all 

of the activities and objectives of the CCG. No significant issues were 

identified. 

Outturn of Internal 

Audit Plan 

 

 

A table of individual opinions arising from audit assignments reported 

throughout the year is contained at Appendix A. Definitions of 

individual opinions are given at Appendix B.  

 

To date, we have issued assurance levels in relation to six assurance 

areas in either draft or final form. Where reports have been issued in 

draft, the assurance level has been agreed with the CCG, although 

management responses in relation to the action to be taken to 

address identified weaknesses have not yet been received.  

 

All reports bar two issued so far during the year give substantial 

assurance, with the two remaining reports being issued with an 

assurance level of good: Continuing Healthcare, issued as a draft 

report with two medium and four low priority findings identified; and 

Data Security and Protection Toolkit issued as a final report, with the 

assurance level being a reflection of difficulties in obtaining evidence 

to support some mandatory assertions where this evidence is held by 

the CCG’s commissioning support unit rather than within the CCG. 

No high priority findings were raised in either report. The CCG will 

provide management responses for the draft report in due course. 

Brought forward 

Internal Audit 

assurances 

 

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion given for the year ended 31 

March 2019 gave a level of assurance of ‘substantial’. There were no 

material issues identified to be brought forward for consideration in 

this opinion statement. 

Response to 

Internal Audit 

There is a formal process in place to follow up on outstanding actions 

to address risks identified in internal audit reports. Progress against 
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

recommendations 

 

 

outstanding actions is reported in regular progress reports to the 

Audit Committee, with specific attention drawn to any actions where 

the target date has been put back, or where no update has been 

received from officers within the CCG. As at 22 April 2020, all actions 

from final reports that were due for implementation had been 

implemented. 

 

It is for the CCG to consider whether any outstanding actions in 

relation to identified risks are sufficiently significant to be reflected in 

the Annual Governance Statement. 

Significant factors 

outside the work of 

internal audit 

 

 

While the Head of Internal Audit Opinion provides the CCG with 

assurances in relation to the areas covered by the internal audit plan, 

it is only one of the sources of assurance available to the CCG. As 

the CCG outsources many of its functions, assurances from third 

parties are equally as important when the CCG draws up its Annual 

Governance Statement.  

 

The main ones that we have been made aware of are summarised 

below, and although we have reviewed these for any significant items 

of control, we have not taken account of these in providing the overall 

opinion except where indicated: 

 

- Payroll services are provided by NHS Payroll Services hosted by 

Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust. The CCG, 

through its membership of the Payroll Consortium, receives an 

annual assurance letter setting out the results of the internal 

audit work carried out during the year.  This assurance letter is 

normally available towards the end of April 2020. 

 

- The CCG outsources many of its support services to the North of 

England Commissioning Support Unit (NECS), hosted by NHS 

England, under a signed service level agreement. Assurances 

on the operation of certain financial and payroll controls are 

provided by NHS England’s internal auditors, Deloitte LLP, via 
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

an ISAE 3402 Type II report. The report for 2019-20 is expected 

to be issued in May 2020. 

  

- Assurance in respect of the operation of the finance and 

accounting services provided by NHS Shared Business Services 

(SBS) is provided by the NHS SBS’ auditors, PwC LLP, on an 

annual basis. This year’s report is expected to be issued in April 

2020. 

 

- Assurance in respect of the primary care support services 

provided from Capita Business Services Limited to NHS England 

and CCGs is provided by Capita’s auditors, Mazars, on an 

annual basis.  Reports issued for 2016/17 and 2017/18 identified 

significant control weaknesses. Improvements were noted in the 

two reports issued for 2018/19, although some control 

weaknesses remained. The report for 2019/20 is expected to be 

issued in May 2020. 

 

Given the historic control weaknesses reported, the CCG may 

wish to consider what compensating controls it has in place. 

 

- Assurance in respect of the operation of the prescription 

payments process provided by NHS Business Service Authority 

and Capita for 2018/19 is provided by the NHS BSA’s auditors, 

PwC LLP, via an ISAE 3402 Type II report on an annual 

basis.  The report for 2019/20 is expected to be issued in May 

2020. 

 

- Assurance in respect of the operation of the NHS GP Payment 

Service provided by NHS Digital for 2018/19 was provided by the 

NHS Digital’s auditors, PwC LLP, via an ISAE 3402 Type II 

report issued on an annual basis.  The report for 2019/20 is 

expected to be issued in May 2020. 
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

- Your Local Counter Fraud Specialist is required to submit an 

annual Self-Review Tool (SRT) to the NHS Counter Fraud 

Authority (NHSCFA) in relation to the CCG’s anti-fraud, bribery 

and corruption arrangements, which provides an overview of the 

CCG’s counter fraud activity, progress against NHSCFA 

requirements and assists the CFO and audit committee in 

monitoring and managing the counter fraud service. The 

completed SRT for 2019/2020 has been reviewed and approved 

by both the Audit Committee Chair and Chief Finance Officer 

and was submitted to the NHSCFA prior to the deadline of 31 

May 2020. The CCG’s overall rating for 2019/20 is Amber. The 

CCG has not been subject to an NHSCFA quality inspection in 

2019/20.   

 

- The Electronic Staff Record (ESR) service is provided by IBM. 

An ISAE 3000 Type II report covering the operation of the 

national system is issued on an annual basis. The report for 

2019/20 is expected to be issued in May 2020. 

 

It is for the CCG to decide what assurance to take from these reports 

and whether any of the weaknesses identified should be included 

within the CCG’s Annual Governance Statement. Nevertheless, I can 

advise the Governing Body that the work on the outsourced payroll 

functions will have been undertaken in accordance with the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the staff at NHS South Tyneside CCG 

for the co-operation and assistance provided to my team during the year.  

Carl Best 
Director of Internal Audit 
AuditOne 
 
XX May 2020  
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Summary of work undertaken 
 
Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 

Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 
CORE ASSURANCE 
 
STCCG 2019-20/02: 

Governance Structures and 

Risk Management 

Arrangements [Final] 

 

High 

Risk: 1909: Ensuring achievement of 

economy, efficiency, probity and 

accountability in the user of resources. There 

is a risk that the CCG doesn't meet its 

statutory financial duties. Principal risks to 

delivery: Contract over performance, e.g. 

secondary care activity increases and 

commissioning budget overspends; non-

delivery of CCG QIPP programme; 

overspend on CCG running cost allocation; 

lack of adequate and experience financial 

support to prepare reports and projections; 

failure to achieve economy, efficiency, probity 

and accountability in the use of resources; 

increasing and unforeseen pressure on CHC 

spend; BCG overspend does not reduce non-
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Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 
Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

elective admissions; increasing and 

unforeseen pressure on prescribing. 

 

Risk 1993: Failure to ensure that the CCG 

has robust systems in place to fulfil 

assurance with NHS England and meets its 

public accountability duties. Failure to ensure 

the CCG is aware of all risks and has plans in 

place to minimise and mitigate these.  

STCCG 2019-20/02: 

Conflicts of Interest [Final] High 

Risk 1993:  Failure to meet statutory 

responsibilities including requirements under 

NHS Constitution and potential challenge.  

 
   

STCCG 2019-20/03: Data 

Security and Protection 

Toolkit [Final] 

Medium 

Risk 1993: Failure to meet statutory 

responsibilities including requirements in the 

NHS Constitution and potential challenge. 
  

  

STCCG 2019-20/04: Primary 

Medical Care Commissioning 

[Final] 
High 

Risk 1990: Key Target Areas: develop 

primary care and community services to 

support people in a community-based setting 

and provide a point of ongoing continuity, 

which for most people will be general 

practice. Principal risks: Too many patients 
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Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 
Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

attend/are treated in a hospital setting where 

self-care or primary and community services 

would have been more appropriate. Primary 

and community services are unable to 

respond to the needs of patients through lack 

of capacity and/or lack of responsiveness. [...] 

Primary care strategy needs to underpin new 

ways of working in general practice. May 

need to strengthen engagement and 

communication with local population and 

practice staff.  

STCCG 2019-20/05: Contract 

and Performance Monitoring 

 

[Work ongoing] 

High 

Risk 1912: Non-achievement of A & E 4 hour 

standard.  Standards for delayed transfers of 

care not met.  Surge in A & E attendance will 

impact performance and outcomes for 

patients.  Patient flow within the system is 

compromised.  Not enough beds available to 

deal with surge and complexity of patients 

admitted through A&E.  systems / capacity 

issues lead to delays in discharges. 

 

 

   



79 
 

Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 
Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

Risk: 1909: Ensuring achievement of 

economy, efficiency, probity and 

accountability in the user of resources. There 

is a risk that the CCG doesn't meet its 

statutory financial duties. Principal risks to 

delivery: Contract over performance, e.g. 

secondary care activity increases and 

commissioning budget overspends; non-

delivery of CCG QIPP programme; 

overspend on CCG running cost allocation; 

lack of adequate and experience financial 

support to prepare reports and projections; 

failure to achieve economy, efficiency, probity 

and accountability in the use of resources; 

increasing and unforeseen pressure on CHC 

spend; BCG overspend does not reduce non-

elective admissions; increasing and 

unforeseen pressure on prescribing. 

Risk 1993: Failure to meet statutory 

responsibilities including requirements under 

NHS Constitution and potential challenge. 
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Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 
Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

STCCG 2019-20/06: 

Financial and Strategic 

Planning [Final] 

High 

Risk 1990: Key Target Areas: Develop 

Primary Care and Community Services to 

support people in a community-based setting 

and provide a point of ongoing continuity, 

which for most people will be general 

practice. 

 

Risk 1913: Key Target Areas: Best use of 

South Tyneside £. Achievement of 

QIPP/NHS Right Care target for 2018/19 and 

other standards and targets. 

 

Risk: 1909: Ensuring achievement of 

economy, efficiency, probity and 

accountability in the user of resources. There 

is a risk that the CCG doesn't meet its 

statutory financial duties. Principal risks to 

delivery: Contract over performance, e.g. 

secondary care activity increases and 

commissioning budget overspends; non-

delivery of CCG QIPP programme; 
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Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 
Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

overspend on CCG running cost allocation; 

lack of adequate and experience financial 

support to prepare reports and projections; 

failure to achieve economy, efficiency, probity 

and accountability in the use of resources; 

increasing and unforeseen pressure on CHC 

spend; BCG overspend does not reduce non-

elective admissions; increasing and 

unforeseen pressure on prescribing. 

STCCG 2019-20/07: Key 

Financial Controls and QIPP 

Reporting 

 

[Work ongoing] 

 

 
High 

Risk 1913: Key Target Areas: Best use of 

South Tyneside £. Achievement of 

QIPP/NHS Right Care target for 2018/19 and 

other standards and targets. 

 

Risk: 1909: Ensuring achievement of 

economy, efficiency, probity and 

accountability in the user of resources. There 

is a risk that the CCG doesn't meet its 

statutory financial duties. Principal risks to 

delivery: Contract over performance, e.g. 

secondary care activity increases and 
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Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 
Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

commissioning budget overspends; non-

delivery of CCG QIPP programme; 

overspend on CCG running cost allocation; 

lack of adequate and experience financial 

support to prepare reports and projections; 

failure to achieve economy, efficiency, probity 

and accountability in the use of resources; 

increasing and unforeseen pressure on CHC 

spend; BCG overspend does not reduce non-

elective admissions; increasing and 

unforeseen pressure on prescribing. 

STCCG 2018-19/09 

Continuing Healthcare and 

Funded Nursing Care [Draft] 

High 

Risk: 1909: Ensuring achievement of 

economy, efficiency, probity and 

accountability in the user of resources. There 

is a risk that the CCG doesn't meet its 

statutory financial duties. Principal risks to 

delivery: Contract over performance, e.g. 

secondary care activity increases and 

commissioning budget overspends; non-

delivery of CCG QIPP programme; 

overspend on CCG running cost allocation; 
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Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 
Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

lack of adequate and experience financial 

support to prepare reports and projections; 

failure to achieve economy, efficiency, probity 

and accountability in the use of resources; 

increasing and unforeseen pressure on CHC 

spend; BCG overspend does not reduce non-

elective admissions; increasing and 

unforeseen pressure on prescribing. 

  Totals 
 

5 1 0 0 
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9. Review of Effectiveness 
9.1 My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the 

work of the internal auditors and the executive managers and clinical leads within the 

CCG who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal 

control framework. I have drawn on performance information available to me. I have 

been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the 

system of internal control by the Governing Body, the Audit & Risk Committee and 

the Quality & Patient Safety Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and 

ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.   This takes the form of a 

range of performance reports and reports that identify mitigating actions in relation to 

identified risks. 

 

9.2 The Assurance Framework itself provides me with evidence that the 

effectiveness of controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group 

achieving its principal objectives have been reviewed 

 

9.3 As part of the CCG’s risk management processes, an Assurance Framework has 

been in place throughout the year which provides a simple yet comprehensive 

method for the effective and focussed management of the principal risks and 

assurances to meeting and delivering the CCG’s objectives. The Assurance 

Framework reflects the principal risks associated with the delivery of the CCG’s 

strategic objectives.  This includes risks around the delivery of the CCG’s strategic 

aims, and financial stability. The Assurance Framework details the key controls and 

assurances in place against each risk, together with any relevant action being taken 

to address gaps in controls and assurances where required.  

 

9.4 The Assurance Framework is complemented by detailed risk registers that 

record the full comprehensive list of all risks facing the CCG at an operational and 

strategic level.  There have been no significant issues that have revealed 

deficiencies as risks have materialised. 
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10. Conclusion 
In conclusion, my review confirms that the CCG has had a generally sound system 

of internal controls in place that supported the achievement of its policies, aims and 

objectives.  
 

 

 

Dr Neil O’Brien 

Accountable Officer  

[x] May 2020 

 

Dr David Hambleton  Accountable Officer to 31 March 2020 
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Remuneration and Staff Report  
 
The remuneration and staff report sets out the organisation’s remuneration policy for 

directors and senior managers, reports on how that policy has been implemented 

and sets out the amounts awarded to directors and senior managers and where 

relevant the link between performance and remuneration. 

 

Remuneration Report  
 

Remuneration Committee 
The remuneration committee was established to advise the Governing Body about 

pay, other benefits and terms of employment for the Chief Officer and other senior 

staff. 

The remuneration committee is established in accordance with the CCG’s 

constitution, standing orders and scheme of delegation. The committee membership 

is as follows: 

• Patricia Harle  Chair of Remuneration Committee/Lay Member 

• Matthew Walmsley CCG Chair 

• Dr Vis Nathan GP Member of Governing Body 

• Paul Cuskin Governing Body Lay Member 

• Paul Morgan Governing Body Lay Member 

 

The remuneration committee has delegated authority from the Governing Body to 

make recommendations on determinations about pay and remuneration for 

employees of the CCG and people who provide services to the CCG. 

Policy on the remuneration of senior managers  
The remuneration for senior managers for current and future financial years is 

determined in accordance with relevant guidance, best practice and national policy. 

Continuation of employment for all senior managers is subject to satisfactory 
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performance. Performance in post and progress in achieving set objectives is 

reviewed annually. 

There were no individual performance review payments made to any senior 

managers during the year and there are no plans to make such payments in future 

years. This is in accordance with standard NHS terms and conditions of service and 

guidance issued by the Department of Health. 

Contracts of employment in relation to all senior managers employed by the CCG 

are permanent in nature and subject to between three and six months’ notice of 

termination by either party. 

Termination payments are limited to those laid down in statute and those provided 

for within NHS terms and conditions of service and under the NHS Pension Scheme 

Regulations for those who are members of the scheme. No awards have been made 

during the year to past senior managers. 

  For the purpose of this remuneration report, the definition of ‘senior managers’ is as 

per the CCG Annual Reporting Guidance published by NHS England: 

Those persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or 

controlling the major activities of the clinical commissioning group.  

This means those who influence the decisions of the entity as a whole rather than 

the decisions of individual directorates or departments. 

It is considered that the Governing Body and Executive Committee members 

represent the senior managers of the CCG. 

 

Remuneration of Very Senior Managers (VSM)  
Where one or more senior managers of a CCG are paid more than a pro rata of 

£150,000 per annum, equivalent to the Prime Minister’s salary, information is 

disclosed in the remuneration report.  

During 2019/20 South Tyneside CCG had seven senior managers that were paid 

more than a pro rata of £150,000 per annum.  The senior managers were in part 

time roles and were not paid more than the Prime Minister’s actual salary.   
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VSM Salaries were set at the establishment of the CCG in line with nationally 

mandated pay scales.  The Remuneration Committee reviews the level of pay award 

applied to VSM on an annual basis and has determined that VSM pay award should 

not be inconsistent with that applied to non VSM staff, i.e. the nationally determined 

pay award for staff on ‘agenda for change’ pay scales is applied to VSM. 
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Senior manager remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements) 
Table 1: South Tyneside CCG remuneration report 2019/20 (this has been subject to audit) 

Name  Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest 

£100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All 
pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000)   (bands of 

£5,000) 
(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Dr Matthew Walmsley GP Chair 45-50 - - - 12.5-15 55-60 
Paul Cuskin Deputy Chair/Lay Member 10-15 2 - - - 10-15 
Patricia Harle Lay Member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 
Paul Morgan Lay Member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 
Dr Tarquin Cross Secondary Care Clinician 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Dr Sreeni Vis-Nathan GP Member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Dr David Hambleton Chief Executive 125-130 66 - - 35-37.5 170-175 
Matt Brown Director of Operations 95-100 110 - - 52.5-55 160-165 
Kate Hudson Chief Finance Officer 105-110 3 - - 17.5-20 125-130 
Jeanette Scott  Director of Nursing, Quality & Safety 65-70 5 - - - 65-70 

Dr Jonathan Tose 

GP Clinical Director, Planned Care, 
Contracting and Quality in Primary 
Care 65-70 5 - - tbc tbc 

Dr James Gordon 
Clinical Director (Mental Health & 
Learning Disability) 50-55 - - - 7.5-10 60-65 

Dr David Julien  
Clinical Director (Long Term 
Conditions) 60-65 - - - 12.5-15 75-80 

Ros Whitehead Practice Manager Lead 15-20 2 - - - 15-20 
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Notes to senior manager remuneration table 2019/20: 
 
Expenses payments (taxable) are shown in £00 and relate to lease car allowances and mileage claims. 
 

 Dr Tarquin Cross is employed by Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust. Pension related benefits information is not 
reported by Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust because Dr Cross is not a senior manager of that organisation. 
 
Dr Jonathan Tose remuneration relates to the Clinical Director role. Mr Tose is also employed under a separate contract for a non 
management role.  

Pension related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions. The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is 
calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20, less, the contributions made by the individual. The real increase 
excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due to a transfer of pension rights. This value does not represent 
an amount that will be received by the individual. It is a calculation that is intended to convey to the reader of the accounts an 
estimation of the benefit that being a member of the pension scheme could provide.  
The pension benefit table provides further information on the pension benefits accruing to the individual.   
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Senior manager remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements) 
Table 2: South Tyneside CCG remuneration report 2018/19 (this has been subject to audit) 

Name  Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest 

£100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All 
pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000)   (bands of 

£5,000) 
(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Dr Matthew Walmsley GP Chair 40-45 - - - 10-12.5 55-60 
Stephen Clark Deputy Chair/Lay Member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 
Paul Cuskin Lay Member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Paul Morgan Lay Member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 
Dr Tarquin Cross Secondary Care Clinician 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Dr Sreeni Vis-Nathan GP Member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Dr David Hambleton Chief Executive 125-130 55 - - 0 130-135 
Matt Brown Director of Operations 85-90 90 - - 95-97.5 190-195 
Kate Hudson Chief Finance Officer 105-110 - - - 20-22.5 125-130 
Jeanette Scott  Director of Nursing, Quality & Safety 60-65 - - - - 60-65 

Dr Jonathan Tose 

GP Clinical Director, Planned Care, 
Contracting and Quality in Primary 
Care 80-85 - - - 5-7.5 85-90 

Dr James Gordon 
Clinical Director (Mental Health & 
Learning Disability) 50-55 - - - 0 50-55 

Dr David Julien  
Clinical Director (Long Term 
Conditions) 50-55 - - - 55-57.5 110-115 

Ros Whitehead Practice Manager Lead 10-15 - - - - 10-15 
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Notes to senior manager remuneration table 2018/19: 
 
Expenses payments (taxable) are shown in £00 and relate to a lease car. 

 Dr Tarquin Cross is employed by Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust. Pension related benefits information is not 
reported by Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust because Dr Cross is not a senior manager of that organisation. 
 
Dr Jonathan Tose remuneration includes Clinical Director role and a non management role. The senior manager role salary is 
£65-70k. 

All pension related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions. The figure shown does not reflect annual remuneration 
received by the individual during the year. This is the annual increase in pension entitlement expected over a twenty year period.   
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that individuals have accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the 
scheme.  
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Pension benefits as at 31 March 2020  
Table 3: South Tyneside CCG senior officers pension benefits 2019/20 (this has been subject to audit) 

 

Real increase 
in pension at 
pension age 

Real increase 
in pension 

lump sum at 
pension age 

Total accrued 
pension at 

pension age 
at 31 March 

2020 

Lump sum at 
pension age 

related to 
accrued 

pension at 31 
March 2020 

Cash 
Equivalent 

Transfer Value 
at 1 April 2019 

Real 
Increase in 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value  

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 2020 

Employer's 
contribution 

to 
stakeholder 

pension 

 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000)         

 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Dr Matthew Walmsley 0-2.5 - 5-10 10-15 95 7 106 0 
Dr David Hambleton 2.5-5 0-2.5 50-55 140-145 1,076 48 1,142 0 

Matt Brown 2.5-5 2.5-5 15-20 35-40 230 31 273 0 
Kate Hudson 0-2.5 - 30-35 70-75 558 17 589 0 

Dr Jonathan Tose tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc Tbc 0 
Dr James Gordon 0-2.5 - 10-15 30-35 208 5 221 0 
Dr David Julien 0-2.5 - 10-15 20-25 173 8 190 0 

 
Pension information is provided by NHS Pensions.  
Cash equivalent transfer value at 1st April 2019 has been inflated by 2.4%.  
 
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that individuals have accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the 
scheme. Benefits and related Cash Equivalent Transfer Values do not allow for a potential future adjustment arising from the 
McCloud judgement.  

Non executives and lay members are not members of the NHS Pension scheme.  
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Pension benefits as at 31 March 2019 Table 4: South Tyneside CCG senior officers pension benefits 2018/19 (this has been subject to audit) 

 

Real increase 
in pension at 
pension age 

Real increase 
in pension 

lump sum at 
pension age 

Total accrued 
pension at 

pension age 
at 31 March 

2019 

Lump sum at 
pension age 

related to 
accrued 

pension at 31 
March 2019 

Cash 
Equivalent 

Transfer Value 
at 1 April 2018 

Real 
Increase in 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value  

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 2019 

Restated 
Employer's 
contribution 

to 
stakeholder 

pension 

 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000)         

 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Dr Matthew Walmsley 0-2.5 - 5-10 10-15 73 15 93 - 
Dr David Hambleton 0-2.5 - 45-50 135-140 947 85 1051 - 

Matt Brown 2.5-5 10-12.5 15-20 30-35 133 82 225 - 
Kate Hudson 0-2.5 - 30-35 70-75 462 69 545 - 

Dr Jonathan Tose 0-2.5 - 15-20 30-35 228 28 268 - 
Dr James Gordon - - 10-15 30-35 229 - 203 - 
Dr David Julien 2.5-5 5-7.5 5-10 20-25 106 55 169 - 

 
Pension information is provided by NHS Pensions.  
Cash equivalent transfer value at 1st April 2018 has been inflated by 3%.  
 
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that individuals have accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the 
scheme. Benefits and related Cash Equivalent Transfer Values do not allow for a potential future adjustment arising from the 
McCloud judgement. 

Non executives and lay members are not members of the NHS Pension scheme. 

Employers contribution to stakeholder pension has been restated in 2019/20. 

 

.  
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Cash equivalent transfer values  
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of 
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The 
benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or 
other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. 

A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension 
benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a 
scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service 
in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. 

The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension 
benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to 
the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued 
to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in 
the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and 
framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.  

Real increase in CETV 
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include 
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee 
(including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the 
period.  

The method used to calculate CETVs changed, to remove the adjustment for 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) on 8 August 2019. If the individual concerned 
was entitled to a GMP, this will affect the calculation of the real increase in CETV. 
This is more likely to affect the 1995 Section and the 2008 Section  

 

Compensation on early retirement or for loss of office (this has been subject to 
audit) 
There was no compensation on early retirement or for loss of office during 2019/20.  

Payments to past members (this has been subject to audit) 
There were no payments to past members during 2019/20.  

Fair Pay Disclosure (this has been subject to audit) 
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Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration 
of the highest paid member in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 
organisation’s workforce. 

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in South Tyneside CCG in the 
financial year 2019/20 was £130-135k (2018/19: £130-135k).  This was 1.9 times 
(2018/19:1.9) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £71,113 
(2018/19: £70,200).  

In 2019/20, no employees (2018/19, no employees) received remuneration in excess 
of the highest paid director. Remuneration ranged from £11,368 to £108,766 
(2018/19: £11,820 to £107,467). 

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, 
benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments.  It does not include employer pension 
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 

The 2019/20 median remuneration remains at a consistent level to the 2018/19 
reported value due to marginal changes to the overall number, composition and 
remuneration of the workforce. 

Table 5: Fair pay disclosure (this has been 
subject to audit) 

  

 

 
2019/20 2018/19 

Band of Highest Paid Director's Total Remuneration 
(£'000)  130-135 130-135 
Median Total Remuneration (£)  71,113 70,200 
Ratio  1.9 1.9 
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Staff Report  
Number of senior managers 
The CCG had 14 senior managers in post at 31st March 2020. This includes 3 very 

senior managers.  

Staff numbers and costs (this has been subject to audit) 
Staff numbers and costs are analysed by permanent employees and ‘other.’  

Permanently employed refers to members of staff with a permanent (UK) 

employment contract directly with the CCG. 

 

Other refers to any staff engaged that do not have a permanent (UK) employment 

contract with the CCG. This includes employees on short term contracts of 

employment and agency/temporary staff. 

 

The figures exclude lay members of the Governing Body.  

 

Permanent 

Employees Other Total 

Average number of people employed   21 1 22 

    

 

Permanent 

Employees Other Total 

Staff costs £'000 £'000 £'000 

Salaries and wages 1,341 84 1,424 

Social security costs 162 0 162 

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension 

scheme 240 0 240 

Other pension costs 3 0 3 

Termination benefits 224  224 
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Less recoveries (175)  (175) 

Staff costs 1,795 84 1,879 

 

Trade Union Facility Time 

Under the terms of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) 

Regulations 2017, we are required to publish the number of employees who were 

trade union officials during this period, and information and details of paid facility 

time and trade union activities.  

During 2019/20 there were no employees of NHS South Tyneside CCG who were 

trade union representatives. 

 

Staff composition 

The CCG staff gender profile at 31st March 2020 is based upon headcount of 

permanently employed staff.  

   Female Male Total 

Very senior managers 1 2 3 

Other staff 21 13 34 

Total staff 22 15 37 

 
  Female Male Total 

Governing Body 

members 3 7 10 
 

*The Governing Body figures are provided as standalone figures as some members 

are employed by other organisations.    
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Staff Sickness Absence  
The CCG has an agreed policy on the management of staff absence which ensures 

all staff are treated fairly and equitably, with the relevant support from line managers 

and HR advisors. The CCG also has access to occupational health services. The 

staff sickness absence data is reported for each calendar year.   

 

   2019 2018 

Total days lost 100 135 

Average working days lost 3.8 5.2 

 

Staff policies 
The CCG has policies in place relating to staff available on the CCG intranet and 

website.  

The policies support and assist all employees with guidance and policy information 

relating to wide range of human resources functions.  

The promotion of equality and diversity is actively pursued through these policies 

and ensures that employees receive fair, equitable and consistent treatment and 

ensure that employees, and potential employees, are not subject to direct or indirect 

discrimination. 

The CCG is committed to equality of opportunity for all employees and is committed 

to employment practices, policies and procedures which ensure that no employee, or 

potential employee, receives less favourable treatment on the grounds of gender, 

race, colour, ethnic or national origin, sexual orientation, marital status, religion or 

belief, age, trade union membership, disability, offending background, domestic 

circumstances, social and employment status, HIV status, gender reassignment, 

political affiliation or any other personal characteristic.  
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Diversity is viewed positively and, in recognising that everyone is different, the 

unique contribution that each individual’s experience, knowledge and skills can make 

is valued equally.  

Expenditure on consultancy 

Consultancy expenditure of £29k was incurred in 2019/20 (2018/19, £30k). 
 

Off-payroll engagements  

Table 1: Off-payroll engagements longer than 6 months 

All off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2020, for more than £245 per day and 
that last longer than six months: 

  Number 
Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2020 3 

Of which, the number that have existed:  

for less than one year at the time of reporting 1 

for between one and two years at the time of reporting 0 

for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 0 

for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0 

for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 2 

Table 2: New off-payroll engagements 

New off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020, greater than £245 per day and that last for longer 
than six months:   

  Number 
Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in 
duration, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 1 

Of which:  

number assessed that fall under the remit of IR35 1 

number assessed that do not fall under the remit of IR35 0 
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Number engaged directly (via personal service company 
contracted to department) and are on the department payroll 0 

Number of engagements reassessed for consistency/assurance 
purposes during the year. 0 

Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status 
following the consistency review 0 

 

Table 3: Off-payroll engagements / senior official engagements 

Off-payroll engagements of Board members and senior officials with significant 
financial responsibility, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020.  

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or 
senior officials with significant financial responsibility, during 
the financial year 

0 

Total no. of individuals that have been deemed “board 
members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility”, during the financial year. This figure should 
include both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements. 

14 

 

Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments (this 
has been subject to audit) 
 
The CCG has made (provision for) one payment of contractual notice due to an 
employee as an exit package during 2019/20 for which the post was deemed to be 
redundant. This is detailed in Note ** of the statutory accounts. 
The CCG has not made any special (non-contractual) payments in 2019/20 (or up to 
the time of this report). 
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Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 
NHS South Tyneside CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability 

and Audit Report. Disclosures on remote contingent liabilities, losses and special 

payments, gifts, and fees and charges are included as notes in the Financial 

Statements of this report. An audit certificate and report is also included in this 

Annual Report at x. 
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19
Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 (175) -
Other operating income 2 (213) (206)
Total operating income (388) (206)

Staff costs 4 2,054 1,598
Purchase of goods and services 5 295,936 276,042
Other Operating Expenditure 5 119 111
Total operating expenditure 298,109 277,751

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year 297,721 277,545
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Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19

Note £'000 £'000
Current assets:
Trade and other receivables 8 1,439 1,075
Cash and cash equivalents 9 293 114
Total current assets 1,732 1,189

Total assets 1,732 1,189

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 (22,270) (18,665)
Total current liabilities (22,270) (18,665)

Assets less Liabilities (20,538) (17,476)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund (20,538) (17,476)
Total taxpayers' equity: (20,538) (17,476)

The notes on pages 5 to 17 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 1 to 4 were approved by the Governing Body on [date] and signed on its behalf by:

Chief Accountable Officer
Dr. Neil O'Brien
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended
31 March 2020

General fund
Total 

reserves
£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20

Balance at 01 April 2019 (17,476) (17,476)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (297,721) (297,721)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial  Year (297,721) (297,721)

Net funding 294,659 294,659
Balance at 31 March 2020 (20,538) (20,538)

General fund
Total 

reserves
£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2018-19

Balance at 01 April 2018 (13,585) (13,585)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2018-19
Net operating costs for the financial year (277,545) (277,545)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial  Year (277,545) (277,545)

Net funding 273,654 273,654
Balance at 31 March 2019 (17,476) (17,476)

The notes on pages 5 to 17 form part of this statement
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19
Note £'000 £'000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (297,721) (277,545)
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 8 (365) 417
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 10 3,606 3,490
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (294,480) (273,638)

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (294,480) (273,638)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Grant in Aid Funding Received 294,659 273,653
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 294,659 273,653

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 9 179 15

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 114 99
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies 0 0
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 293 114

The notes on pages 5 to 17 form part of this statement
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies

NHS England/ has directed that the financial statements of Clinical Commissioning Groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the  Group 
Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the  Group Accounting Manual 2019-20 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the 
Group Accounting Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical 
commissioning groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Group Accounting 
Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the 
clinical commissioning group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical 
commissioning group are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Going Concern
These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced 
by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.
Where a Clinical Commissioning Group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, by 
another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial statements.  If services will 
continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2  Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 
intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Movement of Assets within the Department of Health and Social Care Group
As Public Sector Bodies are deemed to operate under common control, business reconfigurations within the Department of Health and Social Care 
Gorup are outside the scope of IFRS 3 BusinessCombinations. Where fundtions transfer between two public sector bodies, the Department of Health 
and Social Care GAM requires the application of apsorption accounting. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in 
the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  Where assets and 
liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed separately from 
operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health and Social Care Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give 
rise to income and expenditure entries.

1.4 Joint arrangements
Arrangements over which the Clinical Commissioning Group has joint control with one or more other entities are classified as joint arrangements. Joint 
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. 
Where the Clinical Commissioning Group is a joint operator it recognises its share of, assets, liabilities, income and expenses in its own accounts. The 
Clinical Commissioning Group has assessed that it does not have joint arrangements as joint control does not exist.

1.5 Pooled Budgets
The Clinical Commissioning Group has five pooled budget arrangements hosted by South Tyneside Council in accordance with section 75 of the NHS 
Act 2006. Under the arrangements, funds are pooled for Better Care Fund, the care of Learning Disabilities clients, Community Equipment Store, the 
delivery of legal advice for the Mental Capacity Act and the Joint Commissioning Unit. The Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the 
income and expenditure of the pools as determined by the pooled budget agreement and can be seen in Note 13.

1.6 Operating Segments
Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating Segments note and are reported in line with management information used within the Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

1.7  Revenue
In the application of IFRS 15 a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard have been employed. These are as follows;
• As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the Clinical Commissioning Group will not disclose information regarding performance obligations part of a 
contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less,
• The Clinical Commissioning Group is to similarly not disclose information where revenue is recognised in line with the practical expedient offered in 
paragraph B16 of the Standard where the right to consideration corresponds directly with value of the performance completed to date.
• The FReM has mandated the exercise of the practical expedient offered in C7(a) of the Standard that requires the Clinical Commissioning Group to 
reflect the aggregate effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial application.

The main source of funding for the Clinical Commissioning Group is from NHS England. This is drawn down and credited to the general fund. Funding 
is recognised in the period in which it is received.
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised services to the 
customer, and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to that performance obligation.
Where income is received for a specific performance obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that income is deferred.
Payment terms are standard reflecting cross government principles.
The value of the benefit received when the Clinical Commissioning Group accesses funds from the Government’s apprenticeship service are 
recognised as income in accordance with IAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training 
provider, non-cash income and a corresponding non-cash training expense are recognised, both equal to the cost of the training funded.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.8 Employee Benefits
1.8.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in the period in which the 
service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken.
The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are 
permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

1.8.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes 
that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The 
schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 
Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of 
participating in a scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for 
the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the Clinical Commissioning Group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method 
of payment.
The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

1.9 Other Expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair value 
of the consideration payable.

1.10 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases.

1.10.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance 
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognised in calculating the Clinical Commissioning Group’s surplus/deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a 
liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or 
finance leases.

1.11 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are 
investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant 
risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral 
part of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at current values.

1.12 Clinical Negligence Costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which 
in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for 
all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with Clinical Commissioning Group.

1.13 Non-clinical Risk Pooling
The Clinical Commissioning Group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 
schemes under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives assistance with 
the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating 
expenses as and when they become due.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.14 Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset 
has been transferred and the Clinical Commissioning Group has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership or has not retained 
control of the asset.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction costs for financial assets not measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. Fair value is taken as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoted market prices, where possible, or by 
valuation techniques.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
·                Financial assets at amortised cost;
·                Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and ;
·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.
The classification is determined by the cash flow and business model characteristics of the financial assets, as set out in IFRS 9, and is determined at 
the time of initial recognition.

1.14.1 Financial Assets at Amortised cost
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are those held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows  
and where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes most trade receivables and other simple debt instruments.  After 
initial recognition these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.  The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial 
asset.

1.14.2 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income are those held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

1.14.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets measure at fair value through profit and loss are those that are not otherwise measured at amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income.  This includes derivatives and financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.

1.15 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-
recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

1.16 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the Clinical Commissioning Group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 
purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed 
assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.17 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertaintyIn the application of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates 
and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods.In the application of the clinical commissioning group's accounting policies, management is required to make various judgements, estimates and 

1.17.1 Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies
There are no critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of applying the Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

1.17.2 Sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Prescribing expenditure has been estimated based on ten months actual spend and two months forecast. For 2019-20, the value of this estimation is 
£5,005,543.

1.18 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
The Department of Health and Social Care GAM does not require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2019-20. These 
Standards are still subject to HM Treasury FReM adoption, with IFRS 16 being for implementation in 2020-21, and the government implementation 
date for IFRS 17 still subject to HM Treasury consideration.
● IFRS 16 Leases – The Standard is effective 1 April 2021 as adapted and interpreted by the FReM.
● IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but not yet adopted by the FReM: 
early adoption is not therefore permitted.
● IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
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2 Other Operating Revenue
2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2018-19
Admin Programme Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services (contracts)
Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 175 - 175 -
Total Income from sale of goods and services 175 - 175 -

Other operating income
Other non contract revenue - 213 213 206
Total Other operating income - 213 213 206

Total Operating Income 175 213 388 206

Administration revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

All other revenue is deemed to be non-contract revenue by the Clinical Commissioning Group.

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the Clinical 

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits relates to the recharge of Termination Benefits for the Accountable Officer to North Durham CCG, 
Durham Dales Easington and Sedgefield CCG and Sunderland CCG.
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4  Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1.1 Employee benefits 2019-20

Permanent 
Employees Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages 1,341 84 1,425
Social security costs 162 0 162
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 240 0 240
Other pension costs 3 0 3
Termination benefits 224 0 224
Gross employee benefits expenditure 1,970 84 2,054

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) (175) 0 (175) 
Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 1,795 84 1,879

2018-19
Permanent 
Employees Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages 1,295 3 1,298
Social security costs 143 0 143
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 155 0 155
Other pension costs 2 0 2
Gross employee benefits expenditure 1,595 3 1,598
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 1,595 3 1,598

4.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 2019-20 2018-19
Permanent 
Employees Other Total Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Social security costs (7) - (7) -
Termination benefits (168) - (168) -
Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits (175) - (175) -

4.2 Average number of people employed

Permanently 
employed Other Total

Permanently 
employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Total 20.96 1.02 21.98 20.57 0.78 21.35

4.3 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

Number £ Number £ Number £
Over £200,001 1 223,918 - - 1 223,918
Total 223,919 223,918 - - 1 223,918

The Compulsory redundancy figue is the gross cost to the Clinical Commissioning Group following the departure of the Accountable Officer on 31 March 2020. This figure 
consists of both a redundancy payment and Lieu of Notice payment.

2018-192019-20

Compulsory redundancies
2019-20

Other agreed departures
2019-20

Total
2019-20

These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. The expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in 
full in a previous period.

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Terms and Conditions of Service Handbook.

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure.

Termination benefits is the gross cost to the Clinical Commissioning Group following the departure of the Accountable Officer on 31 March 
2020.

Total

Total

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits relates to the recharge of Termination Benefits for the Accountable Officer to North Durham 
CCG, Durham Dales Easington and Sedgefield CCG and Sunderland CCG.
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4.4 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes.  Details of the benefits payable and rules of 
the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.

These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies allowed under the 
direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies 
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.

Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes: the cost to the Clinical Commissioning 
Group of participating in a scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

The employer contribution rate for NHS Pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% from 1st April 2019. For 2019/20, NHS CCGs continued 
to pay over contributions at the former rate with the additional amount being paid by NHS England on CCGs behalf. The full cost and 
related funding has been recognised in these accounts.

4.4.1 Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the 
end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated 
membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting 
purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2019, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2018 updated to 31 March 
2019 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, 
relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual NHS 
Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also be 
obtained from The Stationery Office.

4.4.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account recent 
demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2016. The 
results of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019. The Department of Health and Social Care have 
recently laid Scheme Regulations confirming that the employer contribution rate will increase to 20.6% of pensionable pay from this date.  

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set following the 2012 
valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced a pause to that part of the valuation 
process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process. 
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5  Operating expenses
2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2018-19
Admin Programme Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Purchase of goods and services
Services from other CCGs and NHS England 1,099 769 1,868 1,775
Services from foundation trusts - 193,759 193,759 181,783
Services from other NHS trusts - 160 160 314
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies - 40,007 40,007 33,770
Purchase of social care - 5,528 5,528 4,550
Prescribing costs - 28,147 28,147 27,333
Pharmaceutical services - 178 178 180
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS - 22,133 22,133 21,634
Supplies and services – general 36 1,156 1,192 341
Consultancy services 29 - 29 30
Establishment 58 58 116 404
Transport 7 - 7 10
Premises 220 2,213 2,433 3,657
Audit fees 35 - 35 35
Other non statutory audit expenditure
·          Internal audit services - - - -
·          Other services - - - 16
Other professional fees 134 - 134 132
Legal fees 2 144 146 40
Education, training and conferences 11 53 64 38
 Total Purchase of goods and services 1,631 294,305 295,936 276,042

Other Operating Expenditure
Chair and Non Executive Members 116 - 116 108
Clinical negligence 3 - 3 3
Total Other Operating Expenditure 119 - 119 111

Total operating expenditure 1,750 294,305 296,055 276,153

Expenses related to Rentals under Operating Leases are within the Establishment and Premises lines. These costs can be seen in Note 6 - Operating Leases within 
these Accounts.

Within Other Professional Fees is £35,770 paid for internal audit services to Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust.

Administration expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

The external auditor of the Clinical Commissioning Group is Mazars LLP. The audit fee for 2019/20 was £34,992 (including VAT).
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6  Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2019-20 2019-20 2018-19 2018-19
Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 3,774 69,002 3,313 61,710
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 3,738 68,768 3,283 61,472
Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 99.05% 99.66% 99.09% 99.61%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 1,598 208,177 1,576 187,665
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 1,585 208,042 1,567 187,423
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 99.19% 99.94% 99.43% 99.87%

7  Operating Leases

7.1 As lessee

7.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2019-20 2018-19
Total Land Buildings Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments - 217 3 220 - 3,643 10 3,653
Total - 217 3 220 - 3,643 10 3,653

2019-20 2018-19
Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:
No later than one year - - 1 1 - - 6 6
Between one and five years - - - - - - 1 1
Total - - 1 1 - - 7 7

Buildings
£'000

Land
£'000

Other
£'000

In 2018-19 Operating Leases included charges for voids & subsidies. Due to a change in NHSE / I subjective code mapping, Voids and Subsidies are no longer including within Operating 
Leases. These costs can be found within Premises in Note 4.

Whilst our arrangements with NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating leases, rental charge for future years has not been agreed . Consequently, this note does not 
include future minimum lease payments for these arrangements.

The significant operating leases represented in the figure below are in relation to NHS Property Services. In addition to the lease for the Clinical Commissioning Group headquarters, this 
figure also includes leases for properties which the Clinical Commissioning Group are deemed to be responsible for but do not occupy.
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8  Trade and other receivables Current Current
2019-20 2018-19

£'000 £'000

NHS receivables: Revenue 461 369
NHS prepayments 627 525
NHS accrued income 206 42
Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue 16 82
Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments 113 52
VAT 15 4
Other receivables and accruals 1 1
Total Trade & other receivables 1,439 1,075

Total current and non current 1,439 1,075

8.1  Receivables past their due date but not impaired
2019-20 2019-20 2018-19 2018-19

DHSC Group 
Bodies

Non DHSC Group 
Bodies

DHSC Group 
Bodies

Non DHSC 
Group Bodies

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
By up to three months 3 4 - 14
By three to six months 3 0 54 -
By more than six months 81 0 - -
Total 87 4 54 14

£2,872 of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.

9  Cash and cash equivalents

2019-20 2018-19
£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2019 114 99
Net change in year 179 15
Balance at 31 March 2020 293 114

Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service 293 114
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 293 114

Balance at 31 March 2020 293 114

Current Current
2019-20 2018-19

£'000 £'000

NHS payables: Revenue 996 932
NHS accruals 1,701 1,526
Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue 2,385 2,635
Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 16,537 13,046
Social security costs 23 22
Tax 26 31
Other payables and accruals 602 473
Total Trade & Other Payables 22,270 18,665

Total current and non-current 22,270 18,665

Other payables include £170,073 outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2020 (£176,070 at 31 March 2019).

10  Trade and other payables
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11  Financial Instruments

11.1 Financial assets

Financial Assets 
measured at 

amortised cost Total

Financial Assets 
measured at 

amortised cost Total
2019-20 2019-20 2018-19 2018-19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies 538 538 251 251
Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies 143 143 160 160
Trade and other receivables with external bodies 3 3 82 82
Other financial assets - - 1 1
Cash and cash equivalents 293 293 114 114
Total at 31 March 2020 977 977 609 609

11.2 Financial liabilities

Financial Liabilities 
measured at 

amortised cost Total

Financial Liabilities 
measured at 

amortised cost Total
2019-20 2019-20 2018-19 2018-19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Loans with group bodies - -
Loans with external bodies - -
Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 535 535 415 415
Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 9,128 9,128 8,556 8,556
Trade and other payables with external bodies 12,559 12,559 9,168 9,168
Other financial liabilities - - 473 473
Private Finance Initiative and finance lease obligations - - - -
Total at 31 March 2020 22,222 22,222 18,612 18,612

12  Operating segments

It is the Clinical Commissioning Group's assessment that it is not exposed to any material Financial Instruments risk.

The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group considers they have only one segment: commissioning of healthcare services.
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13  Joint arrangements - interests in joint operations

- Better Care Fund
- care of Learning Disabilities Clients
- delivery of legal advice for Mental Capacity Act package
- Community Equipment Store
- Joint Commissioning Unit

For accounting purposes, management has assessed that joint control does not exist.

Name of arrangement Parties to the 
arrangement

Description of 
principal activities Expenditure Expenditure

£'000 £'000

Section 75
South Tyneside 
Council and South 
Tyneside CCG

Better Care Fund 5,228 4,550

Section 75
South Tyneside 
Council and South 
Tyneside CCG

Care of Learning 
Disability Clients 10,986 9,576

Section 75
South Tyneside 
Council and South 
Tyneside CCG

Delivery of legal 
advice in respect to 
CHC, Joint packages 
and S117

29 26

Section 75
South Tyneside 
Council and South 
Tyneside CCG

Equipment Store 738 783

Section 76
South Tyneside 
Council and South 
Tyneside CCG

Joint Commissioning 
Unit 612 434

2019-20 2018-19
Amounts recognised in Entities books ONLY

The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group's share of the expenditure handled by the pooled budgets in the financial year are shown below. No 
income has been handled by the pooled budgets in relation to the clinical commissioning group.

Under s75 of the 2006 NHS Act, the Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into pooled budget agreements with South Tyneside Council 
in relation to :
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14  Related party transactions

2018/19

Payments to 
Related 

Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 

Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 

Party

 Payments to 
Related 

Party 

 Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party 

 Amounts 
owed to 
Related 

Party 

 Amounts 
due from 
Related 

Party 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Dr Matthew Walmsley Marsden Road Health Centre 1,926           -              162         -              1,668            -              126         -              
Dr Tarquin Cross Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 624              -              28           -              503               -              1             -              
Dr David Hambleton NHS North of England CSU 2,104           (105)        17           (5)            1,910            1             182         -              
Dr Jon Tose Central Surgery 2,647           -              334         -              2,665            (0)            308         -              
Dr James Gordon Imeary Street Surgery 420              -              32           -              372               -              31           -              
Dr David Julien First Contact Clinical 265              -              108         -              48                 -              60           -              
Dr Sreeni Vis-Nathan Ravensworth Surgery 846              -              43           -              814               (0)            60           -              
Ms Ros Whitehead Ellison View Surgery 932              -              108         -              781               (0)            63           -              
Ms Ros Whitehead South Tyneside Health Collaboration 1,417           -              65           -              1,211            0             213         -              
Ms Pat Harle (appointed 1/4/19) Sunderland CCG 227              (24)          421         (23)          105               (17)          172         (16)          
Ms Pat Harle (appointed 1/4/19) South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 143,891       -              245         (72)          125,551        -              968         (69)          

* Dr David Hambleton's wife is employed by NHS North of England Commissioning Support Unit.

All payments are made to the Related Party, not to the individual Governing Body member.

The details of the Member Practices of the Clinical Commissioning Group for 2019/20 are listed below :
2019/20 2018/19

Payments to 
Related 

Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 

Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 

Party

 Payments to 
Related 

Party 

 Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party 

 Amounts 
owed to 
Related 

Party 

 Amounts 
due from 
Related 

Party 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Albert Road Surgery 455              -              35           -              465               (0)            41           -              
Central Surgery 2,647           -              334         -              2,665            (0)            308         -              
Colliery Court Medical Group 977              -              36           -              931               (0)            69           -              
Dr Dowsett and Overs 765              -              57           -              726               (0)            61           -              
Dr Haque 497              -              38           -              531               (0)            38           -              
West View Surgery (previously Dr Kulkarni) 351              -              22           -              333               (0)            36           -              
Dr Thorniley-Walker and Partners 769              -              30           -              718               -              47           -              
East Wing Surgery 553              -              29           -              582               (0)            59           -              
Ellison View Surgery 932              -              108         -              781               (0)            63           -              
Farnham Medical Centre 2,263           -              108         -              2,155            (0)            245         -              
Imeary Street Surgery 420              -              32           -              372               -              31           -              
Marsden Road Health Centre 1,926           -              162         -              1,668            -              126         -              
Mayfield Medical Group 1,167           -              53           -              1,026            -              84           -              
Ravensworth Surgery 846              -              43           -              814               (0)            60           -              
St George and Riverside 953              -              105         -              975               -              102         -              
Talbot Medical Group 992              -              65           -              949               (0)            77           -              
The Glen Medical Group 1,340           -              157         -              1,086            (0)            86           -              
The Park Surgery (Practice closed 31/03/19) 14                -              -              -              294               -              178         -              
Trinity Medical Centre 1,052           -              90           -              828               -              61           -              
Victoria Medical Centre 503              -              63           -              454               (0)            79           -              
Wawn Street Surgery 1,010           -              70           -              1,029            -              65           -              
Whitburn Surgery 574              -              32           -              541               -              34           -              

• NHS England ( including North of England Commissioning Support Unit );
• NHS Foundation Trusts, including;

County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust
Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust
South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust The Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

• NHS Trusts;
• NHS Litigation Authority; and,
• NHS Business Services Authority.

2019/20 2018/19

Payments to 
Related 

Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 

Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 

Party

 Payments to 
Related 

Party 

 Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party 

 Amounts 
owed to 
Related 

Party 

 Amounts 
due from 
Related 

Party 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

South Tyneside Council 33,801         (330)        4,051      -              30,179          (324)        2,650      (67)          

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year the Clinical Commissioning Group has had a significant number of material transactions with entities for which the Department is 
regarded as the parent Department. For example:

 In addition, the Clinical Commissioning Group has had a number of material transactions with other Government departments and other central and local government 
bodies. Most of these transactions have been with South Tyneside Council. 

2019/20

* South Tyneside And Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust was created on 1st April 2019 from the merger of City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust and South Tyneside NHS Foundation Trust - the comparator 
figures for 2018-19 is the sum of these two Trusts.
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15  Events after the end of the reporting period

16  Financial performance targets

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as follows:

2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20

Duty Target Performance Variance Duty Achieved
£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure not to exceed income 299,117 298,109 1,008 Yes
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 298,729 297,721 1,008 Yes

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes
Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 3,385 3,280 105 Yes

2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19

Duty Target Performance Variance Duty Achieved
£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure not to exceed income 279,804 277,750 2,053 Yes
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 279,598 277,545 2,053 Yes

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes
Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 3,310 3,136 174 Yes

There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the financial statements of the Clinical Commissioning Group. These statements were authorised 
for issue by Dr. Neil O'Brien on xxxxxxxxxxx
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The purpose of this paper is to provide a risk management update for assurance 
purposes. In accordance with agreed policy, it is the case that “Extreme”, High and 
Moderate risks are reported to the Governing Body three times a year.   
 
The Governing Body is asked to: 
 Consider the current risks facing the CCG and their assessment; 

 Review the actions being taken to ensure risks are being appropriately 
managed and within the review frequency timescales.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS / RISKS: 
Financial risks are set out with the Financial section of the risk register and any 
extreme financial risks are reported within this report, in accordance with agreed 
policy. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
COMPLETED: 
 
Following the launch of the revised EIA 
documents on 1 March 2016 EIAs must be 
completed as follows: 
 
An EIA should be undertaken at the start of the 
development for a new proposed service, 
policy or process to assess likely impacts and 
provide further insight as to what will be required 
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completed using the equality impact documents 
ensuring that no persons are adversely affected 
as required by the Equality Act 2010 
(Please check the relevant box by double clicking on the box and 

selecting “checked” under the default value heading – only one 

box should be checked.) 

 

If you are unsure if the report requires an 
EIA or for any further guidance please 
contact:  
NECSU.Equality@nhs.net 
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The risk register is an amalgam of 
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Director lead. 
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QUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
COMPLETED 
Following the implementation of the STCCG 
Quality Strategy (September 2015) it has been 
agreed that a QIA should be undertaken for a 
new proposed service, policy or process or any 
changes to current services which may have an 
impact on quality or experience 
 
Has a Quality Impact Assessment been 
completed using the quality impact assessment 
tool ensuring that they have demonstrated the 
potential quality and safety impact? 

NO YES 
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Not required for this paper. 
 

If yes please complete the below Quality Impact 
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Impact  Assessment 2015 V2.docx
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Governing Body 
21 May 2020 

Item No. 2020/15 
 
 

Risk Management Report 
13 January to 13 May 2020 

 
1.  Introduction 
  
The purpose of this paper is to set out for the Governing Body, in accordance with agreed 
policy, risks facing the organisation, their assessment and the action being taken to 
manage these. 
 
2.  Reporting and assurance 
 
The number and nature of risks recorded in the CCG corporate risk register are set out in 
the tables below.  
 
The CCG’s integrated approach to risk management ensures that all risks are captured 
and monitored relating to quality and safeguarding, provider management, finance & 
QIPP and performance across the organisation in line with the CCG’s Risk Management 
Policy.   
 
Current and potential risks are captured in the CCG’s risk register and include actions 
and timescales identified to minimise such risks.  The risk register is a log of risks that 
threaten the organisation’s success in achieving its aims and objectives and is populated 
through a risk assessment and evaluation process.   The registers are updated on a 
monthly basis and are reviewed as follows: 
 
 Quarterly at Audit and Risk Committee (All risks which are EXTREME, HIGH and 

MODERATE). 
 Three times per year by the Governing Body (All risks which are EXTREME, HIGH 

and MODERATE). 
 Bi monthly at Quality and Patient Safety Committee (quality and safeguarding risks 

which are EXTREME, HIGH and MODERATE).  
 LOW risks are considered at team level under the guidance of the relevant Director. 
 



4 

 

 
The risk register is made up of the following themed areas with identified leads (either 
CCG Directors or Senior Managers) as shown: 
 
 Organisational Matt Brown 
 Quality and Safeguarding Jeanette Scott 
 Performance Gillian Johnson 
 Finance and QIPP Kate Hudson 

 
3.   Process 
 
South Tyneside CCG is using the Safeguard Incident and Risk Management System 
(SIRMS) as the tool for managing the risk register.   
 
In terms of updating the register the above named leads (or their nominated risk co-
ordinator) are responsible for updating their risks directly in SIRMS.   
 
The NECS Senior Governance Officer then produces an updated risk register and agreed 
summary reports.  
 
4. Risks 
 
4.1  Risk distribution  
 
Table 1 illustrates the CCG’s risks by consequence and likelihood scores at 13 May 2020.   
 
Table 1 – risk distribution matrix 
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Table 2 below provides total number of risks aligned to a CCG objective by risk rating at 
13 May 2020. 
 
Table 2 – risk rating totals by objective 

 
 
4.2 Table 3 – Closed Risks 
 
One risk was closed during this reporting period.  
 

 
 
4.3 Table 4 – New Risks 

 
Five new risks were added in the reporting period all relating to Covid.   
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4.4  Table 5 – risk summary and movement 
 

 13 January 2020 13 May 2020 Direction 
Red (extreme) 0 0 

Amber (high) 10 12 

Yellow (moderate) 8 10 

Green (low) 1 1  
TOTAL 19 23 

  
There are currently no extreme (red) risks on the risk register.   
 
The CCG’s risk register attached at appendix 1 outlines full details of all extreme, high 
and moderate risks in descending order of residual risk score.   
 
5.  The Governing Body is asked to: 
 

 Consider the current risks facing the CCG and their assessment and agree 
does this accurately reflect the current risk profile; and 

 Review the actions being taken to ensure risks are being appropriately 
managed and within the review frequency timescales. 



Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

1852

Residential and
CHC rate uplift 

Residential care
home providers and
CHC care home
providers are
seeking inflationary
uplift, plus national
living wage uplift,
plus a potential CHC
rate increase.

04/05/20
17

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

4 4 16 43 12Joint commissioning
team working with CCG
and LA and care homes
to come to mutual
agreement of rates and
fees.

CCG involved in all
discussions around
rate increases and
issues reported to
directors.  Rates
agreed though
exec.

none noneLegal advice from
Hempsons

25/11/2019
Sue Smith

Risk Owner
Changed, risk
reviewed no
actioned
required

Next review:
23/05/2020
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1321

CHC mainstream
financial
reconciliation with
the council is not
completed in a
timely manner.
Addition of risk 1345
- Increasing demand
for CHC as
population ages and
care becomes more
complex and
communtiy based. 

Link to risk 1286 -
The scale of any
pressures are not
known in order to be
able to manage the
position effectively in
year and mitigate
any risk
appropriately.
Financial risk
associated with
increased demand
and complexity.

29/05/20
15

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

4 4 16 43 12Process clarified
regarding release of
reconciliation from
Council, follow up
meeting scheduled in
monthly to review and
discuss any issues

Reported monthly
to Executive
Committee and
Bi-Monthly to
Governing Body

None

Develop a strategic
approach to the
commissioning of CHC :
mapping financial &
activity trends and
putting commissioning
plans in place around
themes identified.  Work
is on-going with BI to
develop a monitoring
tool.

Reported at
Programme board

A need to
understand
potential future
behaviours of
these
past/current
trends

None

Ensure existing
packages of care,
specifically those for
patients who are high
cost and/or complex,
provide quality and
value for money -
starting with LD cases.
Integrated team to
continue to work on
expensive packages of
care

None

LD integrated
provider/commissioner
team will be able to play
a key role in the design
of high quality, efficient,
packages of care which
present VFM.  LD cases
currently present the
highest risk in terms of
cost/efficiency

reported to joint
strategic
commissioning
group

None

Services delegated to
the LA which the LA
delivers on behalf of the
CCG : ensuring clarity of
purpose and the
associated delivery

Signed S75 - to be
updated with KPI's

None

25/02/2020
Sue Smith

Risk and
controls
reviewed - no
update
required

Next review:
25/05/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

requirements

Brokerage service
provided by the council
with regards to fast track
packages of care where
the individual is known
to the council.

Process reported
through HWJSCG
meeting

Marie Curie still
commission
packages for
self funders.
Potential
fragmented
process/ double
funding.

None

Extra scrutiny on
packages of care at
CHC and adult panel.
Push back on excesive
packages of care.

Head of quality to
attend panel on
behalf of the CCG

Dependant on
staff at panel
and individual
expertise

None

Revised limits for NECS
to be able to authorise
packages without review
back to the CCG

scheme of
delegation
approved at GB

none none

2273

Covid-19

There is potential for
the coronavirus
outbreak to interrupt
the business of the
CCG, due to
increased staff
sickness, potential
disruption to the
supply chain, remote
working and/or
technological issues

24/03/20
20

Matt Brown

Matt Brown

4 5 20 43 12A tested, and recently
updated, Business
Continuity Plan has
been invoked.

Business Continuity
Plan is approved by
Executive
Committee

None None

All CCG staff have the
technology to work
remotely.

Remote working
agreed by
Executive
Committee

None None

Staff sickness or
self-isolating is taken
into consideration for
work rotas

Directors agreed
the use of rotas to
ensure coverage of
key work

None None

Covid-19 incident room
set up in Monkton Hall,
now operating remotely

Incident room set
up by CCG
directors.

None None

Daily Executive team
calls have been set up
and are working well.
Twice weekly Silver
Command calls set up
and working well.

Updates at
Executive
Committee and
Governing Boday

None None

17/04/2020
Helen Ruffell

Controls and
assurances
updated; a
new control
and
assurance
added;
residual risk
has been
reduced.

Next review:
17/05/2020
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2169

As a result of GP
Primary care
information not
being requested for
all relevant
safeguarding
meetings

there is a risk that
vital known
information is not
shared appropriately

17/07/20
19

Jeanette
Scott

Carol
Drummond

4 4 16 43 12An updated paper
outlining the risk was
been submitted to the
CCG Executive
Committee for the
August 2019 agenda.
A conversation will be
undertaken within the
Provider contracts
meeting by the Director
of Finance for the CCG.

 For MAPPA
information sharing-
this is undertaken
by the CCG
Designated Nurse
for Safeguarding
adults

Information
sharing from
and to GPs in
relation to the
wider
safeguarding
agenda is not
robust.

All aspects of
information
sharing to and
from GPs isn't
consistent or
robust

the information
gathering and
sharing is
undertaken by
STSFT for MARAC
process.

no change in the sharing
and receiving of Primary
care information

potential to lose
or not receive
vital information

                              

Target Date: 20/11/2019

Carol Drummond                
A draft  job description has been
devised and will be shared with the
safeguarding GP leads and practice
managers for their thoughts and
comments.

comments will be collated and
considered prior to the next steps
taking place.

01/04/2020
Carol
Drummond

the post was
considered
by the CCG
Executive
committee
and funding
agreed.
Presently
delayed due
to national
pandemic 
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

is still an issue
Target Date: 06/01/2020

Carol Drummond                
a revised job description for a
primary care nurse has been sent to
all GP practices to seek their views,
and to canvass any other options
that could be considered.

Target Date: 10/03/2020

Carol Drummond                
the role has been agreed by the
CCG Executive committee. however
due to the national pandemic, the
recruitment of a  suitable candidate
is presently delayed

Target Date: 31/05/2020

Next review:
31/05/2020

2158

Gap in delivery of
infection prevention
and control
expertise across
primary care and
social care 

There is a gap in
resource supporting
infection prevention
and control
expertise to primary
care and social care
across South
Tyneside. Latest IPC
figures published
nationally show that
community CDiff
cases increased by
a 1/5th this last 12
months, ecoli is
showing a 7%
increase in
community cases
and klebsiella rose
by almost 3000
cases - the IPC
problem has shifted
away from acute and
is showing
increasing activity in
community settings -
a recent audit of
ecoli cases in South
Tyneside
demonstrated this.
With the publication
of the AMR 5 year
plan the CCG and
colleagues across

02/07/20
19

Jeanette
Scott

Kirstie
Hesketh

3 4 12 43 12Antimicrobial
stewardship initiatives
led by NECS MO team

HCAI rates
monitored 
AMR plan in
development to
strengthen
approach 

No proactive
resource
covering
primary and
social care.

No CCG KPIs for
IPC delivery in
primary care
No dedicated
resource.

Acute educating
inpatients re
infections, hydration
etc 
CQC look at
infection control
practices in GP
practices    
Establishment of a
new HCI/AMR
Regional Board

Kirstie Hesketh               
To ensure STCCG/SCCG
representation at the Board 
To update HCAI collaborative action
plan with outcomes of AMR plan
and Board (latter completed Nov
19)  

Target Date: 01/04/2020

27/03/2020
Kirstie
Hesketh

Risk remains
particularly in
Covid 19
climate 

Next review:
25/06/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

the Central ICP
cluster are required
to look at initiatives
to minimise infection
-  in order to achieve
our ambition South
Tyneside need to
identify and
resource expertise
to work across
primary care and
social care to
prevent the spread
of infection and
address poor
practice.  Failure to
identify and tackle
infection places
patients at risk and
leads to increased
hospital admissions.

2228

Issues with Meditech
implementation

Patient safety risks
identified following
the roll out of
meditech V6 across
the STGH site which
is impacting on the
quality of service
delivery and patient
care.

10/12/20
19

Jeanette
Scott

Kirstie
Hesketh

4 4 16 33 9CCG monitoring
Meditech issues log 
Escalation to STSFT
Practice
communications   

CCG issue log
created to escalate
issues to STSFT
face to face
meetings scheduled

Director to Director
conversations

Lack of regular
interface
between CCG
and FT

None                               

Target Date: 27/02/2020

27/03/2020

Action closed
with regards
to facilitating
conversations
between trust
and GP
practices this
has taken
place
Reduction in
incidents but
likely due to
COVID 19
impact - risk
to remain and
closure will
be
considered at
next review if
issues
resolved
(review date
extended to
1/4ly in light
of current
climate)      

Next review:
25/06/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

2191

The CCG will not be
prepared/resourced
to meet its
responsibilities for
the implementation
of the Liberty
Protection
Safeguards (LPS).

As a result of new
legislation there is a
risk the CCG will
commission care
that is in breach of
people's human
rights if it is
un-prepared and
resourced to meet
its responsibilities
for the authorisation
and management of
LPS authorisations
for CHC patients

25/09/20
19

James
Gordon

Sharon
Thompson

4 4 16 33 9Discussions with adult
social care and principal
social worker at the local
authority have started to
consider alliance
working regarding LPS

Reported to clinical
director for mental
health

Discussions
remain in early
stages and
have been on
hold due to
COVID 19
response. The
consultation on
the code of
practice from
DOH is still
awaited and
although no
formal
notification as
such there has
been no
progress
update since
COVID 19.  

Discussions with
health and social
care in early
stages

Assurance of
progress provided
to NHS England
locally, regionally
and nationally

A Governing Body
development session
took place in December
19 to enhance
understanding of Liberty
Protection Safeguards.
The development
session also enabled
discussion of risks and
options.
A further update will be
arranged once the code
of practice is published
for consultation

Governing Body are
now very well cited
on the LPS.
Code of practice
still awaited and on
hold re COVID 19,
i.e. no consultation
date known

None

An expert learning event
was planned for 25th
March. This was be for
system leaders on LPS
across health and social
care in south Tyneside
and Sunderland 
This event was
cancelled due to COVID
19 lock down
arrangements.

No current
availability of
learning events
due to COVID
19.
Online webinars
and update
information will
be shared when
available

Sharon Thompson               
Watching  brief on consultation and
any developments by DNSA & LA
principle S/W. 

Target Date: 21/04/2020

21/04/2020
Sharon
Thompson

Current
progress
reviewed in
light of
COVID 19
changes.
Progress
from the
DoHSC on
the
consultation
of the new
code of
practice is not
currently
available.
Watching
brief of any
developmen
ts from the
DoHSC.
Implementat
ion will be no
earlier than
October 2020
and may be
delayed. 

Next review:
20/06/2020
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1323

Children's CHC
packages continue
to rise in 19/20

Children's CHC
packages increase
and add continued
pressure onto the
CHC budget

01/06/20
15

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

4 3 12 33 9Children's packages
monitored through the
joint commissioning unit.

Reported monthly
to Executive
Committee

Finance to link
with council
childrens lead
to review costs

noneReconciliation
process with
council

Joint commissioning
team to review high cost
packages at panel

joint commissioning
team and
authorisation
required from
directors for high
cost packages.
Costs reported in
finance report to
exec and GB.

some areas are
still outside of
panel
arrangements
and
authorisation
process need to
be reviewed

None

25/02/2020
Sue Smith

Risk and
controls
reviewed, no
action
required

Next review:
25/05/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

1595

LD pooled budget
with South Tyneside
Council

Expenditure on LD
is higher than
anticipated and the
CCG must
contribute to the risk
share with the
council

23/06/20
16

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

4 3 12 33 9Monitored monthly
through finance
meetings with council
and reconciled quartlery
for risk/gain share
arrangements.

Reported to clincial
director and CFO
and reported in
finance reprot to
exec on a monthly
basis

none nonereported to STC
quarterly

25/02/2020
Sue Smith

Risk and
control
reviewed no
action
required

Next review:
25/05/2020
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1327

Prescribing pressure

Prescribing budget
is understated and
prescribing costs will
continue to rise

01/06/20
15

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

3 4 12 33 9Medicines optimisation
support provided
through NECS

Reported to
Governing Body
bi-monthly

None none

finance team to review
IPP report and review
forecast in line with own
projections

reported through
monthly closedown
meetings

none noneBSA forecast

2018/19 QIPP plan and
monitoring

Reported through
the FSPB and
FSEG

none noneReported on Non
ISFE monthly to
NHSE

BSA forecast and
prescribing days
forecast compared for
consistency by NECS

Reported monthly
at PME

None NoneN/A

17/04/2020
Sue Smith

Risk has
been
reviewed, no
action
required

Next review:
17/05/2020
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2274

Covid-19 discharge
guidance

Impact of Covid-19
discharge guidance

24/03/20
20

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

3 4 12 33 9Continue to checklist
and retain checklists

If checklists are
not kept

Mitigation telephone
calls with clients/families
to ensure package
meets needs

None

Monitor standards even
if they are not reported
formally

None

Finance, time and
staffing will be required
post Covid-19 to
address backlog

None

17/04/2020
Sue Smith

Risk remains,
no action
required at
the moment

Next review:
17/05/2020
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1867

Failure to achieve
95% A&E standard.

STFT narrowly failed
to achieve the 95%
A&E standard in
2017/18. The Local
A&E Delivery Board
is developing anew
plan for 2018/19 to
take account of the
challenges last
winter and to ensure
flow through the
system.
STFT performed
strongly during

13/06/20
17

Matt Brown

Gillian
Johnson

3 3 9 42 8The A&E improvement
plan from 2017/18 has
been refreshed for
2018/19. There is an
emphasis on working
across the system to
ensure good patient flow
and best use of
resource. We are
developing the
infrastructure to deliver
and Urgent Treatment
Centre by March 2019
including a specific
piece of work on shared
roles across primary
care and urgent care.

Daily reviews of
performance and
escalation meetings
or teleconferences
called where
necessary; monthly
meetings; reports to
Exec Committee
and Governing
Body and LADB.
NHS E and NHS I
informed.

Plan might be
impacted by
unsuspected or
significant
outbreaks of flu
or norovirus on
the home site or
at other sites.

none presently
identified

Assurance via NHS
E and NHSI

26/03/2020
Gillian
Johnson

Risk
reviewed,
controls and
assurances
updated and
risk
frequency
amended to
quarterly in
view of the
current
situation
regarding
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

2018/19 but again
narrowly missed the
95% standard. 

STFT narrowly failed
to meet the A%E
target for 2018/2019
with an end of year
performance of
94.6%. This is being
addressed via the
A&E delivery board
by reviewing
performance and
identifying potential
areas for
improvement or
change to the
current approaches.
There are new
challenges for
2019/2020 in that
there is now a single
hospital Trust so
South Tyneside
Performance might
be influenced by the
recent merger.

Weekly local calls to
support teams with FT,
Social Care, NEAS,
NTW, CCG and Age
Concern. Increase in
frequency where
necessary.

Reported to LADB
as required

Occasionally
not all
organisations
are represented
on call

NoneAction plan will be
approved by NHSE,
calls are an addition
to this and notes
are available if
required.

Winter debrief by LADB
and Urgent Care Action
Group to identify
interventions that will
improve performance
during next winter

Report to LADB
and UCAG

Some schemes
will require
multiagency
sign up

NoneThis will form part
of our winter plan
which will be
assured by NHSE

LADB supported Action
on A&E work to review
and deliver a modified
approach to urgent care.
Improvement workshops
in July and September
2018 planned

Monthly reporting at
the LADB

Work may not
be timely
enough to
improve the
situation in
winter 2018/19
Other work
plans may
influence the
potential to
deliver this plan

NoneContinued scrutiny
by NHSE

Cross organisational
Winter Plan for 2018/19
nearing final stages of
development

Feedback to LADB
on a monthly basis
and review of plan

Representativ
es may not
submit their
sections in a
timely manner.

NonePlan scrutinised by
NHSE and
supported by surge
team.

Winter plan submitted
on 1st October 2018, all
local organisations
contributed to plan.

Developed and
reviewed by A&E
Delivery Board

None NoneNHS England
assurance,
feedback awaited

Winter plan submitted
and reviewed by
NHSE/NHSI

Via LADBNo requirement
to re-submit
plan but some
assurances
required
together with
timeframes

NoneVia NHSE/NHSI

Via North East Urgent
and Emergency Care
Network (UECN)

Network supports
the LADB in system
wide approaches at
aq regional level
supporting shared
learning and
approaches that
can and are applied
at a regional level
to achieve
economies of scale

None NoneUECN produces
monthly work plan
and updates for all
CCGs in North East
and Cumbria

Joint A&E delivery board
and urgent care action
group winter debrief
June 19th 2019.
Reviewed performance

Paper to be
developed in
partnership with the
Urgent Care Action
Group and

None NonePaper will inform
the winter plan for
2019/20 which will
be assured by
NHSE/NHSI

Covid 19.

Next review:
24/06/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

for 2018/19 and also
investment specifically
over the winter period.
Started to prioritise
areas for investment for
winter 2019/20 and also
discussed most useful
approach to system
wide solutions to
challenges.

presented to LADB
in July 2019.

A&E Delivery board
(LADB) have tasked the
Urgent Care Action
Group to review the top
priorities for South
Tyneside Urgent and
Emergency Care
Services to develop a
local action plan.

Plan will be assured
by the LADB

None NoneNone required

Winter resilience plan
has been approved by
the LADB focusing on
same day discharge 7
days a week.
Mobilisation to begin w/b
21st October 2019. 
Plan will be supported
by Urgent Care Action
Group and highlight
reports will monitor
progress and identify
areas for escalation.

Via LADBNone identified None identifiedUpdates to Urgent
and Emergency
Care network
Part of winter plan

Refreshed working
between STSFT and
Vocare who will be
delivering UTC

Via LADBNone identified None identifiedVia NHSE/I who
support the delivery
of the UTCs

Urgent Treatment
Centre to become active
from Wednesday 4th
December at the latest.

Via A&E Delivery
Board and UTC
Group

None identified None identifiedapproval via NHSEI

STSFT Lead on South
Tyneside A&E Delivery
Board to identify main
issues contributing to
poor performance in
A&E. Group will review
and identify areas for
support to support
improved performance.

Via A&E Delivery
Board.

None identified None identifiedVia NHSE/I

Multi-agency surge calls
have been initiated to
discuss performance
and the increase in
Delayed Transfers of
Care. Weekly call shave
been replaced by face to
face meetings at the

Chaired by CCG
Accountable Officer
and reported
through A&E
Delivery Board.

None identified None identifiedVia Urgent and
Emergency Care
Network and also
NHSE I through
Trust systems.

8PageSTYN RR01



Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

Hospital.

Controls in place via
surge calls which are
now daily to support
management of the
situation regarding
Covid 19.

Daily local system
calls feed into
strategic command

None NoneManaged via
national reporting
system

1325

Secondary care
overspend

Secondary Care
activity increases
and the
commissioning
budget overspends

01/06/20
15

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

4 4 16 23 6Monthly review of SLAM
data by NECS.  Review
variance to date in
ledger.  programme
board reviews monthly
position.  BCF should
reduce non elective
admissions.  Monthly
contract meetings with
providers to discuss
variances

Reported monthly
to programme
board.  Reported
monthly to
Executive
Committee.
Reported
bi-monthly to
Governing Body

None NoneReported monthly
to NHSE.  Contract
review meetings
with providers.
Assured audit
report on contract
monitoring

Block contract agreed
for 18/19 with main
provider STFT and CHS

reported to exec,
programme board
and GB

none

25/02/2020
Sue Smith

Risk and
controls
reviewed, no
action
required

Next review:
25/05/2020

A
F

2
. M

a
kin

g
 T

h
e

 B
e

st U
se

O
f R

e
so

u
rce

s

O
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l

2100

Supply of
medication into UK
from international
pharmaceutical
organisations based
in the EU could be
disrupted following
EU exit.

Medication not being
availability

31/01/20
19

Matt Brown

Helen
Ruffell

4 4 16 23 6Nationally
manufacturers are
maintaining at least six
weeks supply in the UK

NECS Medicines
Optimisation
Pharmacist liaising
with NHSE.

Manufactures
feel six weeks
may not be
enough

NoneAt present NHS
England have
communicated that
no local action is
needed

NHSE have advised, via
written communication,
wholesalers, community
pharmacies, GP
practices and patients
not to stockpile
medicines which has
been communicated
within South Tyneside.
However, for products
directly from the EU on
a short lead time basis
(i.e. 24 to 72 hours), you
should plan for lead
times of around three
days longer on these
items only. For these
products only, you may
need to hold an
additional 72 hours'
worth of stock.  NECS
has followed this up with
local communication.

NECS Medicines
Optimisation
Pharmacist acting
on behalf of the
CCG in liaising with
NHSE and adhering
to their advice

People don't
follow the
advice

NoneNHSE have
communicated
nationwide and
asked CCGs to
follow up locally.
NHSE updated
advice October
2019.

EU Exit plans passed by
the government January
2020.  No deal plans
have been stepped

None NoneGovernment plans.

21/04/2020
Helen Ruffell

Risk
reviewed, no
amendments
necessary.

Next review:
20/06/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

down.  January to
December 2020 is an
implementation period
and we will continue as
if we were a member
state.  There is now
certainty of medicine
supplies for the next 12
months.

2320

Risk that COVID19
will impact on the
CCGs quality
assurance
framework 

Due to service
reconfiguration,
staffing pressures,
redeployment and
adjustments to ways
of working  there is a
risk that gaps may
emerge in the
delivery of the
quality assurance
framework with our
commissioned
services during
COVID 19.

12/05/20
20

Jeanette
Scott

Kirstie
Hesketh

4 4 16 32 6Quality team still linked
with key personnel in
Providers 
Access to Board reports

NECS continue to
review published
data
SIRMS incidents
managed locally

QRGs stood
down 
Quality
accounts
delayed

mortality
processes
adjusted to only
COVID 19 deaths
are reviewed 
QRGs
suspended

Updates received
from Trusts
Key issues shared
at Surge meeting  
SI reporting
continues

Commissioned services
report serious incidents
on STEIS

Cases continue to
be scrutinised by
the Head of Quality
and Patient Safety
and Designated
Safeguarding
teams

None The Serious
incident panel
has temporarily
been stood down
however

Clinical incidents
recorded on SIRMS.
Clear escalation process
to the Head of Quality
and Patient Safety.

None NoneAnalysis of trends
and themes
provided by NECS
and quarterly
incident reports.

Commissioner
Assurance Visits (CAV)

NoneThe CAV
programme is
temporarily
suspended to
support the
COVID 19
response.
This
programme will
resume once
restrictions are
removed.

Visits currently
suspended

None

Kirstie Hesketh               
To access Board level data and
develop a integrated assurance
report for committee. 
Discussion with Trust colleagues 
oversight of incidents and SIs 

Target Date: 26/05/2020

29/04/2020
Kirstie
Hesketh

New risk
created

Next review:
28/07/2020
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2321

Lack of accessible
PPE compromising
patient and staff
safety  

COVID-19 has
placed significant
pressures on the
availability of PPE,
therefore a risk has
been added to the
register regarding
the quality/ quantity
of PPE - if supplies
aren't available at

12/05/20
20

Jeanette
Scott

Kirstie
Hesketh

5 3 15 23 6Controls are in place
with the establishment
of the mutual aid PPE
Hub for the ICP and
purchase of stock items 
Support being given to
PPE users to ensure
that they are using the
correct items, at the right
time. National guidance
has also been
developed and
disseminated to support
this approach               

Updates to
Directors and to
Exec 
Inventory
SOP  

Limited
availability on
PPE due to
international
trading pressures

links with other ICP
hubs and LRFs

29/04/2020
Kirstie
Hesketh

New risk
created

Next review:
29/05/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

the front line then
this may lead to
service closures and
compromises both
patient and staff
safety and negates
measures to control
transmission with
what could be
catastrophic
consequences.

team managed and
supported by HQPS

1372

As a result of a
Supreme Court
judgement with
regard to
Deprivation of liberty
many more people
are now highlighted
as being deprived of
liberty and require
the frameworks of
the DOLS 2009 and
the MCA 2007 or
application to the
Court of Protection
to authorise the
deprivation.

There is a risk that
the CCG is
commissioning care
for people that does
not comply with the
act and they are
therefore unlawfully
deprived of their
liberty. Some people
whose care is
funded by or in part
by the CCG and do
not have an
appropriate legal
framework in place.

03/08/20
15

James
Gordon

James
Gordon

3 4 12 23 6There is a Section 75
Agreement currently in
place whereby the
assessment and
commissioning of
package of care,
including the
consideration of the
need for applications to
the Court of Protection,
is enacted on behalf of
the CCG by South
Tyneside Council.

On-going
conversations to
develop a new
Section 75
Agreement
encompassing
these
responsibilities as
part of our
alliancing
development.
Consideration is
also to be given to
new legislation
which is due to
come into practice
October 2020 which
supersedes current
legislation - see
also risk 2191.

Further work to
be carried out
on clarifying the
roles and
responsibilities
between
different
agencies who
are party to the
Section 75.

None

.

23/01/2020
James
Gordon

Risk
reviewed and
control and
assurances
updated.

Next review:
22/01/2021
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1868

Failure to achieve
reductions in
Delayed Transfers
of Care (DTOC) and
stranded patient
metrics 

Reductions in
Delayed Transfers
of Care and
stranded patients
have a significant
role to play in the
way the H&SC
system operate in
South Tyneside

13/06/20
17

Matt Brown

Gillian
Johnson

3 3 9 23 6DTOC numbers and
days lost being
monitored monthly via
report form NHS E,
numbers shared with
Urgent care action
group and LADB. 
DTOC action plan is a
key feature in the A&E
improvement Plan .

Reports to LADB on
a monthly basis,
and to integration
partnership
arrangements as
part of the BCF
quarterly monitoring

DTOC trajectory
is significantly
challenging and
there is a risk
that the action
plan doesn't
deliver the
required
improvement

None identifiedDTOC action plan
is a key feature in
the BCF planning
submission 
BCF quarterly
monitoring sent to
NHS E

Baseline of review of
South Tyneside system
against High Impact
Change Model has been
completed.

Urgent action group
- internally monthly
DTOC and
medically fit figures
shared daily

Some gaps
against the
High Impact
change model
have been

none identifiedNHS England -
monthly reporting

                              
System approach to improving
patient flow and reducing DTOCs.
Actions reviewed weekly.

Target Date: 30/04/2020

25/02/2020
Gillian
Johnson

Risk
reviewed,
controls and
assurances
updated.
DTOC actoin
plan added.

Next review:
25/05/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

identified,
however theses
are being
addressed in
the A&E
improvement
plan.

Help to live at home
service will address
some issues in relation
to care packages

TBC once service is
mobilised

Still under
procurement

None identifiedTBC once service is
mobilised

Due to increased in
DTOC the FT has
produced a localised
plan

Via A&E Delivery
board

None identified None identifiedVia NHSE/NHSI

Due to challenges in
achieving good patient
flow through the system
DTOCs are increasing.
We have put in place
more detailed
communications
between STSFT and the
local system to enable
more focused support.

Via Urgent Care
Action Group

None identified None identifiedNone required

Escalation of weekly
system planning calls to
face to face meetings.
Action plan created.

Feedback to Urgent
Care Action Group
and LADB

none identified none

2196

Risk of closure of
Careline lifestyle
care facilities.  

Careline lifestyles
operate 9 homes
across the north
east - 1, Deenside is
situated within South
Tyneside. Significant
concerns were
identified in 2019
regarding patient
safety, in particular
poor medicines
management
practices and lapses
in care. CQC
inspection rated
them inadequate
however recent
inspections have
seen an
improvement and
the notice of
decision has been
withdrawn and
placements are now

04/10/20
19

Jeanette
Scott

Kirstie
Hesketh

4 3 12 32 6Medicines management
team assigned to work
with home which
includes a schedule of
unannounced visits.
Weekly visits from the
joint commissioning
team to ensure no
lapses in care. 
Regional summit
meetings established to
look at approach and
support offer to Careline
Lifestyles. 
Deneside action plan in
place.   

Action plan
monitored by JT
Comm team

lack of
leadership at
Deneside
staff unfamiliar
with new IT
system for
medicines
management

Joint
commissioning
team visiting
regularly
Safeguarding and
quality teams linked
in with concerns
and action plans   
NECS MO team
offering support and
carrying out
unannounced visits

3 regional work streams
have been created to
include medicines
management practices
and 1:1 provision

JT Comm teams
still in regular
attendance

CCG holding a lessons
learned event regarding
Careline facility in
STCCG on the 5th Feb.

Reports received at GB

                              

Target Date: 12/02/2020

                              

Target Date: 12/02/2020

27/03/2020
Kirstie
Hesketh

risk
description
and controls
adapted to
reflect current
position 
Until gap in
assurance
addressed
risk remains

Next review:
26/05/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

active.
Unsustainability is a
repeated theme with
this provider.

JT C quality visits
indicate less significant
concerns in relation to
meds management

CCG lessons learned
event held  
Notice of decision
withdrawn by CQC
Notable improvements
and under regular
review by Joint
commissioning team  

assurances that
improvements
are sustainable

1870

Potential risk of loss
of service due to
cyber attack

Risk associated with
loss of service due
to cyber attack

13/06/20
17

Matt Brown

Gillian
Johnson

3 2 6 23 6CCG Incident and
business continuity plan

6 month review of
plan with CCG
Assurance of EPPR
statement to
Governing body
annually

None identified. none identifiedAssurance of EPPR
statement to NHS
England annually

CCG receives carecert
bulletins. NECS action
this on behalf of the
CCG for network and
staff awareness
purposes as
recommended.

This bulletin is
further circulated by
the corporate office.
IG updates at team
briefings provide
further guidance on
information security
and risks.

Member of staff
may not read
the bulletin.

None Identified.NECS ICT and IG
teams.

Regional NECS
document in place that
summarises issues,
actions and risks in
relation to cyber
security.

Via monthly
bioinformatics
meetings

None NoneNone

Contract with NECS that
covers support for
identified and specific
hardware, software and
operating systems.

Monthly IT meeting
with NECS include
Cyber security
where appropriate

None identified None identifiedAs part of EPRR
report to GB
NECS IT assurance
processes

The CCG is now part of
the Cyber Essentials
Scheme, a government
backed scheme that
helps protect
organisations against
common cyber attacks.
https://www.ncsc.gov.uk
/cyberessentials/overvi
ew

Via annual renewal
process

None NoneWorking with NECS
on Government
backed scheme
gives credibility

15/04/2020
Gillian
Johnson

Risk
reviewed,
controls
updated.

Next review:
12/10/2020
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Risk
Type

Date
Risk Ref

Director
Owner

Initial rating Controls Internal assurances Current

C L ScoreC L Score

Actions Review date
Review
Next review

Description

NHS South Tyneside CCG Risk Register

13/05/2020

Gaps in
controls

Objective Gaps in
assurance

External
assurances

1326

Better Care Fund

Better Care Fund
overspends or does
not reduce non
elective admissions

01/06/20
15

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

3 3 9 22 4Spending for CCG is on
a block basis and so
little risk of
overspending. Reserve
held in case of
overspending on non
elective admissions

Reported to
integration board
monthly and to
Governing Body
Bi-monthly

None nonereported quarterly
to NHSE

25/02/2020
Sue Smith

Risk and
control
reviewed - no
action
required

Next review:
25/05/2020
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2319

COVID19
Reimbursement
Claims

There is a risk that
costs in relation to
COVID 19
expenditure are not
reimbursed

07/05/20
20

Kate
Hudson

Sue Smith

3 3 9 22 4Financial procedure
established and in place
to ensure expenditure is
approved by the CCG
CFO and if applicable
the Chief Officer and
Chair prior to being
incurred to ensure
expenditure is allowable
within NHS England and
NHS Improvement
guidance.

Assurance to be
provided to CCG
Executive Meetings
on
material
expenditure in
relation to the
COVID19
response and
assessment against
NHS England and
NHS Improvement
guidance.

None identified CCG CFO to obtain
prior approval from
regional
Operational
Director of Finance
from NHS England
and NHS
Improvement for
schemes where
further guidance is
required.
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Version 4 (20.7.16) 

 
REPORT CLASSIFICATION – please refer to Report 
Classification Guidance and check appropriate box below 

 Official 
 Sensitive: Commercial 
 Official Sensitive: Personal 

MEETING TITLE: GOVERNING BODY MEETING 
(PUBLIC) 

DATE: 21 May 2020 

REPORT TITLE: 
REGISTERS OF INTEREST 2020/21 AGENDA ITEM: 2020/16 

ENCLOSURE: 8 

LEAD DIRECTOR / REPORT SPONSOR: Matt Brown – Director of Operations 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Ruffell – Operations Manager 
 

REPORT SUMMARY / RECOMMENDATIONS: 

In line with NHS South Tyneside CCG’s Standards of Business Conduct and Declarations 
of Interest Policy, reviewed in November 2019 and approved at Governing Body in 
November 2019, the CCG must be satisfied that our registers of interests are accurate and 
up to date on an annual basis.  Declarations of Interests are required from the following: 

 Members of the Clinical Commissioning Group 
o GP partners (or where the practice is a company, each director) 
o Any individual directly involved with the business or decision-making of 

the CCG, for example GP nominated CCG leads, clinical leads and 
practice managers; 

 The members of its Governing Body; 
 The members of its committees or sub-committees and the committees or sub-

committees of its Governing Body; and  
 Its employees or contractors 

 
In March 2020 the 2019-20 Declaration of Interests Registers were sent by email to 
individuals in the groups listed above.  The link to the Standards of Business Conduct and 
Declarations of Interest Policy was included in the email along with the Declarations of 
Interest process and the Declaration of Gifts and Hospitality process as attachments.   
 
Colleagues were asked to complete the Declaration of Interests form and return to Helen 
Ruffell by no later than 27 March 2020. 
 

Due to the Covid 19 pandemic a number of colleagues had not completed their declaration 
by 27 March.  Reminders were sent via email and to date one register is complete but the 
other three registers still require further updating. 
 
At this stage the Governing Body is asked to review the Governing Body, Committees and 
Decision Makers register and highlight any areas for discussion. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS / RISKS: <Insert details of any identified financial implications and/or other risks> 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
COMPLETED: 
 
Following the launch of the revised EIA documents 
on 1 March 2016 EIAs must be completed as 
follows: 
An EIA should be undertaken at the start of the 
development for a new proposed service, policy 
or process to assess likely impacts and provide 
further insight as to what will be required to 
implement it effectively.  The EIA form and 
associated documents can be found on the CCG’s 
intranet or through NECS Equality and Diversity 
Team 

NO YES 
  

If no please specify the reason why: 
This is not a new proposed service, policy 

or process 

If yes please attach a copy of the completed 
assessment to the back of your report 
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Has an Equality Impact Assessment been 
completed using the equality impact documents 
ensuring that no persons are adversely affected as 
required by the Equality Act 2010 
(Please check the relevant box by double clicking on the box and 

selecting “checked” under the default value heading – only one box 

should be checked.) 

 

If you are unsure if the report requires an EIA 
or for any further guidance please contact:  
NECSU.Equality@nhs.net 
QUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT COMPLETED: 
Following the implementation of the STCCG Quality 
Strategy (September 2015) it has been agreed that 
a QIA should be undertaken for a new proposed 
service, policy or process or any changes to current 
services which may have an impact on quality or 
experience 
 
Has a Quality Impact Assessment been completed 
using the quality impact assessment tool ensuring 
that they have demonstrated the potential quality 
and safety impact? 

NO YES 
  

If no please specify the reason why: 
This is not a new proposed service, policy 

or process 
 

If yes please complete the below Quality Impact 
Assessment and submit with your report 

 

STCCG Quality 
Impact  Assessment 2015 V2.docx

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
For Information For Approval To Note For Decision 

   

RISK REGISTER: 
Is the report subject matter included on the CCG 
Risk Register 

NO   If not updated please specify the reason: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YES  
If yes please confirm the risk register has 
been updated in accordance with the 
content of this report: 
 
Updated  
Not Update  

SPONSORING LEAD DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 
Has the Lead Director approved the paper (proof of approval 
must be retained for audit purposes) 

YES  
 

NO  
 

Papers without Lead Director approval will be 
withdrawn from the agenda 

mailto:NECSU.Equality@nhs.net
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South Tyneside CCG Register of Interests – Governing Body and Committees and decision makers 2020-
21 
 

Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

Jo Farey Head of 
Commissioning, 
Primary Care 

Vicky Hart, Chief 
Financial Officer/Head of 
Finance at Intrahealth is 
a personal friend.  
Intrahealth hold the 
contract for St George’s 
and Riverside GP 
practice (APMS) which 
sits within the CCG’s 
delegated 
commissioning 
responsibilities 

   Indirect Marc
h 19 

Pres
ent 

Declare at 
meetings and 
not take part in 
decisions 
relating to the 
financial 
interests and 
specifically the 
St George’s 
and Riverside 
contract 

1 April 
2020 

Jeanette 
Scott 

Executive 
Director of 
Nursing, Quality 
and Safety 

None        1 April 
2020 

Kirstie 
Hesketh 

Head of Quality 
and Patient 
Safety, South 
Tyneside and 
Sunderland 
CCG 
 
 
 

None        1 April 
2020 

Sue Smith Senior Finance 
Manager 

None        1 April 
2020 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

Ros 
Whitehead 

Practice 
Engagement 
Lead 

Remunerated admin 
position with South 
Tyneside Health 
Collaboration and sit as 
Advisor on Board, 
around Primary Care.  
The Collaboration hold 
the contract for Albert 
Road Surgery 
 

    Direct 1.4.1
8 

Pres
ent 

Declared at all 
CCG meetings 
as appropriate.  
Excluded from 
any 
procurement 
or decision 
making in 
relation to 
South 
Tyneside 
Health 
Collaboration 

1 April 
2020 

Co-opted member of 
Gateshead and South 
Tyneside LMC 

    Direct 2011 Pres
ent 

Declared 
where 
appropriate 
and action 
taken within 
the meeting re 
relevance 

Paul Cuskin Lay Member 
and Deputy 
Chair 

Dementia Champion – 
delivering dementia 
awareness sessions 
across the community 
and business 

    Direct Nov 
18 

Pres
ent  

No risks to 
mitigate 

1 April 
20 

Vice Chair St Aloysius’ 
and St James’ Parish 
Council 

     Aug 
18 

Pres
ent 

Steven 
Carter 

Senior Public 
Health 
Advanced 

None        1 April 
20 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

Practitioner 
South Tyneside 
Council and 
member of 
Cancer Locality 
Group 

Isobel 
Finlay 

Cancer Services 
Manager STSFT 
and member of 
Cancer Locality 
Group 

None        1 April 
20 

Robert 
Wilson 

Patient Member 
of Cancer 
Locality Group 

Trustee of Perth Green 
Community Interest 
Organisation 

    Direct 1.4.1
9 

Pres
ent 

No risk to 
mitigate 

1 April 
20 

Trustee of independent 
charity Blissability 

    Direct 1.4.1
9 

Pres
ent 

Declared  and 
to withdraw 
from any 
conversations 
or decisions 
relating to 
contracting 
Blissability 
services 

Dr Jon Tose Clinical Director 
and Clinical 
Editor for 
HealthPathways 

GP Appraiser     Direct 2015 Pres
ent 

Declared at 
relevant 
meetings 

1 April 
20 

Freelance locum GP 
Greater Manchester 

    Direct 2019 Pres
ent 

Wife is a consultant 
anaesthetist at Salford 
Royal Hospital 

   Indirect 2003 Pres
ent 

Dr Tarquin Secondary Care Consultant at     Direct Sept Pres To withdraw 1 April 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

Cross Consultant Northumbria Healthcare 
NHS Foundation Trust 

1997 ent from any 
conversations 
involving 
employing 
trust 

20 

Gavin 
McPake 

Head of 
Financial 
Transformation 
STSFT and 
Member of 
Financial 
Sustainability 
Programme 
Board 

None        1 April 
20 

John 
Whitehouse 

Lay Member Lay Member at NHS 
Durham CCG  

    Direct April 
20 

 Declared at 
meetings and 
appropriate 
action taken 
within the 
meeting as 
necessary 

1 April 
20 

Lay Member at NHS 
North Cumbria CCG 

    Direct July 
2018 

Pres
ent 

Daughter is Junior 
Doctor in training 
employed by Lead 
Employer Trust which is 
hosted by CDDFT 

   Indirect 2007 Pres
ent 

Pat Harle Lay Member Lay Member at NHS 
Sunderland CCG 

    Direct 1.1.2
018 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings and 
appropriate 
action taken 
within the 
meeting as 
necessary 

1 April 
20 

Appointed CCGs 
Governor for Sunderland 
and South Tyneside 
STSFT 

    Direct 1.9.2
019 

Pres
ent 

Sarah CRUK None        1 April 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

Kucukmetin Facilitator and 
Member of 
Cancer Locality 
Group 

20 

Gillian 
Johnson 

Head of 
Commissioning 

None        1 April 
20 

Paul Irving Primary Care 
Commissioning 
Manager 

Spouse NHSE Regional 
Lead for Social 
Prescribing 

   Indirect Marc
h 19 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings and 
appropriate 
action taken 
with the 
meeting as 
necessary 

1 April 
20 

Dr Neil 
O’Brien 

Accountable 
Officer 

GP Partner at Cestria 
Health Centre, Chester-
le-Street 

    Direct Aug 
02 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings and 
appropriate 
action taken 
within the 
meeting as 
necessary 

23 April 
20 

Cestria is a member of 
Chester-le-Street 
Primary Care Network 

    Direct Aug 
16 

Pres
ent 

Cestria provides 
intermediate level 
service in  ear, nose and 
throat, dermatology and 
minor surgery 

    Direct 13.6.
16 

Pres
ent 

Cestria is a member of 
Chester-le-Street Health 
Ltd (GP Federation) 

    Direct 13.6.
16 

Pres
ent 

Wife works at County 
Durham and Darlington 
NHS Foundation Trust 
(CDDFT) 

   Indirect 13.6.
16 

Pres
ent 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

Accountable 
Officer/Chief Clinical 
Officer County Durham 
CCG 

    Direct Aug 
13 

Pres
ent 

Accountable Officer 
Sunderland CCG 

    Direct 1.4.2
0 

Pres
ent 

Keith 
Haynes 

Governance 
Consultant 

Director, Healthcare Risk 
Consulting Ltd – 
providing governance 
and strategy advice, 
support and consultancy 
to healthcare 
organisations 

    Direct Aug 
2008 

Pres
ent 

Advise COO if 
acquire 
contract to 
work with 
healthcare 
organisation 
that is 
associated or 
proximate to 
CCG (as per 
secondary 
employment) 
in the event 
that it may 
have 
materiality to 
work with the 
CCG 

24 April 
20 

Dr Matthew 
Walmsley 
 
 
 
 

Chair STCCG Partner Marsden Road 
Health Centre 
 

    Direct Aug 
2003 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings and 
appropriate 
action taken 
within the 
meeting 
 

April 20 

Marsden Road HC is a 
research practice and 
receives funding to 
recruit to various 

    Direct Aug 
2003 

Pres
ent 



 

9 
 

Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

research studies 
Wife – Partner Houghton 
Medical Group 

    Indirect 2007 Pres
ent 

Chair and charity trustee 
Houghton-le-Spring 
Scout District 

    Direct Oct 
18 

Pres
ent 

Partner at Wawn Street 
Surgery 

    Direct Dec 
19 

Pres
ent 

Tina 
Thompson 

Partnership 
Manager, 
Macmillan 
Cancer Support 
and Member of 
Cancer Locality 
Group 

None        29 April 
20 

Sarah Dean 
Golightly 

Joint 
Commissioning 
Lead (with 
South Tyneside 
Council) 

None        29 April 
20 

Dr R Bhalla 
 
 

Associate 
Clinical Director 
for Long Term 
Conditions 

Owner of Wawn Street 
Surgery building 

    Direct 1992 Pres
ent 

No risks to 
mitigate 

30 April 
20 

GP Retentions Scheme 
role at Colliery Court 
Medical Group 

    Direct 4.9.1
8 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings and 
appropriate 
action taken 
within the 
meeting 

David Julien 
 
 

Clinical Director CEO and Shareholder of 
First Contact Clinical CIC 
a third sector 

    Direct 2008 Pres
ent 

 Declared at 
meetings as 
appropriate 

29 April 
20 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

organisation delivering 
services in the North 
East including South 
Tyneside 

and 
appropriate 
action taken 
with the 
meeting 
Ensure 
activation of 
the option of 
stepping out or 
abstaining if 
risk of conflict 
arises.  
Positively 
excluded from 
any 
.procurement 
or decision 
making in 
relation in to 
First Contact 
Clinical 

 Member of South 
Tyneside Voluntary 
Sector Chief Officers 
Group 

    Direct 2017 Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings as 
appropriate 
and 
appropriate 
action taken 
with the 
meeting 

Shareholder in David 
Julien Ltd a limited 

    Direct 2013 Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings as 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

company that provides 
consultancy services 
(inactive at present and 
in the process of being 
dissolved) 

appropriate 
and 
appropriate 
action taken 
with the 
meeting.  
Company not 
active at 
present 

Wife works for First 
Contact Clinical as 
Training manager 

   Indirect 2016 Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings as 
appropriate 
and 
appropriate 
action taken 
with the 
meeting 

Dr J Hunter Associate 
Clinical Director 

Salaried GP at Central 
Surgery 

    Direct Marc
h 17 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings when 
relevant, and 
appropriate 
action taken 
where 
necessary 

30 April 
20 

Dr J Gordon Clinical Director 
and Executive 
Committee 
Member 

GP Partner, Imeary 
Street Surgery. Potential 
for direct financial benefit 
from primary care 
commissioning decisions 
made by South Tyneside 
CCG 

    Direct 1.12.
14 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings and 
excluded from 
any Primary 
care 
Commissionin
g decision 

1 May 
2020 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

where there 
may be a 
direct financial 
benefit to my 
practice. 

Sessional work for South 
Tyneside Health 
Collaboration (STHC). 
My practice is a member 
of the GP collaboration 
(STHC) and therefore I 
may benefit from any 
commissioning decision 
relating to the award of 
contracts/finance to this 
organisation. I 
sometimes carry out 
sessional work for the 
collaboration. 

    Direct 1.3.1
6 

Pres
ent 

Excluded from 
any primary 
care 
commissioning 
decision that 
may result in 
the award of 
contracts or 
financial 
benefit to 
STHC. 

My GP business partner 
is clinical lead for STHC 
and Clinical director for 
PCN South 

   Indirect 1.9.1
7 

Pres
ent 

Excluded from 
any primary 
care 
commissioning 
decision where 
that may result 
in the award of 
contracts or 
financial 
benefit to 
STHC or PCN 
South 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

My wife is a Research 
Associate at Sunderland 
University. She works on 
health research and may 
benefit from any 
research commissioned 
by STCCG and awarded 
to Sunderland University 
or any other universities 
involved in collaborative 
arrangements. 

   Indirect 1.5.1
4 

Pres
ent 

Excluded from 
any decisions 
relating to the 
award of 
research 
funding for 
Sunderland 
University or 
other 
universities 
involved in 
local research 
collaborations 

 

Matt Brown Executive 
Director of 
Operations 

Vice Chair of Governors 
at Archibald First School, 
Gosforth 
 

    Direct 30.9.
19 

 Declared at 
meetings as 
appropriate 
and 
appropriate 
action taken 
with the 
meeting 

6 May 
2020 

Tom Hall Director of 
Public Health 

Employed by South 
Tyneside Council 

    Direct April 
2015 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings when 
relevant, and 
appropriate 
action taken 
where 
necessary 

6 May 
2020 

Partner employed by 
Tees and Esk, Wear 
Valley Mental Health 

   Indirect Nov 
2019 

Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings when 
relevant, and 
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Name Current 
position(s) held, 
ie, Governing 
Body, Member 
Practice, 
Employee or 
other 

Declared interest – Name 
of the organisation and 
nature of business) 

Type of Interest Is the 
Interest 
direct or 
indirect? 

Date of 
Interest 

Action taken to 
mitigate risk 

Date 
added or 
updated Financial 

Interests 
Non-
financial 
Professio
nal 
Interests 

Non-
financial 
Personal 
Interests 

Fro
m 

To 

Trust appropriate 
action taken 
where 
necessary 

Kate 
Hudson 

Chief Finance 
Officer/Chief 
Officer 

None        7 May 
2020 
 
 
 

Louise 
Lydon 

Primary Care 
Health 
Professional on 
Governing Body 

Local Pharmacy 
Committee Secretary – 
Representative Body for 
Pharmacists in 
Gateshead and South 
Tyneside 

    Direct 2007 Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings and 
appropriate 
action taken 
within the 
meeting 

7 May 
2020 

Director of Chemcare Ltd 
and Lydon Pharmacy 
Group 

    Direct 2004 Pres
ent 

Declared at 
meetings and 
appropriate 
action taken 
within the 
meeting 

Member of General 
Pharmaceutical Council  

    Direct 2002 Pres
ent 

No risk to 
mitigate 

Member of Royal 
Pharmaceutical Society 

    Direct 2002 Pres
ent 

No risk to 
mitigate 
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Northern CCG Joint Committee   

Date of meeting: To be agreed via correspondence 

Does paper need to be circulated before the agenda goes out (ie earlier than 10 
working days prior to the meeting) (please circle):      n/a 

 

Title of report: Northern CCG Joint Committee – Terms of Reference 

Purpose of report (brief description): 
 
The Committee’s Terms of Reference (ToR) have been amended to reflect changes 
to CCG structures effective from 1 April 2020 and these are attached. 
 
Members will recall discussion at the meeting of the Committee held on 12th March 
2020 as to whether future voting arrangements would need to change (ie whether 
this should remain as unanimous and be one vote/one organisation or whether 
voting should be per capita to the size of the CCG population). There was general 
support that current voting arrangements should continue going forward – 
unanimous by one vote per organisation and therefore the section on voting in the 
ToR has not been changed. 
 
Recommendations: CCG Governing Bodies are now asked to approve the revised 
ToR for final ratification at the next meeting of the Committee on 9th July 2020. 
 
Is the paper for (please tick): 

 
Decision-making    
 
Information Sharing  
 
Discussion 
 

 

Actions required by Northern CCG Joint Committee: 
 
Sponsor:   Jon Rush 
Report Author:  Gillian Stanger 
Job Title:   Business Support Manager, NECS 
Date:    6 May 2020

x 

 
 

 

2020/17 

Enclosure 9 
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Northern CCG Joint Committee 
Terms of Reference 

Version Date Comments 
1.0 5.10.17 Considered at Joint CCG Committee for CNE meeting 

  
2.0 12.10.17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5.18 
 
 
 
5.7.18 
 
 
 
 

Updates incorporated following Joint CCG Committee for CNE meeting on 
5.10.17 as follows: 
 
Para.2 – Insertion re term of office: 
‘The term of office will be two years’. 
 
Para.5 – Insertion of paragraph re lay members: 
‘There will also be two (non-voting) lay members appointed to the Joint 
Committee, one of whom will be from a patient and public involvement 
perspective and the other from a finance and governance perspective. Where 
feasible, one lay member will be from the north of the patch and the other from 
the south of the patch’ 
 
Following the selection process on 5th January 2018, the ability to do this was 
not possible hence why this further addition has been made in red above. 
 
Para 15 – Insertion of sentence re decision making: 
‘Decisions will be taken only by those CCGs to whom a particular issue 
applies’ 
 
Para 16 – amendment to paragraph re collective decisions to read: 
The collective decisions of the Joint Committee shall be binding on all 
member CCGs to whom a particular issue applies, and decisions will be 
published by individual CCG members on their websites.  All decisions of 
the Joint Committee must be unanimous.   
 
Title of the Committee 
This has been amended to read consistently throughout as ‘Northern CCG 
Joint Committee’ 
 
At its meeting on 1 January 2018 (development session), the Joint Committee 
agreed 
- not to include financial limits for decision making in the terms of reference. 
- that the Vice-Chair would be selected from any appointed lay member 
 
Amended to note the correct title of NHS Hartlepool and Stockton-on-Tees 
CCG. 
 
Title of Committee confirmed as ‘Northern CCG Joint Committee’ 
 
At its meeting on 5 July 2018 the Joint Committee agreed that the Chair of the 
CCG Chief officer group would be invited to attend meetings of the Committee 
(both the public and private sessions) and would receive the papers. 
 
Terms of Reference approved. 

3.0 4.7.19 
 
 
7.11.19 

Revised Terms of Reference agreed for submission to and approval by CCG 
Governing Bodies. 
 
Terms of Reference approved by Joint Committee. 
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TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 

Northern CCG Joint Committee: membership and functions 

 
1. Membership of the Northern CCG Joint Committee (hereafter referred to as ‘the Joint 

Committee’) will be open to the eight undermentioned clinical commissioning groups :  
 

 NHS County Durham CCG  

 NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG  

 NHS North Cumbria CCG  

 NHS Northumberland CCG 

 NHS North Tyneside CCG   

 NHS South Tyneside CCG 

 NHS Sunderland CCG  

 NHS Tees Valley CCG  
 

2. Voting membership of the joint committee will comprise the Chair and Chief Officer from each 
member CCG, or a nominated deputy. 

 
3. Where there is an issue requiring a decision to be made which will affect what was formerly NHS 

Hambleton, Richmondshire and Whitby CCG, NHS North Yorkshire CCG will be invited to attend 
meetings as an Associate Member of the Joint Committee with full voting rights in relation to the 
relevant issue. 
 

4. The Chair and Vice Chair of this Joint Committee will be elected by the members of the Joint 
Committee, and must come from the eight member CCGs. Both roles cannot be undertaken by 
members of the same CCG. The term of office will be two years. 

 
5. Each CCG will be entitled to exercise one vote in the Joint Committee – this means that the two 

representatives of each CCG will have to be in agreement when exercising their CCG’s vote. It 
will then be important for these representatives to canvas views from their nominating CCG 
prior to meetings and to discuss agenda matters in advance of meetings.  
 

6. There will also be two (non-voting) lay members of CCGs appointed to the Joint Committee, one 
of whom will be from a patient and public involvement perspective and the other from a finance 
and governance perspective. One lay member will, where feasible, be from the north of the 
patch and the other from the south of the patch. One of these lay members will also perform the 
role of Vice-Chair. 
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7. Also attending the meeting (in a non-voting capacity and where appropriate under the conflicts 
of interest policies of the CCGs) will be the Managing Director of NECS, a named Director from 
NHS England, the Head of Strategic CCG Development and the Chair of the CCG Chief Finance 
Officer Group. 

 
8. The Joint Committee will be guided by the following principles: 
 

 Subsidiarity: decisions should be made at the smallest geographical level possible, and joint 
decisions covering a wider geography should only be taken where this adds value.  

 Securing continuous improvement to the quality of commissioned services to improve 
outcomes for patients with regard to clinical effectiveness, safety and patient experience  

 Promoting innovation and seeking out and adopting best practice, by supporting research 
and adopting and diffusing transformative, innovative ideas, products, services and clinical 
practice within its commissioned services, which add value in relation to quality and 
productivity. 

 Developing strong working relationships with clear aims and a shared vision putting the 
needs of the people we serve over and above organisational interests  

 Avoiding unnecessary costs through better co-ordinated and proactive services which keep 
people well enough to need less acute and long term care. 

 
9. The Joint CCG’s Committee’s work plan will be set annually using a decision-making flowchart 

and scoring criteria set out in Appendix 1.  Where this flowchart shows where there is a policy, 
guideline or procedure that would benefit from full Committee sign-up these should be 
included. This process will be overseen by nominated members (Chair and Chief Officer from 
each member CCG, or a nominated deputy) of the Joint Committee.  This work programme will 
then need to be approved by the Joint Committee and then approved by each member CCG.    

 
10. If urgent or exceptional issues emerge after this work programme is set that require a collective 

decision then approval for this will need to be agreed unanimously by the Joint CCG Committee. 
And ratified by each member CCG. 

 
11. The Joint Committee will also ensure compliance with the four key tests for service change as 

established by the Department for Health: 
 

 Strong public and patient engagement. 

 Consistency with current and prospective need for patient choice. 

 Clear, clinical evidence base. 

 Support for proposals from commissioners. 
 
12. In accordance with statutory powers under s.14Z3 of the NHS Act 2006, the proposed Joint 

Committee will be able to make decisions on procuring services and awarding contracts, chiefly 
to the providers of specialised acute and ambulance services.  In discharging this function the 
committee will: 
 

 Determine the options appraisal process for commissioning services, including agreeing the 
evaluation criteria and weighting of the criteria 
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 Where appropriate, determine the method and scope of the consultation process, and make 
any necessary decisions arising from a Pre-Consultation Business Case (and the decision to 
go run a formal consultation process). That includes any determination on the viability of 
models of care pre-consultation and during formal consultation processes, as set out in 
s.13Q, s.14Z2 and s.242 of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended). 
 

 Approve the formal report on the outcome of the consultation that incorporates all of the 
representations received in order to reach a decision, taking into account all of the 
information collated and representations received in relation to the consultation process. 

 

 Make decisions to satisfy any legal requirements associated with consulting the public and 
making decisions arising from it, ensuring that individual CCGs’ retained duties can be met. 

 
 
 

Decision-making and links to individual CCG Governing Bodies  
 
13. The NHS Act 2006 (as amended) enables CCGs to exercise certain functions jointly and to take 

collective binding decisions as to the exercise of these functions. To be clear, this legislative 
permission only applies to Joint Committees of CCGs and does not apply to enable decision-
making to be exercised by any alternatively constituted or wider group (for example, an STP 
Board or Programme Board).  
 

14. Under this legal framework, the power to take commissioning decisions in respect of health 
services sits with CCGs (and to a more limited extent NHS England), with decisions being taken 
by the Governing Body or otherwise, as determined in the relevant governance documents. On 
this basis, all commissioning decisions must be taken by the CCGs acting independently or as a 
formally constituted joint CCG committee. Therefore, when functions are delegated to the Joint 
Committee, it will transact all the work necessary to discharge those functions.  The Joint 
Committee will be the decision maker in relation to that work and those functions, however it is 
for the members of the Joint Committee to consult their own Governing Body prior to any 
decision being taken and for the members to report back to their relevant CCG Governing Body.  

 
15. The relevant parties to whom any Joint Committee decision applies must be agreed first by the 

Joint Committee itself – before any recommendations are brought back to it for decision-making 
(this will allow for the exclusion of certain CCGs where the geographical scope of a proposal does 
not apply to them or because of their current status, e.g. where legal directions prohibit them 
from taking the decision). Decisions will be taken only by those CCGs to whom a particular issue 
applies. 

 
16. The collective decisions of the Joint Committee shall be binding on all member CCGs to whom a 

particular issue applies, and decisions will be published by individual CCG members on their 
websites.  All decisions of the Joint Committee must be unanimous.   

 
17. The Joint Committee will have a forward plan to ensure CCG members are clear which decisions 

they need to prepare for. It will be the responsibility of each member CCG to ensure that their 
Governing Body and/or other CCG decision making body is appropriately consulted and briefed 
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ahead of Joint Committee meetings, and is provided with regular updates on the business of the 
Joint Committee so that they are clear on the implications of the decisions made.  
 

18. Implementation of the decisions will be the remit of each member CCG and therefore accurate 
reporting back to their respective Governing Body is essential.  The Joint Committee will make 
regular written reports to the Governing Bodies of its member CCGs, and will review its aims, 
objectives, strategy and progress and produce an annual report for the member Governing 
Bodies. 

 
19. While CCGs can delegate decisions to the Joint Committee they can also agree the governing 

bodies or members input on these decisions and have them provide recommendations into the 
Joint Committee. 

 
20. It is essential that each CCG delegates the same level of authority for the same matters into the 

Joint Committee.  
 
21. Should this joint commissioning arrangement prove to be unsatisfactory, the Governing Body of 

any of the member CCGs can decide to withdraw from the arrangement and pull out of the Joint 
Committee.   

 
 

Meetings of the Northern CCG Joint Committee: 
 
22. Members of the Joint Committee have a collective responsibility for the operation of the Joint 

Committee. They will participate in discussion, review evidence and provide objective expert 
input to the best of their knowledge and ability, and endeavor to reach a collective view. 
 

23. The Joint Committee will usually meet on a bi-monthly basis but will be cancelled if there is no 
business to be dealt with. Additional meetings can be called as required.  

 
24. The Joint Committee may call additional experts to attend meetings on an ad hoc basis to inform 

discussions.  
 
25. The Joint Committee has the power to establish sub groups and working groups and any such 

groups will be accountable to the Joint Committee (and ultimately the member CCGs). 
 
26. Para 8 of Schedule 1A of the NHS Act 2006 requires meetings of a Governing Body to be in public 

unless it is not in the public interest to hold them in public.  It will be for the members of the 
formally constituted Joint Committee to decide whether their meetings (or parts of them) are 
held in public to help them meet their statutory duties of transparency and public involvement. 

 
27. Joint Committee meetings held in public should only occur when there is a decision to be made 

or a discussion/information item of public note/concern. 
 

28. The Joint Committee has adopted the standing orders of what was formerly known as North 
Durham CCG  insofar as they relate to the:  

 Notice of meetings 
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 Recording and minuting of meetings 

 Agendas 

 Circulation of papers 

 Conflicts of interest (together with complying with the statutory guidance issued by NHS 
England) 

 At least one full voting member from each CCG must be present for the meeting to be 
quorate. 

 All decisions of the Joint Committee must be unanimous (see section 16 above). 
 

29. Members of the Joint Committee shall respect confidentiality requirements as set out in the 
Standing Orders unless separate confidentiality requirements are set out for the Joint 
Committee in which event these shall be observed. 

 
30. The secretariat to the Joint Committee will: 

 Circulate agenda and associated documents at least ten working days prior to the meeting 

 Work in collaboration with CCG and NECS communication and engagement personnel to 
publicise the meeting/agenda and documents on all CCG websites 

 Circulate the minutes and action notes of the Joint Committee within three working days of 
the meeting to all members 

 Present the minutes and action notes to the governing bodies of the CCGs. 
 

31. These terms of reference will be formally reviewed annually by the CCGs and may be amended 
by mutual agreement between the CCGs at any time to reflect changes in circumstances as they 
may arise. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved by Northern CCG Joint Committee at its meeting on 7 November 2019. 
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 18 December 2019 
8.30am – 12 noon, Monkton Hall 

 
Present: David Hambleton (DH) Chief Executive (Chairing 

meeting) 
STCCG 

 Kate Hudson (KH) Chief Finance Officer  STCCG 
    
 Matt Brown (MB) Director of Operations  STCCG 
 Jeanette Scott (JS) Executive Director of Nursing, 

Quality & Safety 
STCCG 

 Ros Whitehead (RW) Practice Manager Lead STCCG 
 Dr Jon Tose (JT) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Tom Hall (TH) Director of Public Health STC 
 Dr James Gordon (JG) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Vicki Pattison (VP)  Head of Adults and Integrated 

Care 
STC 

    
Apologies: Dr Matthew Walmsley (MW) GP Chair STCCG 
 Dave Julien (DJ) Clinical Director STCCG 
    
In attendance: Sue Smith (SS) Senior Finance Manager STCCG 
 Emma Warner (EW) Contract Manager NECS 
 Jenna Easton (JE) Minutes Acting Executive Assistant 

(Minutes) 
STCCG 

  
Notes 

 
Actions 

   
1. Welcome 

A round of introductions took place; Sue Smith, Senior Finance Manager was 
welcomed the Committee in the capacity of shadowing today’s meeting and will 
attend next month’s meeting on behalf of the Chief Finance Officer covering the 
usual Finance related items. 

 

   
2. Apologies for Absence 

Noted as above. 
 

 

3. Declarations of interest 
No conflicts of interest were declared however the Chair agreed this will be re-
visited throughout the meeting at each individual agenda item. 
 

 

4. Minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2019 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true record with the 
following minor amendments for accuracy purposes:- 

i. Typographical error on page 6 within the Medicine Management update 
which should read ‘this cost saving’. 

ii. The Medicine Management section 4th point requires amendment to 
remove the wording ‘and new way of working’. 

 

 

5. Matters arising  
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i. CCG’s (Clinical Commissioning Group) have been allocated a sum of 
monies to be used in-house to manage information sharing in primary care 
and is to be used flexibly until further guidance is received.  Regional joint 
work is underway to focus on key elements of safeguarding reports from 
primary care and it is proposed that a LES (Local Enhanced Services) will 
be introduced, however this form of remuneration has been less attractive 
in previous years and therefore slight concerns were noted. 
The views of Safeguarding Leads from individual practices are to be 
sought and to be built on to explore all available options rather than the 
initial fixing of solutions.  It was clarified the sum of £75k will be allocated to 
the Primary Care budget.  Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and 
Patient Safety and Clinical Director are to initiate discussions. 

ii. Dates within the action log are to be checked for accuracy and updated. 
iii. Conversations are to take place at core business on 9th January to review 

proposed changes to the Chief Officers scheme of delegation and will re-
appear at January Executive Committee for final ratification. 

iv. In terms of performance, Maternity services are to be managed via a PBR 
(Payment by Results) arrangement going forward. 

v. In terms of the delivery plan; visioning work continues and a preferred 
option to produce a system-wide annual report was noted. 

vi. Concerns with MEDITECH in terms of service discharge have been shared 
with senior colleagues at the Trust; an updated position is to be shared 
with the Committee. 

 
Following discussion, the action log was updated accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J Scott/ J 
Tose 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M 
Walmsley 

   
6. Chairs Update 

Winter pressures are becoming increasingly complex across the board and 
predictions of a challenging winter lie ahead; helpful planning and discussions 
continue to prepare for this period.   
 
An influenza outbreak occurred last month within Hebburn Court Care Home and 
outbreaks of D&V have been noted at the Trust.  This year’s reflections indicate 
that children and young people have been affected which differs slightly from 
previous years as the majority are associated to the elderly population.  
Subsequent to this a reinforcement of communications will encourage flu 
injections and services alike to patients which are available within Primary Care 
settings. 
 
National performance of Accident and Emergency services across the board has 
triggered concerns and continues to be a primary focus area for South Tyneside. 
 
A recent Alliancing Academy Event showcased outstanding work that continues 
to take place across the borough.  There is an evident real momentum behind this 
and a number of additional events have been scheduled over the course of the 
year.  The Chair reiterated the importance of attendance and asked that CCG 
staff be flexible to attend and show support where possible. 
 
The Chief Officer role for South Tees was announced and is now out to advert; 
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further information will be shared with members once a successful appointment is 
made. 
 

7. Integrated Quality Performance and Finance report 
Provider 

i. The Committee were informed there are no new significant areas of 
concern to report this month. 

ii. In terms of market share; birthing figures have been incorporated as of 
month 05 and are anticipated to fall in-line with expectations.  Close 
monitoring and scrutiny is to continue. 

iii. Adjustment was made to the outpatient data to include activity trends that 
reflect a rather more accurate position. 

iv. Forecasting of Non-elective and critical care activity has slightly increased. 
v. Birthing figures for Gateshead NHS Foundation Trust have changed to 

tariff based with a likely increase expected in terms of the initial baseline 
figure. 

vi. New activity in regard to Cobalt now features as part of the report. 
vii. Elective and Non-elective activity trends appear to be moving in the 

desired direction and does not reflect the current system wide concerns 
therefore the pressure is not likely to be activity driven.  This being the 
case, there is a clear need to determine what is driving this pressure and 
identify which changes have arisen since April when the initial pressure 
occurred.  The Chief Finance Officer is to lead on a system wide 
discussion and ensure mechanisms are in place to provide additional 
assurance.  The Head of Adults and Integrated Care volunteered to be part 
of these conversations. 

 
Quality 
viii. Influenza cases have vastly increased on last month’s position and is 

noticeably effecting the elderly population as well as young people and 
children.  PHE (Public Health England) have now declared this as an 
influenza outbreak. 

ix. In terms of ambulance handovers, multiple conversations are taking place 
regarding the current pressure areas, and to gauge what actions are being 
taken to address this. The preferred option is to have a system wide 
response. 

 
The Director of Public Health alluded to recent discussions whereby a person 
centred decision requirement for prophylaxis treatment was the 
preference.  Members referenced the effectiveness of the vaccine and if there 
were evidence and/ or statistics to support this, it would stand as extremely 
valuable information 
 
Performance 

x. Performance against the RTT (Referral to Treatment) target is still well 
above the 92% threshold, although has been steadily decreasing in recent 
months.  It was noted that the Director of Operations would be scrutinising 
closely as otherwise, continuation of this trend would make 2020 extremely 
challenging. 

xi. A&E performance continues to reflect an extremely concerning state with a 
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noticeable decline to 75% achievement recorded as of October.  Key 
performance issues and actions to manage the position will be addressed 
at today’s Local A&E (Accident and Emergency) Delivery Board along with 
mechanisms.  Discussion was held around the introduction of the Meditech 
system as the catalyst for this, with confounding factors including bed 
pressures and influenza.  It was noted that the number of A&E attendances 
was slightly than year-to-date in the previous year and that non-elective 
admission numbers were reducing. 

xii. Cancer targets; particularly 62 days remains a key concern and is to be 
closely monitored. 

 
Committee members questioned the above and challenging discussion was held, 
particularly around A&E performance.  It was noted that this would be managed 
through the LADB. 
 

8. Finance Update 
This month’s financial position continues to remain on track and the following 
points were noted - 

i. The Prescribing forecast includes the anticipate impact of changes to 
Category M reimbursements on a national level which the CCG will endure. 

ii. Continuing Health Care work continues at pace with the forecast predicting 
a more confident position. 

iii. A recent meeting with CCG staff and NHS Property Services took place to 
review the figures in question and resolve the position with the possibility of 
entering some form of agreement.  The Chief Finance Officer asked 
members to note the potential arbitration however; further information is 
required to consider all options that are available prior to a settlement 
being made. 

 

 

9. Urgent Care Treatment centre update 
Today’s report provides an update to the Committee focusing on the current 
position with the urgent care agenda. 
 
Members were quickly briefed on the background information and how this forms 
as part of the main national service improvement priorities for Urgent Treatment 
Centres.  An urgent care action group was formed to work on the principals and 
standards to ensure we are compliant in all areas. 
 
Significant increase has been noted in terms of the activity flow throughout the 
urgent care treatment hub since the beginning of October 2019 and is more than 
likely having a positive effect in reducing pressure across specific areas of the 
system. 
 
The report was received for information by the Committee. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10. South Tyneside and Sunderland CCG joint Safeguarding team proposal 
This report was initially shared at core business with CCG senior colleagues to 
gather early thoughts in regard to the future provision of the Safeguarding Team.  
It was agreed further in-depth discussions are required at Executive level as 
formal endorsement is required. 
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The Chair then updated members of the conversation whereby all were in favour 
of bringing together South Tyneside and Sunderland CCG Safeguarding teams, 
and to further develop the close working joint quality functions where 
possible.   There were however slight reservations with option 5 (proposed 
preferred option) and therefore option 4 was noted as the more suitable 
preference.  Alterations to the job description, banding of key posts and the 
inclusion of closer working links within the local health economy were noted as 
specific and vital elements the Committee are to consider. 
 
The Committee were informed of the preferred option proposed to Sunderland 
CCG Executive Committee is option 05, which involves a hosting arrangement of 
a single safeguarding team working across both CCG’s managed by a new post, 
0.5 WTE (Whole Time Equivalent) 8d Safeguarding Strategic Head of Service. 
However, this may change as this view was expressed a few weeks ago and 
further progress could have taken place since. 
 
A lengthy debate transpired whereby a number of valid points were raised as well 
as various suggested alterations to the specification.  It was noted that all 
members were in agreement with the general principal of the joint working 
arrangements and agreed to endorse option 4 but to be aware of and to include 
the above caveats. 
 
The Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety agreed to share this 
information with colleagues at Sunderland CCG in respect of the decision made. 
 

 

11. ICP out of hospitals service alignment 
Today’s report was shared for information purposes with the aim of updating the 
Committee on the progress underway with key delivery areas of the framework. 
 
It was agreed the document is to be shared amongst the ICP (Integrated Care 
Partnership) organisations over the coming months to gather initial views and to 
ensure the framework is coherent with the draft ICP 5 year plan and that all 
deliverables are reflected. 
 
It was noted that the document had been produced with a very specific purpose in 
mind, in understanding the connections between the Path to Excellence 
programme (Phase 2) and the relevant components of the out of hospital 
programme.  Hence, it does not focus on children, mental health, learning 
disabilities or prevention, for example, and this context is important. 
 

 
 

 

12. Lynch syndrome testing 
Testing for Lynch Syndrome is recommended by NICE (National Institute for 
Health and Care Excellence) guidance as part of the colorectal cancer pathway. 
 
Members were informed how this low cost intervention could improve the early 
diagnosis of colorectal cancer. 
 
A request of approximately £16k per annum was made to fund this the testing 
recurrently was agreed by the Committee  
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13. Chief Officers scheme of delegation 
The Committee noted the Chief Officers scheme of delegation appeared at last 
month’s meeting whereby it was agreed this would re-appear as a finalised 
version to the Executive Committee in January for ratification.  There were few 
amendments made to the document however it was agreed further conversations 
are required and therefore an informal Executive setting would be more suitable 
to accommodate lengthier dialogue if required. 
 
Members were in agreement to share any comments or amendments with the 
Director of Operations via email in advance of further discussions at informal 
Executive scheduled on 09 January 2020. 
 

 

14. Public Health update 
Stop Smoking 
The Committee were asked to provide thoughts regarding the Smoke Free NHS 
clause within the Sunderland Council stop smoking service specification and for 
South Tyneside to consider funding a similar approach which would ensure the 
service covers both the Sunderland and South Tyneside hospital sites. 
 
The proposal is to ensure that the service model (provided by Northumbria 
Foundation Trust) provides high level specialist support across both South 
Tyneside and Sunderland Hospital sites and that the purpose of the service is to 
embed a Smoke Free culture (rather than a specific service solution). 
 
Committee members raised a number of concerns, in particular the risk that the 
service undermines the need to embed a Smoke Free culture in all hospital 
staff.  To mitigate this, it was agreed to have conversations with staff from 
Sunderland Trust to understand how the model was operating in practice.  This 
would provide assurance to the Committee and alleviate concerns prior to a 
formal decision being made. 
 
The Committee reinforced their support for the Smoke Free agenda and the 
overall proposal was agreed in principal.  A further update will be brought to the 
Committee for a final formal decision to be made. 
 

 

15. Emerging risks 
No additional risks were identified in addition to what already exists within the 
register. 
 

 

16. For information: 
The risk register and complaints report where shared for information purposes 
only. 
 

 

17. Date and Time of next meeting: 
Wednesday 22 January 2020, 8.30 – 12.00noon at Monkton Hall 
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 22 January 2020 
8.30am – 12 noon, Monkton Hall 

 
Present: David Hambleton (DH) Chief Executive (Chairing 

meeting) 
STCCG 

 Matt Brown (MB) Director of Operations  STCCG 
 Jeanette Scott (JS) Executive Director of Nursing, 

Quality & Safety 
STCCG 

 Ros Whitehead (RW) Practice Manager Lead STCCG 
 Dr Jon Tose (JT) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Dr Matthew Walmsley (MW) GP Chair STCCG 
 Dave Julien (DJ) Clinical Director STCCG 
    
Apologies: Tom Hall (TH) Director of Public Health STC 
 Dr James Gordon (JG) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Vicki Pattison (VP) Head of Adults and Integrated 

Care 
STC 

 Kate Hudson (KH) Chief Finance Officer  STCCG 
    
In attendance: Sue Smith (SS) Senior Finance Manager STCCG 
 Paula Phillips (PP) Public Health Strategic Manager STC 
 Mark Girvan (MG) Programme Manager NECS 
 Guy Nokes (GN) Commissioning Support Officer NECS 
 Marie Thompkins (MT) Medicines Optimisation 

Pharmacist – CCG Lead 
Pharmacist 

NECS 

 Jenna Easton (JE) Minutes Acting Executive Assistant 
(Minutes) 

STCCG 

  
Notes 

 
Actions 

   
1. Welcome 

Members were welcomed the Committee by the Chair and were asked to note the 
Senior Finance Manager is attending on behalf of the Chief Finance Officer 
covering the usual Finance related items. 

 

   
2. Apologies for Absence 

Noted as above. 
 

 

3. Declarations of interest 
No conflicts of interest were identified however the Chair agreed this will be re-
visited throughout the meeting at each individual agenda item. 
 

 

4. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2019 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true record with the 
following minor amendments for accuracy purposes:- 

i. Cases of D&V (Diarrhoea and vomiting) were reported at the Trust and not 
influenza cases as such. 

ii. ‘Activity’ is to follow the wording critical care within the provider section 
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under bullet point four. 
iii. Bullet point five within the provider section should read ‘changed to tariff 

based’. 
 

5. Matters arising 
iv. In the event of additional influenza outbreaks; measures and resilience will 

be considered at LADB (Local Accident and Emergency Delivery Board) as 
preparations are underway behind the scenes. 

v. The action associated with the Safeguard report writing is linked to 
Jeanette Scott and Jon Tose not Matthew Walmsley.  Report writing will be 
implemented via the Primary Care team and discussions are underway 
with Quality and Safeguarding leads in practices to gather views. 

vi. CCG staff continue to closely monitor MEDITECH issues and will for the 
foreseeable future. 

 
Following discussion, the action log was updated accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
6. Chairs Update 

From a National ICS perspective, a recent event took place in London primarily 
focusing on system operations and outlining expectation of how the ‘system by 
default’ approach will likely operate in the new world. 
 
On a more local take, an Alliancing World Café Event took place recently that was 
extremely well attended and proved a positive event to drive forward the South 
Tyneside Alliance. 
 
A private Health and Wellbeing Board meeting took place to continue discussions 
about strengthening working relations and the proposal for the formation of an 
alliancing academy.  Members were asked to continue to spread the word and to 
make a conscious effort to widely promote Alliancing in South Tyneside. 
 
The recent announcement of the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer for 
the newly forming South Tees CCG was confirmed as Dave Gallagher; this 
therefore makes further changes across the system more likely.  The CCG 
expects things will be a lot clearer mid-February and further information will be 
shared with members in due course. 
 
The formal announcement of the appointment of Louise Lydon to the Governing 
Body Primary Care Health Professional role was made.  Dr James Crosbie was 
also successful, however the Council of Practices agreed that this role is specific 
to a GP practicing in South Tyneside, and if this is not the case then the 
appointment will not be ratified and we will proceed with the one appointment.  All 
members were in favour of this approach and commented positively on the 
approach made by Council of Practice. 
 

 

7. Quality Performance and Provider Report 
Quality 

i. NHS England & NHS Improvement proposed a refresh of HCAI targets for 
both CCGs and providers and more detail will feature within the report 
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going forward. STSFT have indicated they are proposing to reduce 
screening for MRSA; Head of Quality and Patient Safety to pick up at the 
joint HCAI Improvement Group. 

ii. The administration of Anti D immunoglobulin to pregnant women identified 
as requiring it has triggered cause for concern due to a number of cases 
where administration was missed, given at the wrong time or when not 
indicated.  This is under investigation; further information is being awaited. 

iii. CNTW reported a never event relating to wrong site administration of 
medication.  NHSE/I are planning a focussed session on never events. 

iv. Work is underway within the Trust in a bid to reduce pathology testing; the 
Head of Quality and Patient Safety is to be made aware of this. 

v. The Committee discussed where quality in primary care is reported by 
exception and agreed that this should be included in the key quality 
assurance report to Executive and other relevant committees 

 
Discussion was held around quality exceptions in Primary Care and how best for 
these to be considered by the Executive Committee.  The Director of Operations 
referenced the quality section of the QPF could comprise of this information going 
forward should members find this beneficial. 
 
Members referenced the continued importance of high level conversations with 
senior colleagues from the Trust and CCG in terms of agreeing a means to 
escalate and address risks as and when they occur. 
 
Performance 

i. This month’s data reflects a very similar position reported at last month’s 
Committee; no significant changes in trajectory or performance to be aware 
of. 

ii. The issue of honorary contracts was raised but has now been addressed. 
iii. ED (Emergency Department) performance continues to decline month on 

month, falling a major deterioration that has been sustained since October 
2019; vital discussions are to take place at this afternoon’s LADB. 

iv. RTT (Referral to Treatment) remained fairly stable until recently whereby 
performance has declined though still above the national average 
standard.  It was noted that performance on this indicator was a cause for 
concern. 

v. Cancer targets; particularly 62 days remains a key concern and is to be 
closely monitored, with more detailed consideration at the next meeting. 

 
Provider 
There is nothing new to note this month on the contract positions with minimal 
movement or changes to report. 
 
An apparent increase in outpatient activity at STSFT is noticed but is more to do 
with the change in reporting, coding and counting following the merger than an 
actual increase in activity at the Trust.  Business rules for outpatient are being 
reviewed and updated to address these issues and should see lower numbers in 
next month’s report.  This will continue to be monitored going 
forward.  Consideration of areas such as nurse led appointment data and further 
analysis of this coding is to take priority. 

 
K Hesketh 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D 
Hambleton 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M Brown/ E 
Warner 
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8. Finance Update 
A slight difference in the prescribing figures being reported in the forecast finance 
position and the prescribing paper being tabled later has been noted and is to be 
reviewed by the Senior Finance Manager. 
 
CHC (Continuing Health Care) continues to reflect an overspend; genuine trends 
for real patient needs are increasing thus evident growth year on year.  Next 
steps will consist of further discussions to address the backlog of cases. 
 
The ongoing situation with Property Services and the potential arbitration remains 
as per the position reported at last month’s meeting, with no further information to 
share to date. 
 
Better Care Fund alludes to a risk of overspend but is noted as low risk within the 
risk register and is to remain.  This section within the report makes reference the 
COG (Contract Operational Group) is responsible to observe the position 
however, as this meeting no longer exists; the report is to reflect the correct 
monitoring process now in place. 
 

 

9. End of Life/ Palliative Care Update 
A previous update based on Palliative Care services took place in November to 
inform the Committee on outcomes from the co-design process, the engagement 
with charitable organisations based upon the co-deign model and the obvious 
deficit in Community and Palliative Care settings across South Tyneside.  Further 
development has taken place since, however a little less than desired due to 
purdah. 
 
A visit of St Bede’s Palliative Care Unit at the Queen Elizabeth Hospital in 
Gateshead was most helpful and gave a real feel and insight into the model and 
service operation.  This gave precedence that South Tyneside does and will 
benefit from this service being within hospital ground settings in order to operate 
to full proficiency. 
 
The model core functions are included within the system design form though 
there is further opportunity for potential prototyping as additional 
measures.  Members agreed it is vital to emphasis upon the several types of 
forms that could deliver the service. 
 
Members alluded to the perception of the wording ‘Hospice’ and how this seems 
to be portrayed in a negative light therefore further emphasis of this is essential 
going forward. 
 
Members were in favour of predominantly working with pre-existing providers and 
charitable organisations within the borough where this would deliver the desired 
service at a high level of quality and sustainability, as opposed to, going further 
afield and creating new relationships with providers outside of the borough. 
 
The Committee were in agreement to proceed with the procurement proposal. 

 
 
 
 

10. Frailty work stream update 
The Clinical Director introduced the paper highlighting that it was co-written by the 
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Frailty Alliance members.  The Committee made note of the impressive 
development in terms of joint working relationships of the Alliance and that this 
new way of working is to continue with future reporting. 
 
The progress and ambitions of the Frailty Alliance were noted and discussion 
followed including: 

i. Front of house frailty work is to be considered as part of the wider frailty 
picture. 

ii. A recent meeting with Admiral Nurses and Executive Director of Nursing, 
Quality and Safety took place to identify resource and provision within the 
system.  A number of potential options are to be explored. 

iii. A suggestion to incorporate Personal Health Budgets could potentially 
assist those who are frail and may possibly influence CHC packages. 

 

 
 

11. Medicine optimisation (6 monthly) report 
Clinical Director responsible for the portfolio of Medicine Optimisation made the 
Committee aware of the extremely large volume of work and continued efforts 
which form the Medicines Optimisation agenda and asked that special thanks 
were noted to Marie Thompkins, Medicines Optimisation Pharmacist for the 
outstanding contributions and ongoing efforts to support the CCG. 
 
A high level detailed report was shared amongst members to highlight key areas 
of work underway, achievements made to date and to touch base on the 
underlying pressure areas. 
 
Budget forecast continues to indicate overspend in line with initial calculations. 
As it stands the tracker is yet to project cost savings that were initially predicted in 
year; a potential consequence of diabetes but as of yet is unknown. 
 
The South Tyneside and Sunderland APC (Area Prescribing Committee) Terms of 
Reference documentation is to be considered by the Committee as Governance 
provisions indicate formal sign off of the minutes and is to be standardised going 
forward. 
 
In terms of the current Governance arrangements, the minutes of APC are 
approved initially via the Chair then forwarded directly to the CCG Clinical Director 
for formal sign off of the recommendations summary, thus according to the TOR, 
the recommendations summary is to feature at Executive Committee for 
information and audit purposes. 
 
The Committee were comfortable with including this as part of the Chief Officers 
scheme of delegation, for the Clinical Director to continue to make an executive 
decision on behalf of the CCG/ Committee and that the minutes will feature on 
future agendas of the Executive Committee for information only. 
 
The Committee noted the positive achievement and took the report for information 
purposes. 
 

 
 

 

12. Public Health Update 
Minimum Unit Pricing 
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Minimum unit pricing measures are to be promoted with key stakeholders in an 
attempt to encourage the Government to introduce the Minimum unit pricing 
legislation.  This will primarily apply to the cheaper brands sold across the market 
and will increase by 50pence per unit which is formally affirmed.  The support for 
minimum unit pricing is part of the wider Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy for the 
Borough.  
 
Intelligence gained from a comparable model implemented in Scotland imitates 
enough evidence for the borough to support implementation across 
England.  Balance North East continues to work with STC to raise awareness by 
promoting widely across South Tyneside and identify real evidence to illustrate 
the full potential this could have on the borough, as the North East has the 
highest rates for Alcohol related harm.  Balance are working with all North East 
Local Authorities and its partners to gather region wide support. 
 
Work is underway to deep dive into the A & E admissions for individuals under the 
age of 18 at the Trust; findings and recommendations will be shared with the 
Committee once this has been identified. 
 
The CCG agreed to send a letter of support for Minimum Unit Pricing from the 
organisation. 
 

 

13. Emerging risks 
A new risk ‘ability to escalate risks with our colleagues at the Trust’ is to be 
added. 

 

14. For information: 
The risk register and complaints report were shared for information purposes. 
 

 

15. Date and Time of next meeting: 
Thursday 27 February 2020, 8.30 – 12.00noon at Monkton Hall 
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 27 February 2020 

8.30am – 12 noon, Monkton Hall 
 

Present: Kate Hudson (KH) Chief Finance Officer (Chairing 
meeting) 

STCCG 

 Dr Matthew Walmsley (MW) GP Chair STCCG 
 Dave Julien (DJ) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Matt Brown (MB) Director of Operations STCCG 
 Jeanette Scott (JS) Executive Director of Nursing, 

Quality & Safety 
STCCG 

 Ros Whitehead (RW) Practice Manager Lead STCCG 
 Dr Jon Tose (JT) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Dr James Gordon (JG) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Vicki Pattinson (VP)  Head of Adults and Integrated 

Care 
STC 

    
Apologies: David Hambleton (DH) Chief Executive STCCG 
 Tom Hall (TH) Director of Public Health STC 
    
In attendance: Ryan Swiers (RS) Consultant in Public Health STSFT 
 Susan Steele (SS) Senior Finance Manager NECS 
 Gillian Johnson (GJ) Head of Commissioning STCCG 
 Aileen Fitzgerald (AF) Designated Clinical Officer 

(SEND) 
STC 

 Rebecca Eadie (RE) Service Manager Joint Market 
Management and Quality Lead 

STC 

 Devyn Emmerson-Ducasse 
(DED) 

Senior Commissioning and 
Support Officer 

NECS 

 Stephen Carter (SC)  STC 
 Jenna Easton (JE) Minutes Acting Executive Assistant 

(Minutes) 
STCCG 

  
Notes 

 
Actions 

1. Welcome 
A round of introductions took place; Kate Hudson, Chief Finance Officer 
confirmed her position of Chairing today’s meeting in the absence of David 
Hambleton, Chief Executive. 

 

   
2. Apologies for Absence 

Noted as above. 
 

 

3. Declarations of interest 
Dave Julien referred to item 12 Mental Health update which references First 
Contact Clinical and therefore this is to be noted as a declaration but not an 
actual conflict as such. 
 

 

4. Minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2020 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true record with the 
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following minor amendment for accuracy:- 

i. To remove the sentence referencing Haven Court within the End of Life 
Care/ Palliative Services update. 

ii. Third paragraph within the Medicines optimisation update requires 
changing so that the wording reads ‘indicate’ not imitate 

5. Matters arising 
iii. In terms of safeguard report writing; the Executive Director of Nursing, 

Quality & Safety and Clinical Director are to gather views from Primary 
Care colleagues on how this can be resolved though, this does not 
address the initial Marac information sharing issues which remain 
outstanding. 

iv. Two actions remain outstanding that are linked to LHE (Local Health 
Economy) but are not recorded on the action log.  For South Tyneside & 
Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust, different MRSA screening processes 
are in place at different sites.  Sunderland Royal continues to screen as 
normal however South Tyneside District Hospital has reduced screening to 
only high risk patients. 

v. Conversations between the Chief Executive and senior colleagues at 
STSFT (South Tyneside and Sunderland Foundation Trust) remain 
ongoing to mitigate risk across the board. 

vi. The removal of additional nurse led appointment data and further analysis 
of this coding has been reflected within this month’s QPF report. 

 
J Scott/ J 

Tose 
 
 

6. Chairs Update 
Committee members were informed there is no specific business to share this 
month. 
 

 

7. Public Health Update 
Smoke Free NHS 
The Trust continues to move forward at pace with plans to achieve a smokefree 
environment from April 2020 at both South Tyneside and Sunderland Foundation 
Trust sites. 
 
In terms of the planning and operational process; the project is live and is in its 
early stages, nevertheless is being piloting on numerous wards at the Trust to 
initially gauge and observe the uptake from patients and staff. 
 
Committee members touched base on the difficulty of a long term culture shift 
amongst staff and that a dependence on stop smoking specialists will take time, 
therefore dedicated staffing resource will be essential in supporting this change 
and ensuring the Trust’s workforce is equipped to do so.  It was agreed to include 
staff cultural change to the metrics section, item 11 within the report. 
 
South Tyneside’s smoking prevalence is high and thus presents real opportunities 
to look at a bigger scope and to potentially implement this strategy across various 
Primary Care settings in future years. 
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The Committee approved of the proposed PDSA approach to secure the best 
possible outcomes for the resource provided with a view to developing a more 
sustainable long-term approach to smokefree provision across the two hospital 
sites in South Tyneside and Sunderland. 
 
Water update 
A brief verbal update was given where members were informed the 
documentation remains sensitive and confidential and therefore is not available 
for wider circulation as yet. 
 
As part of a listening exercise, stakeholders are being asked to take part in a 
survey which will be shared with the Executive for information/ participation; 
documentation is to be circulated via Stephen Carter. 
 

8. Integrated Quality Performance and Finance report 
Quality 

i. Three cases of MRSA have been reported however the exact location 
(South Tyneside or Sunderland) is yet to be identified.  The board 
requested clarification on the nature of the screening process and to 
determine if this filtered through to the new pathway process. 

ii. The trajectory for pressure ulcers has now been set and a falls review 
panel has been put place. 

iii. MESH – practices are unaware of this system therefore specialist help is 
required to support practices and share intelligence amongst colleagues. 

iv. The recall process of the diabetic eye screening overlooked a number of 
patients resulting in the initiation of an investigation; further information will 
be shared in due course. 

 
Provider 

v. No significant changes have occurred in terms of contract activity however 
STSFT activity overall is a lot lower than previous years which is extremely 
positive. 

vi. 20/21 business rules are under review with STSFT (South Tyneside 
Sunderland Foundation Trust). 

vii. NECS colleagues reviewed the Cobalt activity and confirmed this is in-line 
with previous years; the majority are day cases and outpatient procedures 
for the digestive system. 

 
Performance 
viii. Trends confirm the Performance of ED (Emergency Department) changed 

as of October 2019 which has been previously linked to the implementation 
of MEDITECH and the evident system operational issues (i.e. 
process).  Discussions from LADB (Local Accident and Emergency 
Delivery Board) reflected on the time to triage and time to assessment 
metrics, which have substantially increased.  However, it was noted that 
the number of ED attendances is markedly lower this year in comparison 
with last year, bucking the national and regional trend.   

ix. The RTT (Referral to Treatment) target was not achieved this month, for 
the first time.   It was noted that although performance has reduced at 
STSFT, they remain above 92% for South Tyneside residents.  It is 
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neighbouring FTs where the bigger issues lie. 
x. Cancer 2 week wait and 62 day standard targets continue to present 

escalating pressures; predominantly breast, neck and skin referrals and 
comparisons with our peers is essential.  Members were asked to note the 
unlikely position of attaining all cancer targets. 

 

 
 
 

M Brown/ G 
Johnson 

9. Finance Update 
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed at month 10 financial positions there are no 
new risks or updates outlined within the report. 
 

 

10. South Tyneside designated Health Officer Role for SEND 
Today’s update is to draw attention to the current position for SEND (special 
educational needs and disability), to essentially reinforce the importance of this 
and to showcase the outstanding achievements made within the borough to date. 
 
There are distinctive differences between the two functional models in South 
Tyneside and Sunderland, though given the ongoing developments with 
amalgamation of Trusts, the Committee were asked to note our peers have 
expressed strong opinions to continue to exert key valuables that apply to South 
Tyneside’s approach and to ensure this remains going forward. 
 
The local model is fairly bespoke with an obvious mix of deliverables from 
individual regions, substantial benefits and enables a real opportunity to maintain 
a locality focus and integrate ways of working for South Tyneside. 
 
The resignation of South Tyneside Designated Medical Officer was announced 
and plans are underway to mitigate concerns and bridge the gap as soon as 
possible. 
 

 
 
 
 

11. Planning Guidance 
Planning guidance for 20/21 was released early January, which the CCG is 
reviewing with system partners.  Core fundamentals from the delivery plan are 
being used as a foundation and will consist of numerous threads, which will in 
turn tie into the strategic 5 year plan. 
 

 
 

12. Mental Health Update 
Agreement was made to defer this item to next month’s meeting. 
 

 
 

13. In borough older persons care home contract negotiations 
A report was received setting out the ongoing contractual negotiations with the 
care home sector.  South Tyneside Council remains in dispute with a number of 
providers regarding the baseline fees for Care homes.  It was noted that North 
Tyneside provides a valuable comparison to South Tyneside as it  is in a similar 
position. 
 
The report summarised a proposal for a joint re-costing exercise between South 
Tyneside Council, STCCG and care home owners to move towards agreement 
and ensure we have appropriate contractual arrangements in place across these 
services. 
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It also explored why South Tyneside is an outlier in terms of additional continuing 
healthcare payments to care homes across the region and a proposal to further 
understand the issues and then agree a way forward. 
 
In terms of next steps; a strategy is to be drafted based upon the review outlining 
what is needed to complete the exercise, to identify gaps within the system and 
possibly outsourcing requirements to provide specialist input to the process. 
 
The Committee was in support of the overall proposal and to move ahead with 
plans for upcoming contract negotiations for residential and nursing care homes. 
 

14. GP Contract Agreement 20/21 
Committee members were asked to note the magnitude of the contractual and 
potential implications of the GP Contract Agreement 20/21-23/24 as outlined 
within today’s report. 
 
A lengthy debate transpired where members acknowledged the vast volumes of 
work associated with the paper and it was suggested to devote an upcoming 
development session to this. 
 
Committee members made reference to the comprehensive and extremely 
detailed report and agreed to further digest the content in advance of the 
development session.  A date is to be agreed by the corporate office and 
circulated to the Committee once confirmed. 
 

 

15. EoLC Palliative Care Co-design 
An update was presented to the committee that included a verbal report from 
STSFT that suggested a 24/7 consultant palliative care model may not be 
possible due to recruitment difficulties.  This therefore has led to further options to 
be re-considered to deliver the principle determined by the co-design process. 
 
The request for information process had identified a number of potential providers 
from further afield who were supportive of this model and expressed genuine 
interest in providing services in South Tyneside. The Committee were pleased 
with the appetite this enticed but agreed to continue to reach out to existing 
providers in the borough and to remain working with them where possible. 
  
With all the above in consideration, the Committee were asked to consider 
supporting a procurement exercise. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer asked members to note the associated caveats of 
potential financial implications should members approve of a procurement option 
and therefore agreed to work through the figures. 
 
Following a lengthy debate, Committee members were fully supportive of today’s 
proposal: to take on a potential procurement for Palliative Care services to 
complete the proposed model that meets the principles of the co-design process. 
 

 

16. Q3 Governance Assurance Report 
The report shared provides assurance that the governance risks facing the CCG 
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are being identified, managed and escalated within a robust risk management 
process to support the delivery of the CCGs strategic objectives. 
 
Key theme’s members were asked to note from Quarter 3 data: 

i. A total of three legal information requests were submitted over the last 
quarterly period and are outlined for information purposes within the report. 

ii. A single FOI request (Freedom of Information) breached target due to 
being actioned in 21 days, against the target of 20 days.  Governance 
processes are in place and continue to be adopted by the CCG. 

iii. Statutory Mandatory training are approaching end of year positions; senior 
managers are asked to convey the importance of completion of 
outstanding topics within the associated timeframes. 

 
17. Emerging risks 

The DCO role around SEND is a potential risk; the Director of Operations agreed 
to give further thought to this and include within the risk register if necessary. 
 

 

18. Any other Business 
As per last month’s discussions regarding the integration proposal of the 
Safeguarding and Quality functions where members were asked to shared views 
on the proposed joint hosted working arrangements across both South Tyneside 
and Sunderland CCG. 
 
The Committee were in agreement at December’s meeting with the general 
principal of a joint safeguarding function, hosted by SCCG and agreed to endorse 
option 4 outlined within the report, but to be fully aware of the numerous caveats 
and to share today’s decision with Sunderland colleagues. 
 
Meanwhile, further discussions have taken place in SCCG which has resulted in a 
significant change to the leadership of the joint safeguarding function with senior 
colleagues across both patches whereby several potential risks were identified 
that would impact upon both CCG’s (upcoming staff retirements etc. resulting 
interim gaps). 
 
Committee members were observant of the associated caveats pointed out by the 
Executive Director of Nursing, Quality & Safety; nevertheless the Chief Finance 
Officer declared that running costs are to be worked through in the first instance 
prior to further reconsideration. There was also concern that this was not the right 
time to be making substantive changes to the proposals. The Executive Director 
of Nursing, Quality & Safety agreed to communicate this with Sunderland 
colleagues. 
 

 

19. For information: 
The complaints report and Quarter 3 Research and Evidence Report where 
shared for information purposes only. 
 

 

20. Date and Time of next meeting: 
Wednesday 25 March 2020, 8.30 – 12.00noon at Monkton Hall 
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 27 March 2020, 8.30am – 12 noon 

VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

Present: David Hambleton (DH) Chief Executive (Chairing 
meeting) 

STCCG 

 Kate Hudson (KH) Chief Finance Officer  STCCG 
 Dr Matthew Walmsley (MW) GP Chair STCCG 
 Matt Brown (MB) Director of Operations  STCCG 
 Jeanette Scott (JS) Executive Director of Nursing, 

Quality and Safety 
STCCG 

 Ros Whitehead (RW) Practice Manager Lead STCCG 
 Dr James Gordon (JG) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Dr Jon Tose (JT) Clinical Director STCCG 
 Dave Julien (DJ) 

Tom Hall (TH) 
Clinical Director 
Director of Public Health 

STCCG 
STC 

 Vicki Pattinson (VP) Head of Adults and Integrated 
Care 

STC 

    
Apologies:    
    
In attendance: Lisa Dodd (LD) Senior Transformation and 

Delivery Manager 
NECS 

 Mark Girvan (MG) Programme Manager NECS 
 Andy Reay (AR) Senior Medicines Optimisation 

Pharmacist 
NECS 

 Nicola Morrow (NM) Senior Commissioning and 
Support Officer  

NECS 

 Jenna Easton (JE) Minutes PA/ Senior Admin Officer 
(Minutes) 

STCCG 

  
Notes 

 
Actions 

   
1. Welcome 

Members were welcomed to the meeting and a round of introductions took place.  
The Chair confirmed this month’s Executive Committee meeting is to take place in 
the form of Microsoft Teams via a video link as colleagues are remote working 
due to the current position of Covid 19. 

 

   
2. Apologies for Absence 

Noted as above. 
 

 

3. Declarations of interest 
Colleagues noted the statement outlining the term ‘conflict of interest’ which is in 
line with the CCG’s (Clinical Commissioning Group) governance process. 
 
Declarations of interest were declared by Dr James Gordon and Dr Matthew 
Walmsley for item 8. Quality and Safeguarding Team proposal in terms of the GP 
(General Practice) payment for safeguarding reporting element.  The Chair noted 

 

2020/18 
Enclosure 10(iv) 
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that members are not to be present for this item and will be excluded from any 
decision making aspect. 
 

4. Minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2020 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true record with the 
following minor amendment for accuracy purposes: 

i. The spelling error of Vicki Pattinson surname is to be corrected. 
ii. The provider section is to be amended ‘removal of the sentence referring 

to provider block contracts’. 
 

 

5. Matters arising 
iii. LHE (Local Health Economy) – further update to be shared at next month’s 

meeting. 
iv. The Chair confirmed Judgement has now been handed down by the High 

Court of appeal confirming that the CCG can initiate plans to implement 
Avastin, however formal announcement is being awaited. 

 
Following discussion, the action log was updated accordingly. 
 

 
 
 
 

6. Future of integrated working 
The purpose of today’s report is to update the Executive Committee with progress 
to date on the development of integrated working in South Tyneside and to 
explain the governance and accountability framework alongside the outline 
financial framework, all of which support the development and implementation of 
a South Tyneside Alliance Commissioning Committee. 
 
The report outlines the key functions of the STACC (South Tyneside Alliance 
Commissioning Committee) and overall responsibilities that will apply in terms of 
decision making on behalf of the Governing Body and South Tyneside formal 
Committee functions overall.  This is however, not a separate legal body as both 
the CCG and STC (South Tyneside Council) will remain individual bodies with a 
STACC arrangement in place when formal joint decision making is required. 
 
Recent discussions took place with senior colleagues from the CCG and STC 
based upon the content and logistics defined within the report; colleagues are 
fully on board with the overall concept and support the general direction of travel 
for South Tyneside.  A copy of this report is to be cascaded to Neil O’Brien for 
information as this clearly illustrates our operational intentions for continued joint 
working arrangements across the borough. 
 
Executive Committee members agreed to endorse all 6 recommendations 
outlined within the document and agreed to press forward with pace in terms of 
the next level of detail. 
 
Personal thanks were expressed by members to Lisa Dodd, South Tyneside 
Programme Director - NECS (North East Commissioning Support) for the 
outstanding contributions and efforts in achieving the current position and 
incorporating past and future intentions.  Additional thanks were noted to all that 
have been involved with this work and provided contribution. 
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Jeanette Scott, Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety confirmed 
Shona Gallagher, STC Head of Children and Families Social Care is very much 
keen to apply this approach in order to align the safeguarding functions of both 
the CCG and STC and is fully coherent with this methodology. 
 

7. Commissioning Programme Delivery report 
Executive Committee members were asked to note progress of deliverables and 
challenges being faced across the CCGs key work programme areas, namely:- 

 Additional planning has now been included due to Covid 19 status, mainly 
within LTC (Long Term Conditions) element of the plan and remains a vast 
segment. 

 Cancer – NCA (The Northern Cancer Alliance) have announced that 
indicative funding is available to 2023/24 which will allow the continuation 
of successful schemes. This will allow us to maintain the current work 
momentum and will allow time to be spent on project delivery rather that 
the current stop-start approach.  A newly appointed Cancer Co-ordinator is 
now in place at the Trust and work continues at pace. 

 A Better U Coaching Service (Primary Care) – Criteria has been further 
developed for service amended to enable access for anyone with a 
cardiovascular disease. 

 Social Prescribing Network - Social ‘Prescriber’ providers working together 
to better understand what each other delivers and to start to explore how 
everyone can work together. 

 Melissa Bus - This was successful and helped us talk to residents whom 
we would have ordinarily not had the opportunity to.  Feedback from this 
and other test ideas was fed back at the March Workshop where we were 
able to create aim statements and establish measures for the next phase 
of the work stream. 

 End of Life and Palliative Care – Non-recurrent funding has been allocated 
to a number of projects with a focus on Education and Training, community 
support and technology.  The projects supported include: 

o Gold Standard Framework Training and Accreditation for all 21 
G.P. Practices within the borough. 

o Gold Standard Framework Training and Accreditation for 10 
Residential/ Nursing Homes within the borough. 

 Autism waiting times – numerous avenues are being incorporated to 
mitigate the current waiting time escapade and prevent further risk. 

 
The Executive Committee thanked colleagues involved for the significant amount 
of work that has been undertaken and made reference to the impressive 
behaviour of colleagues adjusting to the current situation. 
 

 
 
 
 

8. Health Pathways/ Canterbury Programme 
Dr Jon Tose declared a conflict of interest however the Chair agreed this is to be 
decided during discussions if there is a need for exclusion which will be 
determined if a direct conflict applies. 
 
A number of changes have occurred since the initial writing of today’s report due 
to Covid 19 pandemic.  However, progress to date remains on track with 
approximately 300 live localised clinical pathways and a significant amount of 
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other resources also available on the site.  Comparisons with our peers show 
STCCG are tracking the Canterbury implementation in terms of utilisation of the 
respective systems. 
 
The Committee are being asked to consider 2 main points today; to discuss the 
Clinical Editor roles in the team in regards to increasing hours to cope with the 
current demand and to determine if a cap should apply to technical writing time. 
 
At this point in the meeting the Chair decided it would be appropriate that Dr Jon 
Tose vacates the discussion forum due to his role within the Health Pathways 
team; Dr Jon Tose exited Microsoft Teams. 
 
Broad discussions of the recommendations outlined within the report were 
deliberated and agreement was made to support an additional 3 sessions of GP 
capacity within the Clinical Editor team.  The long term agreement was to recruit a 
new CE to fill the role, however it was agreed as an interim to approach Paul 
Nellist, to offer increased hours due to his efforts of additional support of the 
current Covid 19 situation. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer granted approval of the finance element and asked that 
this is formally noted.  In terms of the writing cap, it was agreed this is not to be 
capped at the moment but will be reviewed at a later date. 
 
At this point of the meeting, Dr Jon Tose re-entered the meeting via Microsoft 
Teams to continue with business. 
 

9. Avastin update 
As covered within the matters arising section, the Chair confirmed Judgement is 
expected to be handed down by the High Court of appeal today and it is hoped 
this will confirm that the CCG can commence with plans to implement Avastin. 
 
Key points to digest were noted as follows:- 

i. The working group continuing to operate to a high standard and have 
made significant progress 

ii. In terms of the current state; a recent discovery of the Trust not fully 
applying NICE (National Institute for Health and Care Excellence) guidance 
that applies to approx. 5% of patient cohort and is to be addressed. 

iii. There are a number of beneficial factors to implementation with the 
obvious being the financial component which is enormous and is a key 
driver. 

iv. Clinical pathways – ongoing discussion with senior colleagues to mitigate 
risk and ensure correct guidelines and procedure apply. 

v. Engagement of the pharmacy department at the Trust is very positive. 
 

Chief Finance Officer confirmed the finance element has been worked through 
and agreed; cascaded onto the relevant forums for further debate however this is 
the agreed direction of travel for all peers involved. 
 
The Chair gave special thanks to Andy Reay, NECS Senior Medicines 
Optimisation Pharmacist for the outstanding efforts and contributions with this 
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work and in turn the Executive Committee also thanked the Chief Executive for all 
his exerted efforts with Avastin. 
 
All recommendations outlined within the report were endorsed by the Executive 
Committee. 
 

10. Public Health Update 
The report sets out an update to the Executive Committee emphasising on the 
work to mainstream PrEP into our existing SH Service provided by the Trust.  The 
aim is to transition from the Palmers Trial site to a full service. 
 
COVID Shielding Hub it to be operational by Friday and is very specifically for the 
most at risk as defined by NHSE.  Other work on volunteering and “being a good 
neighbour” will be cascade through under the #lovesouthtyneside and ABU 
banner. 
 
Community Water consultation has been paused and a further update will take 
place over the coming months. 
 
The DPH Report (on wider determinants) was signed off by Cabinet last week.  
The main focus sits with shaping the South Tyneside environment, employment, 
transport etc. to improve Health and Wellbeing and Health Inequalities.  George 
Mansbridge (Corporate Director for Economy and Regen) co-produced the report 
with the Director of Public Health and both are signed up to genuinely considering 
Health and Wellbeing as part of place-shaping. 
 

 
 
 

11. Quality Performance Finance Report 
Quality 

i. SI (Serious Incident) Panels are now working remotely with the scheduled 
Quality Review Groups being stood down, down however key issues 
continue to be identified and escalated as and when they arise. 

ii. A recent never event was reported at South Tyneside and Sunderland 
Foundation Trust (STFT site) this month, which has resulted in a patient 
climbing out of a window and falling to the ground. They are reported to be 
in critical condition. 
 

Performance 
iii. A 52 week spinal wait took place at the Trust resulting in a patient breach; 

investigations are ongoing and mitigating actions are underway. 
iv. ED attendances have reduced markedly and bed capacity has increased 

significantly, pre-empting the impact over the weeks ahead of Covid-19.. 
 
Provider 
Members were informed there are no specific elements for discussion this month. 
 

 
 

12. Quality and Safeguarding Team proposal 
Safeguarding arrangements 
A lot of changes have taken place over the previous months in terms of the 
functions of the Safeguarding Team which led to an agreed proposal to 
implement a joint safeguarding function across South Tyneside and Sunderland 
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CCGs.  A number of provisions were being put in place which involved numerous 
caveats; however, there are now furthermore changes to what was initially 
discussed and agreed.  Therefore, following discussions with the Chief Officer 
and CCG Chair, the Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety proposed 
South Tyneside CCG pulls out of the joint working arrangement and any 
preceding agreements made and seek alternative arrangements in house. 
 
Carol Drummond, previously Head of Safeguarding within the CCG has 
volunteered to return from planned retirement and has agreed to a 6 month part 
time arrangement to help support the CCG and safeguarding Team during the 
interim period.  The Committee expressed sincere thanks to Carol and noted this 
speaks volumes of her dedication and generosity and are extremely grateful to 
once again have her expertise. 
 
Alternative resource has been sought and a desired approach would be to 
explore opportunities for closer working across safeguarding functions within the 
STC and the CCG which the Committee were in favour of.  The Committee 
agreed this is the best direction of travel for South Tyneside and agreement was 
made for the Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety to urgently press 
forward with formalising this proposal. 
 
Safeguarding Information sharing 
This proposal has been previously presented to STCCG Executive Committee 
with options to consider addressing a gap that remains outstanding.  The initial 
response was for the Chief Finance Officer to pick up discussions with colleagues 
at STSFT to explore options for this requirement to be met by their team.  The 
original position of STFT was that additional funding was required for this 
resource to support demands and confirmed should this not be granted they 
would no longer support the arrangement of primary care information sharing; 
thus today’s report has been re-presented, which supports a number of options in 
terms of how to proceed. 
 
Furthermore steps have transpired with both MARAC and MAPPA (Multi Agency 
Public Protection Arrangements) requests which complicate the position and 
therefore an essential decision is required to ensure we are fully compliant.  This 
gap was identified in the CQC (Care Quality Commission) review of safeguarding 
arrangements across South Tyneside and is an outstanding action. 
 
A lengthy debate took place where a number of options were deliberated; 

i. Members noted there are no providers included within the proposal due to 
the issues that were raised in previous discussions and the potential 
conflicts of interest elements this would present. 

ii. No significant financial difference would apply should the Executive 
Committee seek resource to run this function in house within the CCG. 

 
Having taken into account the options available, the Executive Committee agreed 
to endorse option 3 to ‘commission a primary care facing resource’. 
 

13. How we pay GP practices for safeguarding report 
Both Dr James Gordon and Dr Matthew Walmsley declared a conflict of interest 
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and were asked to remain present during discussions and to be excluded from 
decision making should this apply. 
 
The report was shared for initial debate where members were asked to express 
views in regards to each recommendation in order to gauge the Committees 
preference.  The issue of quality assurance of safeguarding reports must be a 
consideration of the options appraisal.  It was noted there is no option for the 
CCG to commission a function for specifically around safeguarding report writing 
within the current paper.  The committee proposed a prototype approach could be 
implemented on a three month basis potentially engaging an interim resource 
during the interim Covid 19 period as recruitment will be very difficult. 
 
The Committee agreed to implement a prototype safeguarding report writing 
service for a period of 6 months.  Due to the indirect conflict in terms of the 
agreement made, all members remained present for this item. 
 

14. Finance update 
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed there is nothing new to update on in terms of 
Finance as of month 11. 
 
A proposed emergency and temporary scheme of delegation is to go to 
tomorrow’s Governing Body for approval in regards to Covid 19. 
 

 

15. Value Based Commissioning policy update for approval 
The Chair noted; based on the assumption of members reading the report in 
advance of today, discussions and observations are to take place in relation to 
the content of the report with only key points being raised. 
 
A comment was shared in terms of the content of back pain arrangements set out 
within the policy which is not entirely consistent with NICE guidance but is almost 
similar and therefore this is not an issue as such. 
 
All Executive Committee members were in support of endorsement of the policy 
and noted Implementation is due week commencing 30 March 2020. 
 

 

16. Executive Committee Review of Terms of Reference 
Agreement was made to keep the Terms of Reference documentation, with the 
addition of including Vicki Pattinson (Head of Adults and Integrated Care) to the 
membership.  Sign off was agreed with the stance that this is to be reviewed as 
and when required in future. 
 

 

17. Review of Executive Committee Effectiveness 
Members reviewed the Executive Committee’s effectiveness and noted we must 
be mindful of the significant changes that will occur in the near future. 
 

Status Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 
Composition, establishment and duties 
1 Does the Committee have written terms of 

reference that adequately define the 
Committee’s role? 

Y    

1 Have the terms of reference been adopted 
by the Board? 

Y    

1 Are the terms of reference reviewed annually Y    
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to take into account governance 
developments (including integrated 
governance principles) and the remit of other 
committees within the organisation? 

1 Has the Committee been provided with 
sufficient membership, authority and 
resources to perform its role effectively and 
independently? 

Y    

2 Are the changes to the Committee’s current 
and future workload discussed and approved 
at Board level?  

Y    

1 Does the Committee report regularly to the 
Board? 

Y    

1 Does the Chair of the Committee have 
relevant expertise? 

Y    

1 Are new members provided with appropriate 
induction? 

Y    

1 Does the Board ensure that members have 
sufficient knowledge of the organisation’s 
business to identify key risk areas and to 
challenge on critical and sensitive matters?  

Y    

1 Does the Committee prepare an annual 
report on its work and performance in the 
preceding year for consideration by the 
Board? 

Y    

1 Does the Committee assess its own 
effectiveness periodically? 

Y    

1 Has the Committee established a plan of 
matters to be dealt with across the year?  

Y    

1 Does the Committee meet sufficiently 
frequently to deal with planned matters and 
is enough time allowed for questions and 
discussion? 

Y    

1 Does the Committee’s calendar meet the 
Board’s requirements? 

Y    

2 Are Committee papers distributed in 
sufficient time for members to give them due 
consideration? 

Y    

2 Are Committee meetings scheduled prior to 
important decisions being made? 

Y    

2 Is the timing of Committee meetings 
discussed with all the parties involved? 

Y    

2 Does the Committee have a mechanism to 
keep it aware of topical, legal and regulatory 
issues? 

Y    

1 Has the Committee formally considered how 
it integrates with other committees? 

Y    

1 Has the Committee formally considered how 
its work integrates with wider performance 
management and standards compliance? 

Y    

2 Has the Committee reviewed whether the 
reports it receives are timely and have the 
right format and content to enable it to 
discharge its responsibilities?  

Y    

1 Has the Committee reviewed the robustness 
of the data behind reports and assurances 
received by itself and the Board? 

Y    

2 Does the Committee effectively monitor the 
implementation of management actions 
arising from reports? 

Y    

2 Does the Committee receive and review a 
draft of the organisation’s Annual 
Governance Statement? 

Y    

2 Has the Committee reviewed its 
performance in the year for consistency with 
its: 

 Terms of reference? 
 Programme for the year? 

Y    

3 Does the annual report and accounts of the 
Trust include a description of the 
Committee’s establishment and activities? 

Y    
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18. Emerging Risk 
No new issues were raised other than Covid 19. 
 

 

19. AOB 
The Executive Committee expressed sincere appreciation and asked that a 
formal record be noted for David Hambleton in terms of his departure from the 
Chief Executive role within the CCG. 
 

 

20. Date and Time of next meeting: 
Thursday 30 April 2020, 8.30 – 12.00noon via Microsoft Teams 
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Audit and Risk Committee 

03 December 2019 
09:00 am – 10:00 am 

Meeting Room 1, Monkton Hall 
 
 
Present: 
Paul Morgan Lay Member and Chair, STCCG   PM 
Paul Cuskin Lay Member, STCCG     PC 
Pat Harle Lay Member, STCCG     PH 
 
In Attendance: 
Carl Best  Director of Internal Audit, Audit One   CB 
Anna Davidson             Personal Assistant, STCCG     AD  
Kate Hudson  Chief Finance Officer, STCCG    KHu 
Mark Outterside            Partner and Engagement Lead, Mazars  MO 
Helen Ruffell Operations Manager, STCCG    HR  
Alyson Williams Group Audit Manager, AuditOne    AW 
 
Apologies: 
Paul Bevan Counter Fraud Specialist, AuditOne   PB 
Matt Brown Director of Operations, STCCG   MB  
David Hambleton Chief Executive, STCCG    DH 
Matthew Walmsley CCG Chair, STCCG     MW 
Cameron Waddell Partner and Engagement Lead, Mazars  CW 
Andy Sutton Governance Officer, STCCG    AS 
 
 
2019/39 Welcome and Introductions 

Members were welcomed to the meeting and introductions made. 
 

2019/40 Apologies for Absence 
Apologies were noted as above. 
 

2019/41 Declarations of Interest 
Pat Harle advised the committee of her role as a lay member of the 
governing body of Sunderland CCG and as the CCG governor at 
STSFT.  The Chair ruled that this had no material bearing on the 
business to be conducted at the meeting and that she should remain 
during all business items. 

 
2019/42 Minutes of the meetings of 10.09.2019 (Enclosures 1) 
  Resolved  

That the minutes of the meetings of 10.09.2019 be approved, 
subject to the amendment of: 
Minute 2019/34: Draft Internal Audit Report  
The minute heading be retitled ‘Annual Internal Audit Report’. 

2020/19 
Enclosure 11 
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2019/43 Matters Arising and Action Log (Enclosure 2) 

There were no matters arising other than those that were the subject of 
substantive report elsewhere on the agenda.  
 
GOVERNANCE 

 
2019/44 Risk Management Report (Enclosure 3) 

Committee received an update on risk management developments that 
had taken place since the meeting of 10.09.2019, with consideration 
being given to ‘Extreme’, ‘High’ and ‘Moderate’ risks, with appropriate 
assurances and related mitigating actions provided.  

 
In the period 02.09.2019 – 18.11.2019 a range of changes had been 
made: 
i) No corporate risks were present on the CCG corporate risk register; 
ii) The total number of risks had increased from 16 to 19; 
iii) Of the 19 risks on the register, none were classified as extreme 

(red), 9 as high (amber), 9 moderate (yellow) and 1 low (yellow). 
iv) 3 new risks had been added to the risk register: 

 Risk 2191 – CCG preparedness to meet the new legislative 
Liberty Protection Safeguards (scored residual 9 Amber). 

 Risk 2196 – Risk of closure of Careline Lifestyle care facilities. 
One home is operated in South Tyneside and has nine residents 
who are within South Tyneside CCG responsibility (scored 
residual 6, Moderate). 

 Risk 2195 - Incorrect information contained within Emergency 
Care discharge letters. Two practices in South Tyneside have 
flagged that a number of letters contain incorrect details/ coding 
(scored residual 4, Moderate). 

v) No risks had been closed. 
 
ACTION 
HR to ask KHe to update risk 2196, following which the updated 
register would be recirculated. 
 
Resolved  
That the risk management report be noted. 

 
2019/45 Review of Losses/Compensation/Bad Debts (Enclosure 4) 

Members received a report that summarised the CCG’s aged debtor 
and creditor positions (and special payments made) in the period 
31.08.2019 - to 31.10.2019. 

 
 Aged Debtors Profile 

Current  £18,169.37 
Overdue less than 3 months £7,827.74 
Overdue 3 - 6 months £89.42 
Overdue more than 6 months £147,812.69 
Total £173,899.22 
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 Attention was drawn to a number of points: 

- There was a high level of debt overdue by more than 6 months. 
- Debts owed by STSFT and South Tyneside Council were due to 

temporary process issues.  
- The outstanding debt from Sunderland CCG is a matter of dispute, 

with work ongoing to seek a resolution. 
 
 Aged Creditors Profile 

AP overdue 61-90 £78,056.59 
AP overdue 90+  £3,863,503.60 
Total £3,941,560.19 

 
The major balance was owed to NHS Property Services (£3.1m), for 
which the CCG awaited information to validate associated charges and 
credits. In the interim the CCG had continued to withhold payment.  
 
Resolved 
That the updated position on debtors and creditors be received and 
noted. 
 

2019/46 Governance Assurance Report (Enclosure 5) 
Consideration was given to the Governance Assurance Report (GAR) 
for Q2, 2019/20, which incorporated additional comparative data 
against performance by other reginal CCGs.    
 
The GAR incorporated comparative information relating to Health and 
Safety, Equality and Diversity, plus Data Security and Protection.  In 
addition, South Tyneside-specific information was provided in a range 
of themed areas: Governance Performance, Claims Management and 
Legal Advice, Policy Management, Incident Reporting and 
Management and Risk Reporting and Management. 
 
In addition the report included an exception report that reported South 
Tyneside performance in 6 areas: 
i) Governance Performance: No issues were reported 
ii) Claims Management and Legal Advice: There had been one 

request for legal advice. 
iii) Policy Management: Of 37 corporate policies and strategies, four 

were outstanding and are under review - Standards of Business 
Conduct and Declaration of Interest Policy; DoLs in a Domestic 
Setting; PGD (policy for the development and authorisation of 
patient group directions), Domestic Abuse in the Workplace. 

iv) Incident Management: A review was being undertaken of all risk 
SOPs across northern CCGs to align these. 

v) Risk Management: 2 risks were overdue for review. 
vi) Constitution and Business Continuity: No issues were reported 

 
Resolved  
That the governance assurance report be noted. 
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2019/47 Financial Sustainability Executive Group (FSEG) Update (Verbal) 

The Chair of FSEG presented a verbal report on issues considered at 
the most recent meeting of FSEG.   
 
 A wide range of key areas of CCG business was discussed, with high 
quality reports and robust challenge in all areas: 
 QIPP Summary  
 Delivery Plan 2019/2020 
 Prescribing  
 Outpatient 
 Trauma/Orthopaedics  
 Contract Register 
 
Resolved  
That the FSEG update be noted. 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
2019/48 Internal Audit – Update/Progress (Enclosure 6) 

AuditOne reported progress made against both the 2018/19 and 
2019/20 Internal Audit Plans since the 11.06.2019 meeting. 
 
2018/19 Internal Audit Plan  
Work on the 2018/19 plan had been completed, with one audit having 
been deferred to 2019/20, the audit of Continuing Healthcare. 
 
2019/20 Internal Audit Plan  
In the year to date: 
i) 1 final report had been issued (Financial and Strategic Planning); 
ii) 1 had been issued in draft; 
iii) 7 had not yet commenced; 
iv) 1 had been merged with another report within the plan.  
 
The 2019/20 Plan also included the audit of CHC, which had been 
deferred from 2018/19, for which fieldwork was close to completion. 
 
Resolved  
That the internal audit update be noted. 
 
EXTERNAL AUDIT 

 
2019/49 External Audit Update/Progress Report (Enclosure 11) 

Members received a progress report from Mazars, the CCG’s External 
Audit provider on activities undertaken in 2019/20. 
 
Attention was drawn to a number of points: 
- At this stage, there were no significant matters to report.  It was 

anticipated that the system walkthroughs would be completed in 
early December 2019. 
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- The Audit Strategy Memorandum would be submitted to the 
meeting of 10 March 2020.   

- It has been agreed that the interim audit visit would be in early in the 
2020, therein allowing a test to be conducted of up to ten months of 
transactions, reducing (reducing the amount of testing needed to 
complete as part of the year-end visit later in the year).  

 
Resolved  
That the update report from the External Auditor be noted. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
2019/50 Annual Cycle of Business 2019/20 (Enclosure 12) 

 
Resolved: 
That the 2019/20 Cycle of Business be noted. 

 
2019/51 Any Other Business (Verbal) 

No other business was conducted. 
 
CLOSE 
 

Andy Sutton 
Governance Officer 
04 December 2019 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda - Governing Body - Public - 21 May 2020
	ENC 1 - Draft Minutes - Governing Body -  PUBLIC - 26.03.2020
	ENC 2 - Accountable Officers Information Update
	ENC 3 - Covid-19 Pandemic Update
	ENC 4 - Shaping our new Future
	ENC 5 - Cover Sheet Annual Report & Financial Statements 19_20
	ENC 5 - STCCG Draft Annual Report & Financial Statements 19_20
	ENC 5 - STCCG Annual Report 2019-20 Draft
	PERFORMANCE REPORT
	Performance overview
	Statement from the Chair and Accountable Officer
	About NHS South Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group

	Mental Health and Learning Disabilities
	Planned Care
	Musculoskeletal services
	Financial performance
	Sustainable development
	Improve quality
	Engaging people and communities
	Reducing health inequality
	Health Inequalities
	Health Inequalities
	We have the responsibility to reduce inequalities in accessing health services for our local population. We understand our local population and local health needs through the use of joint strategic needs and assets assessments (JSNAAs), health equity ...
	South Tyneside has overall levels of deprivation significantly higher than the national average, and 27% of children live in low income families. The life expectancy of men is 77 years of age and 81.5 years for women. Life expectancy is 7.1 years lowe...
	Priorities that we need to focus on in the coming years include:
	 Health and wellbeing throughout an individual’s life supporting self-care and A Better U
	 Preventing early deaths, especially those due to cancer. Incidents of colorectal and lung cancer in particular are much higher than the national average
	 According to the Global Burden of Disease tobacco is still the leading cause of ill health. Smoking prevalence is currently 18.8%, within routine and manual workers (often individuals from the most deprived wards) has a prevalence rate of 30.0%.  It...
	We work in partnership across the health and care system with local NHS Trusts, local voluntary sector organisations and community groups to identify the needs of the diverse local community we serve to improve health and healthcare for the local popu...
	As the local commissioners of health services, we seek to ensure that the services that are purchased on behalf of our local population reflect their needs, tackle inequalities and are of high quality, and do not disadvantage those residents with the ...
	Through our Joint Commissioning Unit we have worked across the health and care system to provide integrated services, a range of transformational work streams and innovative life course service delivery. Further work with the North East Commissioning ...
	We continue to monitor the health profiles and data available which detail the health challenges of our population including the Joint Strategic Needs and assets assessment (JSNAA) and Public Health Profiles. Further information can be found at:
	• Health Profiles: 45TUwww.healthprofiles.infoU45T
	• Public Health England – Local Health: 45TUwww.localhealth.org.ukU45T
	• South Tyneside JSNAA: 45TUwww.southtyneside.gov.uk/article/49425?utm_source=friendly_URU45T
	• Global Burden of Disease - 45TUhttp://www.healthdata.org/U45T

	ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
	Corporate Governance Report
	Members’ Report
	Member Practices and Council of Practices
	Governing Body
	Division of responsibilities
	Audit & Risk Committee
	Register of Interests
	Personal data related incidents
	Statement of Disclosure to Auditors
	Modern Slavery Act

	Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities
	Dr David Hambleton Accountable Officer to 31 March 2020
	Governance Statement 2019/20
	1. Introduction & Context
	2. Scope of responsibility
	3. Governance arrangements and effectiveness
	4. Risk management arrangements and effectiveness
	5. Other sources of assurance
	6. Control Issues
	7. Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Use of Resources
	8.  Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	9. Review of Effectiveness
	10. Conclusion


	Remuneration and Staff Report
	Remuneration Report
	Remuneration Committee
	Policy on the remuneration of senior managers
	Remuneration of Very Senior Managers (VSM)
	Senior manager remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements)
	Senior manager remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements)
	Cash equivalent transfer values
	Real increase in CETV


	Staff Report
	Number of senior managers
	Staff numbers and costs (this has been subject to audit)
	Trade Union Facility Time Under the terms of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, we are required to publish the number of employees who were trade union officials during this period, and information and details o...
	During 2019/20 there were no employees of NHS South Tyneside CCG who were trade union representatives.
	Staff Sickness Absence
	Staff policies
	Expenditure on consultancy
	Off-payroll engagements
	Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments (this has been subject to audit)

	Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report
	NHS South Tyneside CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report. Disclosures on remote contingent liabilities, losses and special payments, gifts, and fees and charges are included as notes in the Financial Statements...
	ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

	00N_CCG_Statutory_Accounts_Template_2019-20_M12_DRAFT v2

	ENC 7 - Appendix 1 ST Risks
	ENC 7 - STCCG Risk Management Report
	ENC 8 - Register of Interests
	ENC 9 - Northern CCG Joint Committee ToR v4
	ENC 10(i) - Executive Committee Minutes - 18.12.2019 - FINAL
	ENC 10(ii) - Executive Committee Minutes - 22.01.2020 - FINAL
	ENC 10(iii) - Executive Committee Minutes - 27.02.20 - FINAL
	ENC 10(iv) - Executive Committee Minutes 27.03.20 - FINAL
	ENC 11 - CONFIRMED Audit and Risk Committee Minutes - 03 December 2019
	ENC 12 - CONFIRMED QPSC Minutes - 04 March 2020
	ENC 13 - CONFIRMED PRG Mins - 5 Dec 19_RD
	ENC 14 - PCCC - PUBLIC Minutes -  28.11.2019 - FINAL
	ENC 15 - Governing Body - DRAFT Cycle of Business 2020-21 - Version 1



